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CANTERBURY LIMITED

Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2021

The directors present their strategic report of the company for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Principal Activity and Future Developments

The company holds the intellectual property of the ‘Canterbury’ and ‘Canterbury of New Zealand’ brands
for -which it receives licensed royalty income from subsidiary companies and third party licensees. The
company acts as a holding company for subsidiary undertakings of the Canterbury group. This is not
expected to change in the coming year. '

Performance

The company’s profit for the financial year is £2,013k (2020: profit of £2,079k) and is shown in the profit

and loss account on page 10. The company’s net assets as at 31 December 2021 are £899k (2020: net
liabilities of £1,114k). The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend (2020: £nil).

Given the straightforward nature of the business, the key performance indicators are limited to the
following:

2021 2020
£°000 £'000
Turnover 2,874 2,637

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The directors of Pentland Group Holdings Limited, the ultimate parent company, manage the group's risk
and key performance indicators at a group level, rather than at an individual entity level, including
financial risk management.

The key risks and uncertainties specific to the company are as follows:

Category | Risk | Mitigating Activity
Liquidity and Funding

Intercompany Funding

Regular profit and cash flow
forecasts are provided to the
Group Treasury function to
highlight peaks and troughs in
the working capital cycle of the
company, so that funding
availability can be managed
accordingly.

Access to funding from the
immediate parent may not be
available on demand.

The company has significant
intercompany balances.

Requirement to report in respect of Section 172 Companies Act 2006

The following disclosure describes how the directors have approached and met their responsibilities
under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, and in particular how the directors have satisfied
themselves that they have acted in a way which is most likely to promote the success of the company for
the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so having regard for stakeholders interests, and forms
the directors’ statement required under section 414CZA of the Companies Act 2006.

As a business we set high expectations for ourselves, our people, our business partners and our suppliers.
We have presented below a summary of the key stakeholder groups, as well as the key decisions made
during the year, with reference to how our key stakeholders were impacted and how the directors engaged
with those stakeholders to promote the success of the company.



CANTERBURY LIMITED

Strategic Report for the year ended 31A December 2021 (continued)
Requirement to report in respect of Section 172 Companies Act 2006 (continued)
- Pentland Group (Trading) Limited

During the year Pentland Group (Trading) Limited, a company registered in England and Wales, replaced
Pentland Group Limited as the company’s immediate parent undertaking and provides intercompany
funding to the company. Continued access to capital is vital to the long-term success of the company.

Regular profit and cash flow forecasts are provided to Pentland Group (Trading) Limited and the Group
Treasury function, not only to advise on when funding is needed, but also to highlight sales and profit
growth to ensure we are creating value for the ultimate shareholders. These are challenged and scrutinised
as well as regular forecast update and outlook processes.

- Licensing Partners

Sustaining long lasting relationships with our licensing partners is vital to the success of the company and
regular meetings take place to ensure this continues. We also regularly review terms in place and ensure
that both the company and the partner can meet the demands placed on them.

- Employees

Whilst all employee contracts are held by Pentland Brands Limited, a sister company within the group,
the company recognises that a number of those employees represent the company in the conduct of its
principal activity. Accordingly, we believe they are crucial to operating our business successfully and
engage to ensure that we are fostering an environment in which they are happy to work.

Pentland Brands is committed to promoting diversity and inclusion not only in our workplaces, but by
empowering individuals and communities worldwide. In 2021 it created and introduced a new D&I
learning series, titled ‘The Pentland Perspective’, to understand how we can support diverse communities
and share ways we can all take action for our colleagues, consumers and wider community. We also set
up four employee networks to support our under-represented groups -- 1. Network for women and their
allies, 2. Wellbeing Network, 3. LGBTQ+ Network and 4. Network for black colleagues and their allies.
The networks are a safe space for people to share experiences, to learn from each other and to proactively
take action and make a difference.

- Community

To reflect the growing need to factor our social and environmental impact into all that we do, in addition
to publishing our annual Positive Business report in May 2022, which outlines the actions we took in 2021
towards our sustainability goals, we launched our Pentland Brands 100-1-0 positive business strategy —
to take action for people and our planet. 2032 marks the 100 year anniversary of the Pentland Brands
business and our 100-1-0 positive business strategy sets out three major targets to be reached by 2032 —
1. To help 100 million consumers live positive, active, sustainable lifestyles 2. To improve the lives of one
million people in our communities and 3. To be a net zero business by 2032.

These targets are designed to help us focus our activities and deliver on our commitment to support both
people and planet, through various sustainability initiatives and charitable actions. This includes building
brands with purpose, creating products sustainably, embracing a diverse and inclusive workforce,
supporting our communities and protecting the people working within our supply chain.

You can read about some of the actions Pentland Brands and our brands are taking across all areas at
https://pentlandbrands.com/news/.

Our Principal Decisions

Given the nature of the businéss, the only trading activity is the collection of royalty, hence the impacts of
supply chain and Brexit are not considered to be significant.

T E Cullen
Company Secretary
Date: 30 November 2022



CANTERBURY LIMITED

Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2021

The directors present their report of the company for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Future Developments

Refer to the Strategic Report on page 1.

Going Concern

As at 31 December 2021 the company had net current assets of £899k and a profit for the year then ended
of £2,013k. The directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period of 12 months from the date of
approval of these financial statements which indicate that, taking account of reasonably possible
downsides, the company will have sufficient funds through funding from its immediate parent company,
Pentland Group (Trading) Limited, to meet its liabilities as they fall due for that period, should this
funding be required.

Pentland Group (Trading) Limited has indicated its intention to continue to make available such funds as
are needed by the company for the period covered by the forecasts. As with any company placing reliance
on other group entities for financial support, the directors acknowledge that there can be no certainty that
this support will continue, although, at the date of approval of these financial statements they have no
reason to believe that it will not do so.

Consequently, the directors are confident that the company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet
its liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements
and have therefore prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Dividends
Refer to the Strategic Report on page 1.
Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management

Cash flows which are denominated in a foreign currency present risk and uncertainty as to the value of
these cash flows in an entity’s functional currency. Due to the significant volumes of USD and EUR cash
flows across the group, these exposures are managed centrally by Group Treasury on a combined rather
than individual brand basis. The objectives of this policy are to maximise the efficiency benefits of group
hedging and to provide a level of exchange rate certainty to individual brands to assist them in the
forecasting, planning and budgeting processes.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements, unless
noted, were:

A K Rubin

A M Long

CY Patel

J M Godden

D Highfield (resigned 28 February 2022)

Qualifying Third Party and Pension Scheme Indemnity Provisions

The company has provided an indemnity for the directors and the secretary of the company, which is'a
qualifying third-party indemnity provision for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006, and was in force
during the financial year and at the date of approving these financial statements.

Political Contributions

Neither the company, nor its subsidiaries, made any political donations nor incurred any political
expenditure during the year.



CANTERBURY LIMITED
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

People Policies

The talented individuals working within our business are integral to our continuous success. Pentland
Brands is committed to promoting policies which are designed to ensure that employees, and those who
seek to work for us, are treated equally and with respect, regardless of age, disability, ethnicity, gender,
marital status, religion, social background or sexual orientation. We believe that being transparent about
our goals is crucial to achieving them and Pentland Brands publishes its UK Gender Pay Gap report on
www.pentlandbrands.com. '

Pentland Brands has a careers website enabling employees to see up to the minute vacancy information
and is actively engaged on digital platforms such as LinkedIn to promote attractive employment
propositions to the industry leaders of tomorrow.

Employee wellbeing is very important to us and we promote health and wellbeing in a number of ways.
Pentland Brands offers employees a number of tools and resources to help employees be at their best. We
are continually working to build a diverse and inclusive work culture where everyone feels a true sense of
belonging. In 2021, Pentland Brands launched four employee networks, created a diversity, people and
inclusion learning series, and started collecting diversity data from its employees. Through a combination
of continued succession planning, talent pipeline development and external recruitment, it aims to
improve the representation of women and people from ethnic minority groups in director level roles.

A vital component of our strategy is our commitment to the development of our people. Pentland Brands
has learning strategies to provide employees with access to a blend of e-learning, face-to-face tuition,
mentoring and experiential learning. Employee engagement is a key aspect of ensuring that employees
remain motivated and well informed. Pentland Brands has an intranet, giving employees the opportunity
to learn about the business and hosts all company webinars, townhall briefings and team huddles to keep
employees informed of performance and strategy. It also conducts an employee feedback survey to
understand what people think about working for Pentland Brands. The survey allows the company to
access feedback and to make improvements.

More information can be found at www.pentlandbrands.com/careers.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law they have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards
and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company
for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o assess the company’s ability to continue as a going concern disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern; and

o use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.



CANT ERBURY LIMITED
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)
Dlsclosure of Information to Auditor

In the case of each director in ofﬁce at the date the directors’ report is approved:

‘o so far as the director is aware, there i is no relevant audit information of Whlch the company’s
" . auditor is unaware; and

e  -they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a dlrector in order to make,
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company s auditor
is aware of that information.

Independent Auditor

Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed reappomted and KPMG
LLP will therefore ¢ontinue in ofﬁce ‘

By order of the board
T E Cullen

Company Secretary
Date: 30 November 2022
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CANTERBURY LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Canterbury
Limited |

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Canterbury Limited (“the company”) for the year ended 31
December 2021 which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity and related notes, including the accounting policies in
note 3.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of its loss
for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the
FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate
basis for our opinion. '

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’s financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties
that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from
the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going concern period”).

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the company’s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

o we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of
the financial statements is appropriate; and

e we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a material
uncertainty related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
above conclusions are not a guarantee that the company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions
that could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud.
Our risk assessment procedures included:

o enquiring of directors as to the company’s high-level policies and procedures to prevent and detect
fraud, including the internal audit function, and the company’s channel for “whistleblowing”, as
well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

¢ reading Board minutes; and
¢ using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications
of fraud throughout the audit.



CANTERBURY LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Canterbury
Limited (continued)

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect (continued)

As required by auditing standards and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control
environment, we perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular
the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit
we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because transactions are simple and
non-complex, with few sources of judgement, and no pressures or incentives for management to commit
fraudulent financial reporting through inappropriate revenue recognition were identified.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We performed procedures including:

e identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries to
supporting documentation. These included those posted to unusual accounts; and

e assessing significant accounting estimates for bias.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on
the financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with
the directors and other management (as required by auditing standards), and discussed with the directors
and other management the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any
indications of non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

The company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation,
and taxation legislation, and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part
of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Whilst the company is subject to many other laws and regulations, we did not identify any others where
the consequences of non-compliance alone could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the
financial statements.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected
some material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and
performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify
it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our
audit procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing
non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.



CANTERBURY LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Canterbury
Limited (continued)

Strategic report and directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider
whether, based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or
inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

e we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

e in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the
financial statements; and

¢ in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 4, the directors are responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is providled on the FRCs website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.



CANTERBURY LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Canterbury
Limited (continued) :

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s.
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. -
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or.assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed. :

Aimie Keki (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

Ei14 5GL

7 December 2022
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CANTERBURY LIMITED
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
Prpﬁ‘t' and loss account . -

"~ Year ended 31 December

All amounts in £'000 . Note ' 2021. 2020

Turnover ' 5 2,874 T 2,637
Gross profit . 2,874 2,637
Administrative expenses (345) (72)
Operating profit ‘ _ 6 2,529 2,565
Profit before taxation ' 2,529 2,565
Tax charge on profit - 8 (5i6) . .(486)

Profit for the financial year ' 2,013 2,079

Statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December

All amounts in £000 : 2021 2020
Profit for the financial year ' 2,013 2,079
Total comprehensive income for the year : 2,013 2,079

The notes on pages 13 to 23 are an integral part of these financial statements.

10 -
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CANT ERBURY LIMITED

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Balance Sheet
As at 31 December
All amounts in £'000 ' Note -' 2021 " 2020
Fixed assets _
Tangible fixed assets 9 - 9
- 9

Current assets -
Debtors 10 15,187 12,711
Deferred tax asset 11 18 15

15,205 12,726
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 12 (14,306) (13,849)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 899 (1,123)
Total assets less current liabilities 899 (1,114)
Net assets/(liabilities) 899 (1,114)
Cdpital and reserves
Called up share capital 13 : 26 26
Share premium 25,883 25,883
Accumulated losses ' (25,010) (27,023)
Total shareholders’ equity/(deficit) 899 (1,114)

The notes on pages 13 to 23 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 10 to 23 were authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
November 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

DNow —

A M Long

Director

Canterbury Limited
Registered number: 06930025

11




CANTERBURY LIMITED
Financial statéments for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)
Statement of changes in equity

Called Total

up share Share Accumulated shareholders’
All amounts in £000 E capital premium Alosses equity/(deficit)
Balance as at 1 January 2020 ' 26 25,883 (29,#02) (3,193)
Profit for the financial year - - 2,079 2,079
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,079 2,079
Balance as at 31 December 2020 26 25,883 (27,0?3) (1,114)
Balance as at 1 January 2021 26 25,883 (27,023) (1,114)
Profit for the financial year - - 2,013 2,013
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,013 | 2,013
Balance as at 31 December 2021 26 25,883 (25,010) 899

The notes on pages 13 to 23 are an integral part of these financial statements.

12 j'
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CANTERBURY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements

1

General Information

Canterbury Limited is a private company limited by shares and is incorporated in England and
Wales. Its registered office is situated at 8 Manchester Square, London, W1U 3PH.

The company holds the intellectual property of the ‘Canterbury’ and ‘Canterbury of New Zealand’
brands for which it receives licensed royalty income from subsidiary companies and third party
licensees. The company acts as a holding company for subsidiary undertakings of the Canterbury
group.

All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest £1,000.
Statement of compliance

The individual financial statements of Canterbury Limited have been prepared in compliance
with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland”
(“FRS 102”) and the Companies Act 2006.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

(b) Going concern

As at 31 December 2021 the company had net current assets of £899k and a profit for the year
then ended of £2,013k. The directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period of 12 months
from the date of approval of these financial statements which indicate that, taking account of
reasonably possible downsides, the company will have sufficient funds through funding from its
immediate parent company, Pentland Group (Trading) Limited, to meet its liabilities as they fall
due for that period, should this funding be required.

Pentland Group (Trading) Limited has indicated its intention to continue to make available such
funds as are needed by the company for the period covered by the forecasts. As with any company
placing reliance on other group entities for financial support, the directors acknowledge that
there can be no certainty that this support will continue, although, at the date of approval of these
financial statements they have no reason to believe that it will not do so.

Consequently, the directors are confident that the company will have sufficient funds to continue
to meet its liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the
financial statements and have therefore prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

13



CANTERBURY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102

The company’s ultimate parent undertaking, Pentland Group Holdings Limited, includes the
company in its consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of
Pentland Group Holdings Limited are prepared in accordance with FRS 102 and can be obtained
as set out in note 17. In these financial statements, the company is considered to be a qualifying
entity (for the purposes of this FRS) and has applied the exemptions available under FRS 102 in
respect of the following disclosures:

« Cash Flow Statement and related notes;

« Key Management Personnel compensation; and

« Certain disclosures required by FRS 102.11 Basic Financial Instruments and FRS 102.12

Other Financial Instrument Issues in respect of financial instruments not falling within the
fair value accounting rules of Paragraph 36(4) of Schedule 1.
(@ Consolidated financial statements
The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of its ultimate parent, Pentland Group Holdings
Limited. It is included in the consolidated financial statements of Pentland Group Holdings
Limited, which are publicly available. The company is therefore exempt by virtue of section 401
of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements.
These financial statements are the company’s separate financial statements.
(e) Foreign currency
Functional and presentational currency
The company’s functional and presentational currency is pound sterling.
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated at an average spot rate of
exchange for the period or the spot exchange rate at the transaction date where this would give a
material difference.
At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing spot rate.
Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the
exchange rate when fair value was determined.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the
translation at period end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and all
other foreign exchange gains or losses are presented in the profit and loss account.

6] Turnover
Turnover comprises the value of external royalties, excluding sales related taxes.
Royalty income

Royalty income is charged to licensee partner(s) according to the terms of licence agreement(s)
and is recognised in the same period as the sales or purchases to which the royalty relates.

14



CANTERBURY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(® Taxation

. Taxation expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting

period. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in shareholders’ funds respectively.

Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Current tax

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year or

- prior years. Tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted in the

countries where the company operates and generates taxable income.

Management periodically evaluate positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax arises from timing differences between taxable profits and total comprehensive
income as stated in the financial statements. These timing differences arise from the inclusion of
income and expenses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are
recognised in the financial statements.

Deferred tax is recognised on all timing differences at the reporting date except for certain
exceptions. Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is

- probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future

taxable profits.

Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted, or substantively
enacted, by the period end and that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

(h) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost (or deemed cost) less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes the original purchase price, costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, dismantling and
restoration costs and borrowing costs capitalised.

Plant and machinery

Plant and machinery are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows: '

Depreciation and residual values
Plant and machinery 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. The effect of any change is accounted for prospectively.

Derecognition
Tangible fixed assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected. On disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss and included in ‘Other operating (losses)/gains’.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short- .
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Gg) Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the company’s balance sheet when the company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are
derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or are
transferred. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

All financial assets and liabilities are measured at transaction price (including transaction costs),
except for those financial assets classified at fair value through the profit or loss, which are
initially measured at estimated fair value and subsequently measured at fair value.

k) Impairment of assets
Non-financial assets

An asset is impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after initial recognition, the estimated recoverable value of the asset has been reduced.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its estimated fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use.

Where indicators exist for a decrease in impairment loss, the prior impairment loss is tested to
determine reversal. An impairment loss is reversed on an individual impaired asset to the extent
that the revised recoverable value does not lead to a revised carrying amount higher than the
carrying value had no impairment been recognised. Where a reversal of impairment occurs in
respect of a CGU, the reversal is applied first to the assets (other than goodwill) of the CGU on a
pro-rata basis and then to any goodwill allocated to that CGU.

Financial assets
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of impairment is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
Where indicators exist for a decrease in impairment loss and the decrease can be related:
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the prior impairment loss
is tested to determine reversal. An impairment loss is reversed on an individual impaired
financial asset to the extent that the revised recoverable value does not lead to a revised carrying
amount higher than the carrying value had no impairment been recognised.
a Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(m) Investments

Investment in a subsidiary company is held at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

(n) Related party transactions

The company discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the

same group. It does not disclose transactions with members of the same group that are wholly
owned as per FRS 102.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and judgei‘hents

The company makes estimates and judgements concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of debtors

The company makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade, intercompany and other
debtors. When assessing impairment of trade and other debtors, management consider factors
including the current credit rating of the debtor, the ageing profile of debtors and historical
experience. See note 10 for the net carrying amount of debtors and associated impairment
provision.

Turnover

Analysis of turnover by geography:

2021 2020
£'000 £'o00
United Kingdom 1,667 1,872
Continental Europe 1 30
North America - 27
Latin America 13 30
Asia-Pacific 1,011 638
Rest of the;world 96 40
South America 86 -
2,874 2,637
Analysis of turnover by category:
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Royalty income 2,874 2,637
2,874 2,637
Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):
2021 2020
£’o000 £'000
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 9 22
Audit fees payable to the company’s auditor 11 1
Impairment loss on debtors 85 34
Impairment reversal on amounts owed by group
undertakings (250) -
17
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CANTERBURY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7

Employees and directors

Employees

- All employee contracts are held by Pentland Brands Limited, a sister company within the group

that provide shared services to all other companies within the Pentland Brands group of
companies. The average number of employees are disclosed within the financial statements of
Pentland Brands Limited.

All wages and salary costs were incurred by Pentland Brands Limited. In exchange for services
received from Pentland Brands Limited, the company receives a management re-charge (“service
fee”). In determining the service fee, Pentland Brands Limited takes into account the payroll and
non-payroll related costs incurred to provide the services to the company. ’

~ The recharged wages and salaries costs are not split out within the wages and salaries disclosure,

as it is impracticable to determine the amount of management charge that relates to employee
services provided to the company.

Directors’ emoluments

The directors’ emoluments were as follows:

2021 2020
£'000 £'oo0
Aggregate emoluments 15 -
Aggregate pension contributions - -
15 -
2021 2020
No. ' No.
Directors receiving contributions to the money 2 )
purchase scheme
Highest paid director
The highest paid director’s emoluments were as follows:
2021 2020
£'000 f’oo0
Emoluments ‘ . ” -
Pension contributions - -
7 -

The remuneration of all directors is borne by other entities, either within the group itself or within
the related group headed by Pentland Capital Holdings Limited. No remuneration has been
recharged to the company and the amounts disclosed above represent the apportioned share of
the total emoluments in respect of qualifying services provided to the company.

18
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CANTERBURY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

8 Tax charge on profit
2021 2020
£000 £oo00
Current tax
UK - current corporation tax at 19% (2020: 19%) 519 488
Current overseas tax 64 60
Overseas tax relief/other relief (64) (60)
Total current tax 519 488
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences 1 -
Effect of changes in tax rates ()] (2)
Total deferred tax 3) (2)
Total tax charge on profit 516 486

Reconciliation of tax charge

The tax assessed for the year is higher (2020: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in
the UK of 19% (2020: 19%). The differences are explained below:

2021 2020
£000 £’000
Profit before taxation ) 2,529 2,565
Tax on profit at standard UK tax rate of 19% (2020: 19%) 481 488
Effects of:
Tax rate changes @) (2)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 39
Total tax charge for the financial year 516 486

Following the Budget 2021, legislation to increase the rate of corporation tax from 19% to 25%
with effect from 1 April 2023 was substantively enacted on 10 June 2021. As a result, the company
has re-measured its deferred tax balances which are expected to reverse on or after 1 April 2023
at the revised 25% rate. Deferred tax balances which are expected to reverse before 1 Apnl 2023
continue to be recognised at the current corporation tax rate of 19%.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

9 -

10

~ Tangible assets

All amounts in £000

Plant and machinery

At 31 December 2020

Cost 87
Accumulated depreciation (78)
Net book value 9
Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net book value 9
Depreciation (9)
Closing net book value -
At 31 December 2021 ‘
Cost 87
Accumulated depreciation 87)
Net book value -
Debtors
2021 2020
£000 £’oo0
Trade debtors - ‘ 22
Amounts owed by group undertakings 15,022 12,406
Other debtors _ - 117
Prepayments and accrued income 165 166
15,187 12,711

Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of
repayment and are repayable on demand.

Trade debtors are stated after provisions for impairment of £119k (2020: £34Kk).

(2020: £8,082k).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

11

12

13

Deferred tax asset

The deferred tax asset is as follows:

2021 2020

£’000 £'000

Accelerated capital allowances 18 15
18 15

The directors consider that there is sufficient certainty that there will be taxable profits within
the Pentland Group Holdings Limited tax group in the foreseeable future. The asset has therefore
been recognised in these financial statements.

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2021 2020

£’000 £'000

Amounts owed to group undertakings 13,848 13,421
Corporation Tax 456 428
Accruals and deferred income 2 -
14,306 13,849

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, are repayable on demand and
have no fixed date of repayment.

Called up share capital
2021 2020
£’000 £’000
Allotted, issued and fully paid
25,910 ordinary shares of £1.00 each 26 26

21
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

14

15

16

Principal subsidiary undertakings

‘ Ownership
Name of Registered Country of of ordinary
subsidiary office incorporation shares % 2021 2020
£m E£m

Canterbury
International 480 Queen . . :

o Street, Brisbane, Australia 100 - -
(Australia) Pty QLD 4000 , .
Limited 4
Canterbury of 8 Manchester
New Zealand Square, London, UK 100 - -
Limited W1U 3PH
gir;;el;:lzrllry 8 Manchester

pean, Square, London, UK . 100 - -
Fashionwear W1U aPH
Limited 3
Canterbury of 19 Copsey Place,
New Zealand Avondale, New Zealand 100 - -
Limited Auckland 1026
Canterbury

8 Manchester _

Cotton Oxford Square, London, UK 100 - -

Limited W1U 3PH

- With the exception of Canterbury Cotton Oxford Limited and Canterbury European Fashionwear

Limited, which are dormant, all of the subsidiaries shown are distributors of leisure wear and
rugby apparel, footwear and accessories.

Canterbury International (Far East) Limited was deregistered as of 26 February 2021.
Commitments and contingencies

At 31 December 2021 (and 2020) the company had no capital commitments.

Bank overdrafts are reported gross. The company is party to a pooling arrangement with its
clearing banks whereby sterling account cleared credit balances are set off against the respective
currency cleared debit balances of the company and fellow UK group undertakings. There is no
aggregate net overdraft limit for these arrangements.

The company has no other off-balance sheet arrangements.

Related party transactions

The company is exempt from disclosing other related party transactions as they are with other
companies that are wholly owned within the group as per FRS 102.

22
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Controlling parties

The immediate parent undertaking is Pentland Group (Trading) Limited, a company registered
in England and Wales. The ultimate parent undertaking is Pentland Group Holdings Limited, a
company registered in Jersey. R S Rubin and his close family are considered the ultimate
controlling party by virtue of their control of Pentland Group Holdings Limited.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared by Pentland Group Holdings Limited, which is
the parent undertaking of the smallest and largest group of undertakings to consolidate these

. financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021. The consolidated financial statements

of Pentland Group Holdings Limited may be obtained from Pentland Group Secretariat, 8
Manchester Square, London, W1U 3PH.
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Chairman’s Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2021

I am pleased to present Pentland Group Holdings Limited’s annual report, covering the period to 31 December 2021,

When my parents established what is now Pentland in 1932, their vision was to set up a business huilt on the values of honesty,
fairness, respect and hard work. Our Group continues to uphold these same values and, while we do not pretend that we always
get it right, our reason for existing continues to be driven by our commitment to looking after our people and make all our
decisions in good conscience.

During 2021 we made some changes to the way we structure the Group’s activities, In order to simplify the way we operate, as of
October 2021, Pentland Group Holdings Limited only includes the Group’s trading businesses, primarily Pentland Brands and
JD Sports Fashion plc (*JD”). We have demerged the investment business operating within Pentland Group Limited into a
separate parent — Pentland Capital Holdings Limited. Over the last few years both the trading and investment activities of
Pentland Group have continued to grow strongly but it became increasingly complex to manage distinct trading and investment
activities at scale within a single business,

The ultimate beneficial ownership of the Group remains with my family, and there has been no impact on our operations or
employees in any part of the business. The demerger will not result in any significant change to the taxation of the two groups’
continuing operations.

2021 continued to be a challenging year for many of our businesses, requiring them to refocus their priorities to deal with the
ongoing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, alongside newer challenges including significant issues in the global supply chain
and the inflationary impacts resulting in rising costs, particularly for raw materials and fuel, Despite these pressures, we delivered
an excellent performance, largely reflecting the success of JD which grew strongly as COVID-19 related retail disruptions eased
globally. The consolidated results of the Group saw turnover of £8,944.0m (2020: £6,595.7m), which resulted in an operating
profit, before amortisation of intangibles, exceptional items, and other operating income, of £1,040.6m (2020: £499.1m).

JDisaglobally recognised iconic multichannel retailer with a proven strategy, clear momentum and a team of talented individuals
who are recognised within the sports fashion industry as some of the leading figures in their fields.

In 2021 JD saw growth in the UK and Ireland through its core sports fashion fascias’ with a strong retention of sales online in the
first quarter (when non-essential stores were closed in the region). This was followed by a strong recovery instore as they re-
opened from the spring. In the US, similar sports fashion driven growth reflected the first full year of Shoe Palace in the portfolio,
and a part year of DTLR Villa LLC, purchased in March 2021. Additionally, all the JD businesses in the US successfully capitalised
on the favourable trading conditions provided by a second round of fiscal stimulus from the US Federal Government.

Subsequent to the reporting period, JD have transitioned leadership from Peter Cowgill, who had led the business successfully
throughout our period of ownership. We thank Peter for his unwavering commitment and leadership since he re-joined the Group
in 2004. JD is the business that it is today thanks to Peter’s vision and the team he built. The JD business has grown significantly
in recent years, and it became clear to the board after a number of regulatory issues that the governance, risk and control
environment of the business was no longer appropriate for its scale. Actions have now been agreed to ensure internal governance
is set up for sustainable growth, and we welcome the renewed focus of the Board in that respect. The Board, led by its new
independent Chair, Andy Higginson, and CEO Regis Schultz are united in their determination to build on the historical success
with the same laser focus on JD's consumer, alongside commercial rigour, service excellence and analytical intensity,

For the Pentland Brands division, performance continued to be strongly influenced by consumer behaviour through lockdowns
and other COVID-19 related disruption, Berghaus and Endura both continued to grow in 2021 as consumers increasingly spent
time outdoors. The continued closure of swimming pools and disruption of team sports saw the Speedo and Canterbury brands
grow from their 2020 position, albeit sales remain behind 2019 levels. Following the April 2020 acquisition of the Speedo North
America license from PvH Corp, work took place during 2021 to exit the transitional services provided by PvH and consolidate
Speedo North America into the Group.

The Group continued to give back to those in need during the year. The Rubin Foundation has maintained its support for charities
focused on climate change, inequality and education. This includes the Pentland Centre for Sustainability at Lancaster University,
which funds disadvantaged young entrepreneurs through The Princes Trust and a public policy scholarship for developing
countries with UCL. The JD Foundation continued to support charity partners in communities where they operate working to
help disadvantaged young people through empowerment and sport.

We are proud of the work we continue to do to minimise our impact on the environment and, in particular, to limit the effect of
our operations on climate change, as listed in the Strategic Report. More information can also be found in our annual Corporate
Responsibility review published on pentlandgroup.com and in our report to the United Nations.

efained turbulent for all of us, and I would like to acknowledge and thank our employees and our partners
fi valued contribution they gave throughout the year. I am confident that we are in a strong position to
ome ‘1\‘- and fulfil the ambitions of the business and our various stakeholders.
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Stephen Rubin
Chairman
28-November 2022




Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Strategic Report
For the year ended 31 December 2021

The directors present their Strategic Report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities

Pentland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is the holding company of a trading group - Pentland Group (the “Group”) -
which is engaged in the retail and brand management of footwear, clothing and related accessories in the sports, outdoor and
fashion sectors both in the UK and internationally. The Company is responsible for formulating and directing overall Group
strategy. A list of subsidiary undertakings is set out in note 15.

Demerger of Investment Activity

In October 2021 the Pentland investment business, being Pentland Group Limited together with its related investment activities
and subsidiaries (the “Investment Group”), was demerged into a newly established group, creating two independent groups - the
demerged Investment Group headed by Pentland Capital Holdings Limited and the Trading Group, consisting of the Pentland
consumer brands and retail businesses, which continue to be headed by the Company.

Both groups continue to be wholly owned by Stephen Rubin, members of his immediate family and trusts whose beneficiaries
include the Rubin family.

Both businesses have grown substantially over the last few years, creating an increasing challenge in managing very different
activities within a single entity. Following a review, the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) concluded that given the
different management approaches risk profiles and capital requirements in the trading and investment businesses, that the
success of both businesses in the future would be best achieved if they operated independently through the demerger of the
investment business from the existing group.

The demerger will not result in any significant change to the tax arising on the two groups’ continuing operations.

Core Businesses
The Group comprises two core businesses: JD and Pentland Brands.

e  JD Sports Fashion ple, which forms the largest trading activity of the Group, is a leading international retailer of branded
sportswear, fashion and outdoor clothing and equipment, in which the Group holds a 51.89% share. JD is listed on the
London Stock Exchange premium main market and operates mainly in the UK, US and the EU. The Board recognises
the independent operation of the JD board of directors, who manage the JD business and the determination of its
purpose and strategy as they are closest to their markets and stakeholders. JD publishes its own annual report and its
specific strategy, which is available from www.jdplc.com.

e  Our Pentland Brands Division holds some of the world’s best sports, outdoor and lifestyle brands. It owns Speedo,
Berghaus, Canterbury of New Zealand, ellesse, Endura, SeaVees, KangaROOS and Mitre.

Purpose
Building and delivering positive brands in sports outdoor and fashion.

Values
As a privately-owned family business, our values are resolutely family based. Honesty, fairness, respect, and hard work run
through all that we do, and we believe in creating and maintaining a culture that promotes these values.

Strategy and Business Model

Strategy
The Company creates value through the active allocation of resources to underlying trading businesses which are actively
monitored by the Group. The Group encompasses the Pentland Brands businesses and its majority shareholding in JD.

On a consolidated basis, JD represents the main driver of the Group’s financial performance. JD’s core business is focused on
branded sports fashion and outdoor product categories, via an omnichannel shopping experience. The principal JD fascia has long
been established as a leading retailer of sports fashion apparel and footwear in the UK and Ireland. More recently, the business
has, in particular, expanded its US presence through acquisition. The JD business continued to expand its global footprint during
2021, operating at the end of the period through 3,400 stores across 37 countries and employing 65,000 staff.

Business Model
The Group comprises two businesses, each with their own business model.

JD, as outlined above, is the significant proportion of the Group’s consolidated performance.

The Pentland Brands Division builds brands in sports, outdoor and lifestyle through the design, sourcing and, marketing of
products which are sold globally, through a network of retailers, distributors and licensees, as well as direct to consumers through
the brand’s websites.

As a result of the demerger of Group businesses outlined above, the Investment Division was divested from this holding company
during the year in a transaction reflecting fair value of the underlying investments. Consequently, the results for the Investment
Division are reflected for a part year and as a discontinued operation.



Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Strategic Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Business Performance
Group Results

Despite the continuing disruption caused by the global COVID-19 pandemic, and related supply chain issues, Group turnover grew
strongly in 2021, largely reflecting a strong growth of JD in both the US and UK/Ireland. Profit attributable to shareholders
reduced by 71% as fair value gain of the underlying investment portfolio reduced to £68.0m in 2021 from £526.1m in 2020.

»  Total turnover increased by 36% to £8,944.0m of which continuing operations were £8,925.9m
+  Group operating profit before amortisation of intangibles, exceptional items and other operating income increased by
109% to £1,040.6m
»  Exceptional items of £368.8m (2020: £141.0m) relate to impairment of assets, fair value movements on options held
by non-controlling interests, integration costs and other provisions. Refer to note 3
Profit attributable to shareholders after non-controlling interests was £143.0m (2020: £492.3m)
Net funds* position at the year-end increased to £1,446.1m (2020: £1,102.2m). Refer to note 29
Group net assets as at 31 December 2021 were £2,453.4m (2020: £2,660.0m)
Continuing significant investment in its infrastructure and retail footprint gives the Group the platform for future
. development ' ' '

*Net funds refer to the Group’s cash and cash equivalents balance less deductions for overdrafts, loans and finance leases.
Events After the Reporting Period

The following material events have taken place within the Group since the year end.

Sighiﬁcant JD Transaction _

On 5 August 2022, JD completed on the sale of Footasylum Limited and its associated subsidiaries to AURELIUS Group for
£37.5m. The sale was agreed in accordance with the final undertakings issued by the Competition and Markets Authorlty on 14
January 2022, following the decision to prohibit JD’s acquisition of Footasylum last year.

Full details of the transaction can be found on the Regulatory News & Results section of www.jdplc.com.

Please see note 33 for further details and other significant events after the reporting period.

Summary of Key Performance Indicators

Group key performance indicators are:

2021 2020

Note £m £m

Turnover 2 8,944.0 6,595.7
Operating profit before amortisation of intangibles and

exceptional items 3 1,040.6 4991

Operating profit i 477.4 369.8

Profit for the financial year 379.8 613.7

Profit attributable to shareholders 143.0 492.3

Net funds 29 1,446.1 1,102.2
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Strategic Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Directors’ Responsibilities

The duty of the directors is to act in good faith with a view to the best interests of the Company. Our success requires the Board
and its committees to maintain an approach to strategic, financial and operational decision-making that ensures the careful
deployment of the Company’s capital and resources and the active management of relationships with the trading businesses we
own and invest in.

Whilst the successful delivery of the Company’s purpose depends upon effective engagement with its stakeholders, the Board is
mindful of its subsidiaries’ responsibilities to their own stakeholders. The Board expects the boards of its subsidiaries to manage
their businesses and to determine their particular strategy and business model, as they are the closest to the markets and
stakeholders they serve. In doing so, those boards are expected to engage appropriately with their stakeholders.

While the Company endeavours to serve the interests of all stakeholders, our primary responsibility is to engage with and support
those stakeholders whom we can influence directly. At the same time, we actively engage with our subsidiary companies through
our representation on their boards.

Shareholders

The Company operates as a collective investment vehicle for the Rubin family, providing them with a diversified exposure to
underlying trading businesses. The Company creates value through the active allocation of resources to underlying trading
businesses, which are actively monitored by the Group. The value created for our shareholders translates into dividends and the
movement in underlying value of shareholders’ equity in the Group.

The Board includes five members of the shareholding family. The COVID-19 pandemic continued to place constraints on the
Board’s physical opportunity to meet to consider Company business in the early part of the year, but the Board continued to
embrace the use of technology and has relied on the directors and family members being represented on the boards and
management teams of its subsidiaries, to ensure proper discharge of duties across the Group.

Underlying Trading Businesses

The Board closely evaluates the performance of its trading subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, influencing major strategic
changes and intervening where shortcomings are identified. It does so by appointing nominated members to act as representatives
on the boards of those businesses, where appropriate.

Communities

We believe in doing the right thing, not the easy thing — as individuals and as an organisation. Respect for people and the
environment has always been at the heart of our business and we strive to make all our decisions in good conscience. Our focus it
to:

*  Help people to live active, healthy lifestyles by building a business with social purpose
e  Protect human rights by doing business ethically and sustainably
* Enable an ethical and transparent supply chain; and
e Reduce the environmental impact of our operations and materials
Risk Management

Taking risk is an inevitable aspect of the businesses we operate within and so risk management is a fundamental part of achieving
our strategy. Risk is present in everything we do, and it is therefore our policy to identify, assess and manage the key areas of risk
on a proactive basis. We seek to embed risk management into the culture of the Group without introducing unnecessary
bureaucracy. The identification and management of risk is a key role of the teams who run our operating companies.

Risk Management Process

The Board sets and oversees the Group’s overall risk management strategy and the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls,
with support from the Company’s Audit and Risk Committee and the Head of Internal Audit. Any matters of particular concern
are escalated for presentation to the Board. Our approach is three-pronged:

e Prevent: Create and maintain a culture that promotes our values. We strive to establish good risk
management by implementing policies, procedures, training and communication and by offering advice and
support
Detect: Introduce controls to identify issues, reviews and opportunities to speak up; and
Respond: Confront issues swiftly and remediate them effectively and appropriately

As with any system of internal control, risk management policies and processes are designed to manage, not eliminate, the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal and emerging risks are discussed and monitored throughout the year to identify changes to the risk landscape. The
COVID-19 pandemic continued to have an impact on the Group’s business operations, particularly in the UK, and the risk
landscape across the Group.

The Company recognises that failure to comply with regulations or reporting requirements may result in financial or reputational damage
to the business. In addition, it is conscious that any perceived non-compliance or perceived failure to meet these codes and standards can
be as equally damaging. The Group’s internal audit function monitors compliance with key regulations and the effectiveness of the control
environment of the Group’s activities.

The Group provides training where required and operates a confidential whistleblowing hotline for colleagues to raise concemns in
confidence.

At a Group level the principal risks and uncertainties primarily relate to JD (due to its scale and reach relative to the rest of the
Group). Those risks are primarily in the areas of supply chain, the environment, labour standards, governance and regulation,
people, property and technology. There are also significant financial and economic risks. These risks are managed and mitigated
by the board of JD. More details of these risks and the ways in which they are mitigated can be found on the JD website and in
their annual accounts accessible through www.jdplc.com.

Similar risks arise elsewhere within the Group, though with more limited scope and impact.

Corporate and Social Responsibility

The Group recognises that it has a responsibility to ensure its business is carried out in a way that ensures the highest standards
by behaving ethically and respecting people and the environment. With the help and co-operation of all employees, the Group
endeavours to comply with all relevant laws in order to meet that best practice and responsibility wherever it operates. In relation
to subsidiaries other than JD, the boards of directors of each subsidiary are empowered to set and implement their own standards
appropriate to their specific circumstances, but their standards and performance are reviewed against Pentland Group
expectations in terms of overall compliance. The JD board set their own standards and policies in relation to Corporate & Social
Responsibility and more details can be found in their annual accounts accessible through www.jdplc.com.

Although operating individually, the Group seeks to ensure that its subsidiaries and manufacturing partners do business in a
manner consistent with its own aims in relation to employees, customers, business partners and the environment.

The face of corporate responsibility has changed immensely. With more scrutiny than ever before on how businesses are
demonstrating value not only to consumers but also to society, operating responsibly is not just a ‘nice-to-have’ — it is a crucial
denominator of business success. Corporate responsibility has always been embedded in the Pentland Group and it continues to
be of the highest priority.

Our Partnerships and Memberships

Memberships

To truly facilitate change it is essential to take a collaborative approach. The Group is committed to being an environmentally and
socially responsible business, so we work in collaboration with organisations which share this goal. Through its subsidiaries, the
Group is an active member and supporter of the organisations listed.

e UN Global Compact (signatory since 2001) — The UN Global Compact is a global call to businesses to align their
strategies with environmental and societal goals. We are a signatory and fully support its ten principals on human rights,
labour, environment and anti-corruption

e World Federation of the Sporting Goods Industry (members) — The WFSGI is an independent non-profit
association, representing the global sporting goods industry. It promotes responsible business practices and encourages
more people to become involved in sport

e Institute of Business Ethics (members) — The Institute of Business Ethics promotes high standards of business
behaviour based on ethical values. It aids organisations to strengthen their ethical culture through the sharing of
knowledge and good practice

¢ Ethical Trading Initiative (members since 1998) - This alliance of companies, trade unions and voluntary
organisations collaborates to improve the lives of workers around the world

e Action Collaboration Transformation (members since 2016) — Pentland Brands is a founding member of ACT
which brings together brands, retailers, manufacturers and trade unions to address the issue of living wages in the textile
and garment supply chain

e Sustainable Apparel Coalition (members since 2011) — This industry alliance, of which Pentland Brands is a
member, focuses on developing tools to improve and standardise the reporting of environmental impact across the
supply chain

e  Afirm Group (members since 2010) — This is an industry collaborative effort to reduce the use and impact of harmful
substances in the apparel and footwear supply chain; and

¢ Leather Working Group (members since 2007) - This industry group aims to improve the environmental
compliance and performance capability of tanners and promotes sustainable business practices within the leather
industry

Details on JD’s memberships and partnerships can be seen in their annual report.
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Education :

We support a number of academic institutions and charities doing great work for the arts and education, the environment and
sustainability and promoting health and well-being through sport. We also encourage our people to volunteer their time to support
charities and to share their business experience within schools and colleges in their local communities.

Charities
The Group continued to give back to those in need during the year in a number of different ways. The causes supported reflect the
values and priorities of the shareholders, management and employees of the Group.

The Rubin Foundation continued to support charities focused on climate change, inequality, health and education. The
Foundation continues to support the Pentland Centre for Sustainability in Business at Lancaster University, which it founded in
2015. The Centre carries out research to find practical solutions to social and environmental challenges. The Foundation also offers
an annual scholarship for a graduate from the Southern Hemisphere at University College London (UCL). The Pentland Churchill
Scholarship offers the opportunity to study at UCL’s Department of Political Science and New York University Wagner to become
an Executive Master of Public Administration.

The Group supports The Prince’s Trust Enterprise Programme, which provides young entrepreneurs with the learning, mentoring
and funding opportunities to start their businesses. Through Pentland Brands, it also supports In Kind Direct, an organisation
that distributes donated products to charitable organisations in the UK and abroad. The Group has supported both these
impressive organisations for over 20 years.

The JD Foundation, established in 2015, supports UK youth charities working with a range of disadvantaged communities
throughout the UK, from those tackling youth homelessness, mental health and unemployment, to others providing support for
families dealing with undiagnosed heart conditions, terminal illness and bereavement. To date, the JD Foundation raised £4.1m
in funds, of which £3.6m has been donated across 19 charity partners reaching over 121,000 people directly. Details of the work
the JD Foundation has undertaken with its charity partners can be found in the JD Foundation Social Impact Report.

As part of its 100-1-0 Positive Business strategy, Pentland Brands has committed to donating 1% of profits to charitable causes
every year. In 2021, they continued to support several charity partners in communities where they operate to help disadvantaged
young people through empowerment and sport. Additionally, their Charity Network, which is made up of employee volunteers
from each of their sites around the world, identified ways to donate local charity funds and support worthwhile causes in their
regions. Details of the organisations and charities supported by Pentland Brands can be found at
http://www.pentlandbrands.com/charity-partners.

Our People

The talented individuals working within the Group are integral to our continuous success, delivering exceptional results year after
year. As the Group expands globally, so does the network of people who operate in accordance with our values and standards.
This is successfully achieved by focusing on recruitment, wellbeing and the development of people who have what it takes to thrive
within this fast-paced and exhilarating business environment.

The Group is committed to promoting policies which are designed to ensure that employees, and those who seek to work for the
Group businesses, are treated equally and with respect, regardless of age, disability, ethnicity, gender, marital status, religion,
social background or sexual orientation.

The Group believes that being transparent about our goals is crucial to achieving them and Group businesses publish UK Gender
Pay Gap reporting on their respective corporate websites.

Recruitment
Over 60,000 people work directly within our Group of businesses all over the world. Our businesses set out to attract the best
talent and acknowledge the continuation of this process as an important factor in their continuous evolution.

Both JD and Pentland Brands have careers websites enabling prospective employees to see up to the minute vacancy information.
Furthermore, they are actively engaged on digital platforms such as LinkedIn and continue to explore additional avenues to
promote attractive employment propositions to the industry leaders of tomorrow.

JD recognises the prevalence of social inequality in the UK and feels passionately about reducing barriers to entry to employment
for young people who are socially and economically disadvantaged. JD is proud of its participation in the Kickstart scheme which
was delivered in partnership with The Prince’s Trust. It’s available to young people aged 16 to 24 who were previously on Universal
Credit and faced significant barriers to employment. Over 1,000 people to date have progressed through the programme, with
90% offered permanent roles within the JD Group.

Diversity & Inclusion
Our Group businesses are continually working to build diverse and inclusive work cultures where everyone feels a true sense of
belonging.

JD promotes inclusion and raises awareness for fairness and equality through campaigns (LGBTQ+ Pride, Black History Month)
and International Days for both women and men. JDs Diversity and Inclusivity champions meet regularly to discuss equality,
diversity and inclusion topics, offering insights and lived experiences on how the JD group can continue to be an inclusive
employer. As a founding member of Diversity in Retail, JD encourages diverse and inclusive environments internally and
externally, ensuring where possible that its support of all areas of society is reflected on social media and within its culture as a
business.

In 2021, Pentland Brands launched four employee networks, created a diversity, people and inclusion learning series, and started
collecting diversity data from its employees. Pentland Brands recognises that diversity and inclusion is a broad topic,
encompassing a range of important issues. It aims to improve the representation of women and people from ethnic minority
groups in director level roles, which it plans to do through a combination of continued succession planning, talent pipeline
development and external recruitment.
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Wellbeing
Employee wellbeing is very important to the Group and our businesses promote health and wellbeing in a number of ways.

JD offers support and resources, including information and training through its Wellbeing Network, promoting physical fitness
through access to subsidised gym membership and offering financial advice and education. It continues to achieve excellence in
the areas of Health and Safety and the protection of its colleagues in their working environment.

Pentland Brands has a number of tools and resources to help employees be at their best. They offer all employees unlimited access
to online programmes, such as Unmind, to support mental wellbeing and have recently trained 20+ mental health first aiders to
provide peers with support. They also offer confidential 24/7 access to counsellors and information specialists in emotional,
health, management, legal, debt, elder and younger care and financial. They also introduced flexible working in 2021 to further
support employees’ work-life balance. Additionally, Pentland Brands has gym access at some offices and also offer employees
discounted gym memberships.

Development

A vital component of the Group’s strategy is our commitment to the development of our people, whether this is our focus on
internal progression or ensuring the talent we acquire is provided with the very best resources and knowledge to excel in their
careers. .

L
Our businesses have learning strategies to provide employees with access to a blend of e-learning, face-to-face tuition, and
experiential learning.

JD is proud to encourage and provide different pathways for personal and professional growth. Its dedicated Development Team
produces and delivers learning material worldwide to its colleagues, covering a broad range of operational, behavioural, leadership
and technology topics. There are thousands of courses available, including its industry-leading Management and Supervisor
Development programmes and extensive early career choices.

Over the last few years, JD has worked alongside internal and external stakeholders to promote apprenticeships as a development
opportunity across the organisation. It currently has over 270 apprentices and has successfully recruited 40 of those externally.
Its apprenticeship programmes are extensive and cover many different functions within Retail, Distribution Centre and Head
Office. )

Pentland Brands provides development resources around topics including peer to peer mentoring, videos and useful guides to aid
self-directed learning and unlimited LinkedIn Learning, designed to help its people develop their skills autonomously and in a
way that works for them.

Engagement
The Group sees employee engagement as a key aspect of ensuring that employees within Group businesses remain motivated and
well informed.

JD connects with employees via its ‘my hub’ mobile app, which helps the business to communicate, connect and share benefits
with its employees.

Pentland Brands continually evolving intranet contains a complete library of material, giving employees the opportunity to learn
about the business. They also host all-company webinars, townhall briefings and team huddles to keep employees informed of
performance and strategy. They conduct an employee feedback survey to understand what people think about working for
Pentland Brands. The survey allows the company to access feedback, almost immediately, and to make improvements -
encouraging conversations and action at both a local and global level.

Environmental Considerations

The Group recognises that it has a responsibility to manage the impact its businesses have on the environment and is committed
to carrying out its activities with due consideration for any potential environmental impact, both now and in the future. We
continue to comply with the UK Government Carbon Reduction Commitment and have the following as the key areas of focus:

Ensuring compliance with relevant legislation and codes of best practice
Ensuring efficient use of energy and other materials

Responsibly managing our use of chemicals

Reducing the environmental impact of our supply chain and own operations; and
Increasing our use of sustainable materials

Key Achievements
Some key achievements across the Group include:

e JD retained an ‘A-’ rating in the 2021 Carbon Disclosure Project Climate Change assessment and attained an ‘A’ grade
for Climate Change Supply Chain Engagement. JD also retained a ‘B’ rating for Water Stewardship in the 2021 Carbon
Disclosure Project Climate Change assessment

o JD approved Scope 1 and Scope 2 Science Based targets, targeting a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions of 67.2% by
2035-36. JD also submitted their Scope 3 Science Based targets, committing to reduce absolute Scope 3 greenhouse gas
emissions from textiles and footwear, within the purchased goods and services category, by 67.2% by 2035-36 (targets
are measured against a 2019-20 base year reflecting the more ambitious 1.5 degree Celsius scenario)

» JD sourced 98% of cotton through the ‘Better Cotton’ initiative

e JD became one of the founding signatories to the Waste and Resource Action Plan (‘WRAP’) Textiles 2030 initiative
with their private labels aiming to cut carbon by 50% and water by 30%

e JD successfully trialled the ‘Together We Can’ project which raises funds through micro-donations at the till point and
aims to provide education opportunities to those working in our factories, enhancing career opportunities and providing
financial support
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o  Pentland Brands’ UK offices and distribution centres send zero waste to landfill. Anything that cannot be recycled is
used to generate energy and, in the UK, our offices use 100% renewable energy

e In2021, the brands across the Pentland Brands portfolio worked to design products with a lower environmental impact,
with Endura planning to reach carbon negativity as early as 2024. Berghaus increased the number of products in its
MADEKIND™ range by 34% in 2021 and Canterbury designed its latest Pro jersey from 100% recycled polyester, using
21% less CO2 on average

e  Brands within the Pentland Brands portfolio planted six million trees in 2021 to support reforestation and biodiversity,
and will plant another six million in 2022 and fifty million by 2032

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

We report the gross gréenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and energy consumption as required under UK Streamlined Energy and
Carbon Reports (SECR) legislation. An ‘operational control’ approach has been used to define the Greenhouse Gas emissions
boundary. This approach captures emissions associated with the operation of all buildings such as warehouses, offices, and
manufacturing sites, plus company-owned and leased transport. The data below includes emissions from the energy we use in the
Group’s operations in the UK, which include retail stores run by JD in the UK and in Pentland Brands’ UK offices and distribution
¢entres.

The consumption and emissions data reported correspond with the financial year for Petland Brands, while JD data corresponds
to JD’s financial year ended 29 January 2022.

2021 2020
Total Energy Consumption - Electricity (MWh)) 102,759 76,367
Energy Usage — Natural Gas (MWh) 30,974 22,751
‘Total Eriergy Use (MWh) 133,733 99,118
Carbon Emissions Location Based (Tonnes CO2e) 24,958 20,652
Carbon Emissions Market Based (Tonnes CO2e) 6,123 n/a*
| Intensity metric: Location based emissions (kgCOze/m2) 28.28 305
Intensity metric: Market based emissions (kgCOze/m2) 6.94 n/a*

. Aﬁér}mpr’ovfng our repo'rting meéhanisms,' the Group is now able to provide market-based carbon emissions data for 2021, Comparative data for
2020 is not available.

In line with the GHG protocol on dual reporting, we have disclosed both market and location-based emissions for purchased
electricity in 2021. The 2021 emissions figure for purchased electricity above reflects our investment in a zero-carbon electricity
tariff at all our sites. In the terms of the Greenhouse Gas Protocol, this is called ‘market-based’ reporting - as opposed to ‘location-

based’ reporting. Location-based reporting does not take into account the electricity supply contracts a company has and instead’

uses a national carbon emissions factor for electricity, reflecting the diverse source of electnclty generation supplied to the national
grid.

As required under UK SECR legislation, we have apphed an'intensity factor to our greenhouse gas emissions expréssed in
kilograms CO2e per meter squared.

Going Concern

The Board have modelled a range of base and downside scenarios based upon currently available information supporting a range
of most likely outcomes arising from the current economic uncertainty caused by inflationary pressure, rise in interest rates and

global supply chain readjustment. Based on the various cashflow scenarios projected, the Board believe that the Group has’

sufficient financial resources to be able to meet any reasonably predictable liquidity requirements of the Company and those of its
wholly owned subsidiaries for the foreseeable future. The Company does not provide any direct or indirect financial support or
guarantees to JD and the responsibility for assessing the viability of its operations rest with the JD board of directors. The JD
board have concluded, following their viability assessment that the JD group has a reasonable expectation of being able to continue
in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the three-year period of their assessment. Accordingly, having regard to
both the Company’s cash flow scenarios and the conclusions of the JD board's viability assessment, the Board have a reasonable
expectation that the Company, and the Group as a whole, has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, the going concern basis of preparation of these financial statements remains appropriate.

By or f the Board
T E Cullen

Joint Secretary
Date: 28 November 2022
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their Director’s Report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

As a family-owned business, the Company’s purpose is to build and deliver positive brands in sports, outdoor and fashion. In
pursuit of its purpose, the Company devolves to the boards of its subsidiaries, responsibilities for the management of their
business, including the determination of their own purpose, strategy and business model as they are closest to their markets and
to the stakeholders they serve.

We believe in creating and maintaining a culture that promotes our values. We strive to establish good risk management by
implementing policies, procedures, training and communication and by offering advice and support. Our values are embedded
within our Business Standards, which include a Code of Business Conduct, an Ethics and Integrity policy, an Employment
Standards policy, our Tax Strategy, a Code of Employment Conduct for suppliers and an Environment and Sustainability Policy.

Leadership

The holding company Board is responsible for creating the framework within which the Group operates and is collectively
responsible to the Company’s shareholders and stakeholders for the direction, promotion and oversight to ensure its long-term
success. Members of the Board also have executive and non-executive positions on the boards of those businesses, where
appropriate, to ensure an appropriate level of engagement and representation of the Group in the board decision making
processes.

In discharging its duties, the Board draws on a range of capabilities and experience, including:

Deployment of capital and resources
Strategic business development
Leadership and team development
Industry experience and network
Entrepreneurial approach

Governance and risk management; and
Corporate financial management

Other core activities include obtaining assurance that material risks to the Group are identified, defining the Group’s appetite for
risk and ensuring that appropriate systems of risk management and internal control exist to mitigate such risks, as well as
responsibility for ensuring the effectiveness of, and reporting on, the system of corporate governance. The Board also monitors
performance, approves budgets and material initiatives and commitments. It has a clearly articulated set of matters which are
specifically reserved for its determination. The Board is responsible for setting the levels of delegated authority, whilst retaining
overall responsibility for the governance of the Group.

The Board comprises nine directors with a range of sector expertise. The name, position and brief profile of each director is set
out below. Invitations to join and participate at relevant points during Board meetings are extended to other senior executives
within the Group and external advisors when appropriate.

Operation of the Board

The Board has an annual calendar of meetings, the timetable of which is set in the prior year to ensure that regular meetings are
scheduled and other meetings held, as required, for the Board and its committees to discharge their respective duties sufficiently.
Papers are circulated prior to meetings to facilitate the effective flow of latest information. If directors are unable to attend a
meeting, they still receive and read documents for consideration at that meeting and have the opportunity to relay their comments
prior to the meeting.

The Board of Directors

Stephen Rubin — Executive Chair and Chair of the Remuneration Committee — Aged 84
Appointed on 27 November 2019

Stephen has been Executive Chair of the Pentland Group since 1964 and is also Executive Chair of the Investment Group headed
by Pentland Capital Holdings Limited. He is a law graduate of University College, London, who trained as a barrister. He is life
President of the World Federation of the Sporting Goods Industry and has served as World President of the Textile Institute and
has won several awards from sportswear industries. He was awarded an OBE in 2002 for his work in business and human rights.
He has an honorary professorship at UCL School of Public Policy, holds a number of honorary doctorates, and serves as a Trustee
on a number of charities. Stephen is Chair of both the Group’s Board and Remuneration Committee and Chair of Pentland Capital
Holdings Limited.

Andrew Rubin — Executive Deputy Chair — Aged 57
Appointed 27 November 2019

Andy graduated from Trinity College, Cambridge and Harvard Business School, and, in between, worked for an investment bank,
prior to joining the family-owned business in 1991. Andy is also Deputy Chair of the Investment Group headed by Pentland Capital
Holdings Limited and has been chair of Pentland Brands since 2015, having previously been its CEO. Andy is vice-president for
Europe of the World Federation of the Sporting Goods Industry, is on the Family Advisory Council for Responsible Ownership at
the Oxford Said Business School, an Enterprise Fellow of the Prince’s Trust, a Trustee of In Kind Direct and an Ambassador for
Leaders Quest.
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Having grown significantly in recent years, and following a number of regulatory issues, the JD board engaged external advisors
to carry out a number of independent investigations. This has highlighted the need for both greater relevant experience on the
Board and more formalisation in governance systems, risk management recording, the documentation and appraisal of internal
controls and the mechanisms for reporting relevant matters to the regulatory authorities where appropriate. The JD board has
now completed the investigations and the governance review and have ratified a plan to rebase the governance, risk and control
environment which it is-anticipated will take approximately 18 months to deliver in full. Alongside these investigations, the board
reviewed the Group’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code in the context of the previously announced separation of
the Chair and Chief Executive roles. We welcome these necessary steps by the JD board to ensure the long term, sustainable growth
of the business and that JD embraces the scrutiny and responsibility which comes with being a FTSE 100 company.

An arms-length agreement remains in place between JD and Pentland, ensuring that the JD board are able to operate
independently in the interests of all stakeholders.

Directors’ Report Disclosures
Principal Activity
The Company’s principal activity is as the holding company of a trading group engaged in the retail and brand management of

footwear, clothing and related accessories in the sports, outdoor and fashion sectors both in the UK and internationally. The
Company is responsible for formulating and directing overall Group strategy. A list of subsidiary undertakings is set out in note

15.
Dividends

Interim dividends of £10m were declared and paid for the period, paid out of the share premium of the Company. The Board are
not recommending the payment of a final dividend for 2021 (2020: £nil).

Political Contributions & Expenditure

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries, have made any political donations or incurred any political expenditure during
the period under review.

Events After the Reporting Period

For significant events occurring after the balance date refer to the Strategic Report on page 3 and note 33.
Future Developments

Future developments are discussed throughout the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 8.

Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management

JD manage their own exposures to foreign exchange and interest rate risks. For more information, see their-annual accounts
accessible through www jdplc.com.

For the rest of the Group, transactions which are denominated in a foreign currency present risk and uncertainty as to their value
in an entity’s functional currency. Due to the significant volumes of USD and EUR flows across the rest of the Group, these are
managed centrally by Group Treasury on a combined rather than individual company basis. The objectives of this are to maximise
the efficiency benefits of group hedging and to provide a level of exchange rate certainty to individual companies to assist them
in the forecasting, planning and budgeting processes.

Third Party Indemnity Provisions

Throughout the year, the Company has provided an indemnity for the directors and officers of the Company.

People Policies & Engagement

The Group sees people policies and engagement as key aspects of ensuring that our teams remain motivated and well informed.
The Strategic Report on pages 6 and 7 provides information on the Group’s approach to people and how the Group attracts,
develops and engages with its employees.

Awards

The Group is proud to hold a Queen’s Award for Enterprise in the International Trade category. The Queen’s Awards are the most
prestigious UK awards for business performance, with the International Trade category recognising companies that have
demonstrated substantial growth overseas. This is our sixth Queen’s award, having previously held the award for Innovation,
Export Achievement and International Trade.

Compliance

The Group endeavours to comply with the requirements of relevant and material laws and regulations of each country in which
it operates.
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Directors’ Report (continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2021

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance
‘with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have elected to
prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102).

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that period. In.
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

o Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

¢ Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

e State whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements

¢ Assess the Group and Compariy’s ability to continue as a going concern disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern; and

s Usethe going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s

transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure

that the financial statements comply with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. They are responsible for such internal control as they

determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to.fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of
the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
company’s website. Legislation in Jersey governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Statement of Disclosure of Information to Auditor
In the case of each director in office at the date the directors report is approved, the following applies:

‘() so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group and Company’s auditors are
unaware; and

(b) he/she hastaken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director.in order to be aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Group and Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

“This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5113C.of the Companies (Jersey) Law
1991 (as amended).

Indépendent Auditor

The Company’s auditors, KPMG LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office.

By order of the Board

T E Cullen
Joint Secretary
Date: 28 November 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of Pentland Group Holdings Limited (continued)

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Pentland Group Holdings Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 31 December
2021 which comprise the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated

Balance Sheet, Company Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Company Statement of Changes in Equity,
Consolidated Cash flows and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 1.

In our opinion the financial statements:

s give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland of the state of the Group’s and of the parent Company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2021 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Group in
accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied other entities of public interest. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the Group or
the Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the Group and the Company’s financial position means
that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over
their ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going
concern period”).

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Group’s business model and analysed how
those risks might affect the Group and Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern
period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

¢ we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is appropriate;

« we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty related to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a guarantee that
the Group or the Company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could indicate an
incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included:

¢ Enquiring of directors, the audit committee, internal audit and inspection of policy documentation as to the Group’s high-
level policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the internal audit function, and the Group’s channel
for “whistleblowing”, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

¢ Reading Board and audit committee minutes for the Company and its significant components, including for discussion
of any legal or regulatory matters that may have been discussed by component management but not already disclosed to
us.

¢ Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management and directors.
e Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

o Due to governance issues identified in JD Sports Fashion plc, a subsidiary of the Group, a forensic specialist was involved
in the risk assessment and assisted in identifying key fraud risks for this component. This included attending the Risk
Assessment and Planning Discussion, holding a discussion with the relevant members of the component audit team, and
assisting with designing relevant audit procedures to respond to the identified fraud risks. The forensic specialists also
attended meetings with both Executive and Non-Executive Directors of JD Sports Fashion plc and external advisors and
assisted with certain procedures including shadowing investigations ongoing during the course of the audit.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud throughout
the audit. This included communication from the Group audit team to full scope component audit teams of relevant fraud risks
identified at the Group level and request to full scope component audit teams to report to the Group audit team any instances of
fraud that could give rise to a material misstatement at the Group level.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account the dominance of a small number of Executive Directors of JD Sports
Fashion plc and the potential for management bias given the strong performance in the year, we performed procedures to address
the risk of management override of controls and the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition, in particular the risk that Group and
component management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries.

Further to this, additional fraud risks were identified for the JD Sports Fashion plc component in relation to the existence,
accuracy and presentation of accruals and the completeness and presentation of provisions and contingent liabilities in response
to the possible incentive to manipulate the component’s results, following recent strong performance

In determining the audit procedures we took into account the results of our evaluation and testing of the operating effectiveness
of the Group-wide fraud risk management controls.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of Pentland Group Holdings Limited (continued)

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect (continued)

In response to the governance issues identified in relation to JD Sports Fashion ple, for this component additional testing was
undertaken, including: additional enquiries of management; specific walkthroughs of procedures in place to identify non-
compliance with laws and regulations; additional focused journal testing; enquiries of the component’s internal counsel and
external legal advisors; additional testing of key supplier arrangements (including obtaining third party confirmations);
assessment of key accounting estimates for bias; and challenge of the scope of review carried out by the advisors appointed by the
Board to investigate certain actions taken by senior management.

We assessed whether any material prior period error existed in respect of information that was known or could reasonably have
been known to the directors at the date of authorisation of the financial statements for the prior period.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement related to compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial statements
from our general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with the directors and others management (as
required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Group’s regulatory and legal correspondence and discussed with the
directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance
throughout the audit. This included communication from the Group audit team to full-scope component audit teams of relevant
laws and regulations identified at the Group level, and a request for full scope component auditors to report to the Group audit
team any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that could give rise to a material misstatement at the Group
level.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial reporting
legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation, taxation legislation and pension legislation
in respect of defined benefit pensions schemes, and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part
of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could have a
material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines or litigation.
We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect: health and safety, anti-bribery, employment law, and
certain aspects of company legislation recognising the nature of the Group’s activities and its legal form. Auditing standards limit
the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and other
management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore if a breach of operational regulations is not
disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

For provisions made for ongoing legal cases or regulatory matters, the procedures performed included considering whether the
provision recognised is consistent with information received as part of our independent inquiries with JD Sports Fashion plc
management’s experts on status of those matters.

For the compliance matters described in Note 27, we assessed these disclosures against our understanding from legal
correspondence and enquiry of the Group's legal advisors on the matter and enquiry of the directors.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material
misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with
auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing standards
would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect
material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-
compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report, which comprises the Chairman’s
statement, Strategic report and Directors report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial statements audit
work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based
solely on that work we have not identified material misstatements in the other information.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
¢ proper accounting records have not been kept by the company, or
¢ proper returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
» the company’s accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of Pentland Group Holdings Limited (continued)

Directors’ responsibilities .

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 12, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group and parent
Company’s ability to-continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements. :

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Article 113A of the Companies (Jersey) Law
1991. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Olace gl

Aimie Keki

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square,

London,

Ei14 5GL

6 December 2022
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Consolidated profit and loss account
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021

2020
Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total operations operations Total
Note £m £m £m £m Em £m
Turnover o2 8,925.9 18.1 8,944.0 6,577.2 18.5 6,595.7
Cost of sales (4,604.6) (15.2) (4,619.8)  (3,390.5) (14.8) (3,405.3)
Gross profit 4,321.3 2.9 4,324.2 3,186.7 3.7 3,190.4
Distribution costs (2,340.8) - (2,340.8) (1,982.2) - (1,982.2)
Administrative expenses (927.5) (15.3) (942.8) (693.5) (15.6) (709.1)
Operating profit before amortisation
of intangibles and exceptional items 1,053.0 (2.49) 1,040.6 511.0 (11.9) 4991
Amortisation of goodwill and other
intangibles 3.1 (162.7) - (162.7) (75.4) - (75.4)
Exceptional items 3 (350.6) (18.2) (368.8) (137.8) (3.2) (141.0)
Other operating (expenses)/income (30.3) (1.4) (31.7) 87.1 - 871
Operating profit 3 509.4 (32.0) 477-4 384.9 (15.1) 369.8
Income from interests in associated
undertakings and joint ventures 157 ) 15.7 59 . 59
Profit on ordinary activities before
investment income, interest and 525.1 (32.0) 493.1 390.8 (15.1) 375.7
taxation
Income from other fixed asset investments - 0.5 0.5 - 0.6 0.6
Interest receivable and similar income 6 1.1 0.8 1.9 0.9 1.4 2.3
Interest payable and similar expenses 6 (8.4) - . (8.4 (7.3) (0.1) (7.4
Other finance charges 7 (0.1) (0.7) (0.8) - (1.1) (1.1)
Profit on disposal of business ’ - - - - 0.6 0.6
Net gain on fair value of investment } }
property 13 0.7 0.7 0.2 0.2
Profit/(loss) on disposal of intangibles (1.0) - (1.0) - - -
Realised gain/(loss) on disposal of _ _ ; 12 ) 12
associates/joint ventures ’ )
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair ) }
value through the profit and loss account 14,19 68.0 68.0 5261 526.1
Unrealised profits/(losses) on derivative _ R
financial instruments 24 57.8 57.8 (40.0) (40.0)
Profit before taxation 575.2 36.6 611.8 345.6 512.6 858.2
Tax on profit 8 (220.0) (12.0) (232.0) (125.3) (119.2) (244.5)
Profit for the financial year 355.2 24.6 379.8 220.3 393.4 613.7
Profit attributable to
Pentland Group Holdings Limited
shareholders 118.4 24.6 143.0 98.9 393.4 492.3
Non-controlling interests 236.8 - 236.8 121.4 - 121.4

The notes on pages 25 to 78 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited :
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020

Note £m £m
Profit for the financial year o 379.8 613.7
Other comprehensi\{e (loss)/income
Re-measurement of net defined benefit obligation . 7 ) 18.0 (15.2)
Revaluation of tangible assets on transfer to investment property - 0.3
Currency translation differences : (33.8) (46.2
Total tax on components of other comprehensive (loss)/income 8 (8.2) 3.5
Other comprehensive loss for the year net of tax ) (24.0) (57.6)
Tdtal comprehensive income for the year 355.8 556.1
Total comprehensive income attributable to
Pentland Group Holdings Limited shareholders 149.9 452.8
Non-controlling interests : 205.9 103.3

355.8 556.1

The notes on pages 25 to 78 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2021

) 2021 2020
Note £m Em
Fixed assets
Intangible assets ) 11 1,377.5 888.4
Tangible assets ' .12 724.2 640.0
Investment property : . 13 3.0 . 9.1
Non-current investments 14 - 465.
Associated undertakings and joint ventures 14 78.5 .- 312
2,183.2 2,034.3
Current assets
Inventories : 16 1,114.7 922,0
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 17 438.6 287.0
Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year 18 6.3 9.4
Current investments 19 - 549.0
Cash and cash equivalents 20 1,605.8 1,306.5
Deferred tax asset within 12 months 25 33.3 23.0
Deferred tax asset after 12 months R 25 . 29.9 0.2
3,228.6 3,097.1
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 21 (1,856.3) (1,674.3)
Net current assets 1,372.3 1,422.8
Total assets less current liabilities ‘ 3,555.5 34571
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 22 (912.9) (543.1)
Provisions for liabilities 23 (35.3) 8.2)
Deferred tax liability 25 (123.7) (176.5)
Post-employment benefits 7 (30.2) (69.3)
Net assets 2,453-4 2,660.0
Capitkl and reserves
Called up share capital 26 1.0 1.0
Share premium account 26 4,410.0 5,129.0
Revaluation reserve ) - 3.4
Merger reserve (5,128.9) (5,128.9)
Other capital reserve (414.5) (308.3)
Fair value reserve 0.7 701.8
Profit and loss account 2,071.8 1,306.3
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 940.1 1,704.3
Non-controlling interests 1,513.3 955.7
Total equity ' 2,453.4 2,660.0

The notes on pages 25 to 78 are an integral part of these financial statements. The financial statements on pages 16 to 78 were
approved by the board of directors on 28 November 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

R S Rubin
Director
Pentland Group Holdings Limited

Registered m

18

Lo i : i o ; .
P T S S o - S e s et e it reaTiad = i



Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2021

2021

, 2020
" Note £m £m
Fixed assets .
Investment in subsidiary 14 4,421.0 5,130.0
4,421.0 '5,130.0
Current assets .
Debtors: amouats falling due within one year 17 0.1 -
Cash and cash equivalents : 20 0.2 -
0.3 -
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year : 21 (11.0). (0.3)
Net current liabilities. (10.7) (0.3)
Net assets 4,410.3 5,129.7
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 26 1.0 1.0
Share premium account 26 4,410.0 5,129.0
Profit and loss account (0.7) (0.3)
Total shareholders’ equity 4,410.3 5,129.7

The loss for the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 was £0.4m (16-month period ended 31 December 2020: £0.3m).

The notes on pages 23 to 78 are an integral part of these financial statements.

by:

Registered number: 12
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‘ Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Called up Share Other Fair Profit Total Non-
share premium Merger capital Revaluation value andloss attributable controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve  reserve* account to owners interest equity
Note £m £m £Em £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 2021 1.0 5,129.0 (5,128.9) (308.3) 3.4 701.8 1,306.3 1,704.3 955.7 ° 2,660.0
; .. Profit for the financial year - - - - - 18.9 124.1 143.0 236.8 379.8
' Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - - - - 4.8 2.1 6.9 (30.9) (24.0)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 23.7 126.2 149.9 205.9 355.8
Dividends 9 - (10.0) - - - - - (10.0) (9.1) (19.1)
' Non-controlling interest arising on acquisition - To- - - - - - - 42.6 42.6
. _ Divestment of non-controlling interest - - - - - - (2.9) (2.9) 45.7 42.8
Put options held by non-controlling interests - - - (106.2) - - - (106.2) - (106.2)
Change in ownership interest without loss of )
- - - - - - 183.5 183.5 272.5 456.0
control
Demerger of the Investment Group (note 5) - (709.0) - - (3.4) (724.8) 458.7 (978.5) - (978.5)
Bal as at 31 D ber 2021 1.0 4,410.0 (5,128.9)  (414.5) - 0.7 2,071.8 940.1 1,513.3 2,453.4
*Fair value reserve represents unrealised gains/(losses) on current and non-current investments held at fair value, as well as i properties, ised within the lidated profit and loss account but presented separately for visibility.

The notes on pages 25 to 78 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Called up Share Other Fair Profit Total Non-
share premium Merger  capital  Revaluation value andloss attributable controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve  reserve* account to owners interest equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 2020 1.0 5,129.0  (5,099.9) (39.1) 2.5 177.0 1,302.3 1,472.8 632.6 2,105.4
i
Profit for the financial year - - - - - 526.3 (34.0) 492.3 . 1214 . 613.7
Y Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - - (0.3) 0.3 (1.5) (38.0) (39.5) (18.1) (57.6)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (0.3) 0.3 524.8 (72.0) 452.8 103.3 556.1
Acquisition of non—coxitrolling interests . - - - 2.7 - - 2.7) ’ - - -
Disposals of non-controlling interests - - - - - - (0.9) (0.9) 1.0 0.1
Share capital reduction - - (29.0) - - - 29.0 - - -
; Put options held by non-controlling interests - - - {274.9) - - - (274.9) - (274.9)
] Non-controlling interest arising on acquisitions . - - - - - - 52.3 52.3 218.8 271.1
d Other movements - - - 3.3 0.6 - 1.7) 2.2 - 2.2
Bal as at 31 D ber 2020 1.0 5,129.0 (5,128.9) (308.3) 3.4 701.8 1,306.3 1,704.3 955.7 2,660.0
: *Fair value reserve represents unrealised gains/(losses) on current and non-current investments held at fair value, as well as i properties, ised within the lidated profit and loss account but presented separately for visibility.

The notes on pages 25 to 78 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Company statement of changes in equity
For the period ended 31 December 2021

Called up Share premium Profit and loss
share capital account “account Total eqility
Note : £m : " Em ’ £m : £m
Balance as at 1 January 2021 1.0 -5,129.0 (0.3) 5,129.7
3 Loss for the period - - (0.4) (0.4)
§ Other comprehensive income for the period - - - -
3 .
! Total comprehensive loss for the period - - (0.49) (0.4)
Dividends : 9 - ' (10.0) - (10.0)
Capital reduction - 26 - (709.0) - (709.0)
§
: Bal as at 31 D ber 2021 1.0 4,410.0 0.7) 4,410.3
1 .
3
The notes on pages 25 to 78 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited .
Company statement of changes in equity
For the period ended 31 December 2020

Called up Share premium Profit and loss
share capital account account Total equity
Note £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 September 2019 - - - -
Loss for the period - - (0.3) {0.3)
_ Other comprehensive income for the period - - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the period - - (0.3) (0.3)
Issue of shares 1.0 5,129.0 - 5,130.0
Balance as at 31 December 2020 1.0 5,129.0 (0.3)

5,129.7

The notes on pages 25 to 78 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2020

2021

Note £m £m
Net cash from operating activities 28 1,120.8 1,021.3
Taxatjon paid (223.8) (97.0)
Net cash generated from operating activities 897.0 924.3
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received 1.8 1.9
Dividends received from associated undertakings 14 23.2 5.7
Dividends received 0.5 0.7
Purchase of tangible assets 12,13 (19s5.5 (110.1)
Purchase of intangible assets 11 (22.4) (27.7)
Purchase of fixed asset investments 14 (53.9) (45.3)
Investment in associated undertakings and joint ventures 14 (57.1) (0.4)
Purchase of current asset investments 19 (35.2) (6.8)
Proceeds from sale of tangible assets 1.5 0.6
Proceeds from salé of intangible assets 7.6 1.2
Proceeds from sale of current asset investments - 4.6
Proceeds from sale of fixed asset investments 54.2 37.4
Purchase of businesses, net of cash acquired 10 (560.3) (347.2)
Net cash disposed of with subsidiary undertakings 10 - (0.1)
Net cash used in investing activities (835.6) (485.5)
Cash flow from financing activities
Equity dividends paid to shareholders 9 (10.0) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (9.1) -
Net drawdown/(repayment) of external borrowings 29 (235.5) 62.5
Proceeds received from issue of JD shares 456.0 -
Acquisition and divestment of non-controlling interests 42.5 -
Derecognition of cash on the demerger of the Investment Group 5 (28.3) -
Interest paid . 6 (8.4) (6.8)
Net cash generated from financing activities 207.2 55.7
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 29 268.6 494.5
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 29 1,306.5 814.2
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents 29 (5.1) (2.2)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,570.0 1,306.5
Cash and cash equivalents consist of
Cash at bank and in hand 20 1,187.2 1,045.1
Short term deposits (included in current assets) 20 418.6 261.4
Bank overdrafts 29 (35.8) Co-
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,570.0 1,306.5

The notes on pages 25 to 78 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

General information

Pentland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a private company limited by shares and is incorporated in Jersey. The
Company’s registered office is 26 New Street, St. Heher Jersey, JE2 3RA. The Company is resident for tax purposes in the
Republic of Ireland.

The Company is the holding company of a trading group — Pentland Group (the “Group”) — which is engaged in the retail and
brand management of footwear, clothing and related accessories in the sports, outdoor and fashion sectors both in the UK and
internationally. The Company is responsible for formulating and directing overall Group strategy. A list of the subsidiary
undertakings is set out in note 15.

Statement of compliance

The Group and Company financial statements have been prepared in compliance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the
Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and the Companies (Jersey) Law 1g91.

Basis of preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated and separate financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in pound sterling, rounded to the nearest tenths of a million. The functional currency of
the Company is considered to be pound sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates. The consolidated financial statements are also presented in pound sterling. Foreign operations are included
in accordance with the policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed below. The judgments, estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

The profit and loss account of the Company has been approved by the directors but, as permitted by section 105(11) of the
Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, is not presented within these financial statements.

Investment in Footasylum Limited

Through a series of transactions, JD Sports Fashion plc (“JD”) completed a formal process to acquire 100% of Footasylum on 4
June 2019. )

On 17 May 2019, JD received a ‘hold separate’ enforcement order from the Competitions and Markets Authority (“CMA”)
regarding the acquisition.

On 4 November 2021, a final ruling from the CMA, again, prohibited the Group’s acquisition of Footasylum. Final CMA
undertakings were issued on 14 January 2022 being, effectively, the start date for the Footasylum sale process.

Whilst the disposal of Footasylum is significant for the Group, it is subject to a single plan and can be distinguished operationally
and so, for financial reporting purposes, the disposal has not been classified as a discontinued operation. The Group, through its
subsidiary JD, has other subsidiaries and operations within the Sports Fashion segment in the UK, so Footasylum does not
represent a separate major line of business or geographic area for the Group.

The investment in Footasylum does not meet the definition of a disposal group under FRS 102 either, as there was no binding
sale agreement as at 31 December 2021 and the final CMA undertakings were issued on 14 January 2022. JD completed the sale
of Footasylum Limited and its associated subsidiaries on 5 August 2022.

More details in relation to the acquisition, CMA ruling and divestment of Footasylum can be found on the JD website and in their
annual accounts accessible through www.jdple.com

Going concern

In October 2021, the Pentland investment business, being Pentland Group Limited together with its related investment activities
and subsidiaries, was demerged into a newly established group, creating two independent groups - the demerged Investment
Group headed by Pentland Capital Holdings Limited and the Trading Group, consisting of the Pentland consumer brands and
retail businesses, which continue to be headed by the Company (see note 5).

In assessing the Going concern assumption for the Group, the directors performed a detailed review of the Group’s projected cash

flows and the credit facilities available over a period which extend until 31 December 2023, excluding JD. The Company has no
obligations to fund JD and the responsibility for assessing the continuity of its operations rests with the JD board of directors.
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Pentland Group Holdings i;imited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2021 (continued)
1 _ Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) .
o Going concern (continued)
The main assumptions used are set out Below.
Company

The Company acts as a holding company and has access to sufficient financial resources to be able to meet any reasonably
predictable liquidity requirements.

Credit faciiities available to the Pentland Consﬁmer brands business (excluding JD)

In 2022 the Group took steps to strengthen its liquidity by entering into a credit agreement with a related party, Pentland Group
Limited, for a revolving credit facility. The aggregate principal amount available under the facility is £9om and the final
repayment date is 31 December 2023. The credit facility does not impose any financial covenants on the Group.

Consumer brands

The forecast for the going concern assessment period to 31 December 2023 has been updated for the business’s latest trading in
November 2022, and is the best estimate of cashflow during the going concern assessment period. The directors have modelled a
base scenario, using currently available information arising from the current economic environment. Alongside this, the directors
have considered a downside scenario which includes the following assumptions:

- Decrease in sales back to 2021 pandemic levels; and
- Consistent cost assumptions with the base scenario

The scenarios set out the possible cash impact and the measures which the business could take to control costs, conserve cash
and meet its liabilities as they fall due.

Central division

Central overheads are highly predictable and dividend income was only included to the extent there has been a confirmed
intention/actual payment.

JD Sports Fashion plc

The half year report of JD for the period ended 30 July 2022 state that the JD board have concluded, following their going concern
assessment, that the JD group has a reasonable expectation of being able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they
fall due for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the half year report of JD, which extend until 30 September
2023.

At 30 July 2022, JD had net cash balances of £1,013.1m (29 January 2022: £1,185.9m) with available committed UK borrowing
facilities of £700m (29 January 2022: £700m) of which £nil (29 January 2022: £nil) has been drawn down, and US facilities of
approximately $300m of which $nil was drawn down (29 January 2022: $nil). These facilities are subject to certain covenants.
With a UK facility of £700m available up to 6 November 2026 and a US facility of approximately $300m available up until 24
September 2026, the JD board of directors believe that the JD group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully
despite the current uncertain economic outlook.

The overall severe but plausible scenario for the Group results in cash headroom upon drawing from the available credit facility
throughout the going concern period.

Based on the above, the directors are comfortable that the Group has sufficient resources for at least 12 months from the date of -
signing these financial statements and the going concern assessment remains appropriate.

Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102

FRS 102 allows a qualifying entity certain disclosure exemptions, subject to certain conditions, which have been complied with,
including notification of, and no objection to, the use of exemptions by the Company’s shareholders.

The Company has taken advantage of the following exemptions in its individual financial statements:

(i) from preparing a statement of cash flows, required under FRS 102 p.3.17(d), on the basis that it is a qualifying entity
: and the consolidated statemerit of cash flows included in these financial statements include the Company’s cash flows

(i) from the financial instrument disclosures, required under FRS 102 paragraphs 11.42, 11.44, 11.45, 11.47,
11.48(a)(iii), 11.48(a)(iv), 11.48(b), 11.48(c), 12.26, 12.27, 12.29(a), 12.29(b) and 12.29A4, as the information is provided
in the consolidated financial statement disclosures ’

(iii) from disclosing key management personnel compensation, under FRS 102 paragraph 33.7, as the directors of the
Company are key management personnel
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiary undertakings made
up to the end of the financial year. JD’s financial results are based on management account information for the period ended 31
December 2021, adjusted appropriately to conform with the Group’s accounting policies. The results of the subsidiaries acquired
during the year have been consolidated into the results of the Group from the relevant dates of acquisition. The results of the
subsidiaries disposed of, or discontinued during the year have been consolidated into the results of the Group until the relevant
date(s) of disposal or discontinuation. Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the earlier of disposal or when the
operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for. sale. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the
comparative statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is represented as if the operation has been discontinued
from the start of the comparative year.

Under section 105(11) of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own profit
and loss account.

Uniform accounting policies have been applied across the Group. Intra-group transaction balances, income and expenses have been
eliminated. Adjustments are made to eliminate the profit or loss arising on transactions with associates to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the entity.

Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect the returns through its power over the entity.

Costs directly related to the acquisition are included in the cost of acquisition. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is
measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. The consideration transferred does not include amounts related
to the settlement of pre-existing relationships.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent consideration
that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not re-measured, and the settlement is
accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in
the Consolidated profit and loss account.

Investments

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified
separately from the equity attributable to holders of the parent. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests
at the date that control commences and the attributable share of changes in equity subsequent to that date.

The Company recognises investment in subsidiaries at cost less impairment.

Associates

Investments over which the Group exerts significant influence are treated as associated undertakings. Associate investments are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, when the directors consider the Group to have a significant influence.

The Company holds investments in associates at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Joint ventures
Investments which the Group manage jointly with other undertakings are treated as joint ventures. The results, assets and liabilities
of joint ventures are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Investments in
joint ventures are carried in the Consolidated balance sheet at cost and adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of the net assets. Losses of the joint venture in excess of the Group's interest in it are not recognised.
The Company recognises investment in joint ventures at cost less impairment.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a new subsidiary and associated company undertakings represent the difference between
the fair value of the consideration and the Group’s share of the fair value of the separable net assets acquired. Goodwill is
amortised over its expected useful life, a range of 5 to 20 years. Where the Group is unable to make a reliable estimate of useful
life, goodwill is amortised over a period not exceeding 5 years.

The valuation of goodwill is reviewed annually to assess whether there has been any diminution in value following any trigger
event that may indicate a diminution. Provision is made for any impairment if appropriate.
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangibles assets
Brand licences

Brand licences are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation of brand licences is charged
to the Consolidated profit and loss account within cost of sales over the term to the licence expiry on a straight-line basis.

Brand licences are tested annually for‘impairment by comparing the recoverable amount to their carrying value. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Consolidated profit and loss account. .

The recoverable amount of brand licences is determined based on value-in-use calculations. The use of this method requires the
estimation of future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing operation of the relevant cash-generating unit until the

licence expiry date and the choice of a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Brand names

Brand names acquired as part of a business combination are stated at estimated fair value as at the acquisition date less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Brand names separately acquired are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. The useful economic life of each purchased brand name is considered to be finite.

Brand names are all amortised over a period of 10 years. Brand names are tested annually for impairment by comparing the
recoverable amount to their carrying value. The recoverable amount of brand names is determined based on a ‘royalty relief
method of valuation. This is based on an estimation of future sales and the choice of a suitable royalty and discount rate in order
to calculate the present value, when this method is deemed the most appropriate. This method involves calculating a net present
value for each brand by discounting the projected future royalties expected over the remaining useful life of each brand. The
future royalties are estimated by applying a suitable royalty rate to the sales forecast. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Consolidated profit and loss account.

Reacquired right

Reacquired right assets represent the reacquired right to manufacture and distribute the Speedo brand in specified territories
within North America, as well as wholesale customer relationships and e-commerce customer lists.

The multi-period excess-earnings method has been used to value the reacquired right since the asset has been identified as the
primary asset, which is valued using excess earnings method. The principle behind this method is that the value of an intangible
asset is equal to the present value of the incremental after-tax cash flows attributable only to the subject intangible asset. The
incremental after-tax cash flows attributable to the subject intangible asset are then discounted to their present value (after
accounting for charges on contributory assets) and adjusted for the present value of the tax amortisation benefit to arrive at the
indication of the assets fair value.

Despite the perpetual nature of the licence agreement, under FRS102, amortisation is required and the reacquired right is
amortised over 10 years.

Software development
Software development costs (including website development costs) are capitalised as intangible assets if the technical and
commercial feasibility of the project has been demonstrated, the future economic benefits are probable, the Group has an
intention and ability to complete and use or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably. Costs that do not meet these
criteria are expensed as incurred. Software development costs are stated at historic cost less accumulated amortisation.

Software development costs are all amortised over a period of 2 to 7 years and the amortisation charge is included within
administrative expenses in the Consolidated profit and loss account.

Other intangibles

Other intangibles are amortised over their expected useful life, a range of 10 to 20 years. Where the Group is unable to make a
reliable estimate of useful life, other intangibles are amortised over a period not exceeding 5 years.

Fascia names

Separately identifiable fascia names acquired are stated at estimated fair value as at the acquisition date less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses and they are amortised over their expected useful life of 10 years.

Key money

Monies paid in certain countries to give access to retail locations are capitalised within non-current assets. Key money is stated
at historic cost less impairment losses. These assets are not depreciated as experience has shown that the key money is recoverable
on disposal of a retail location, but will be impaired if evidence exists that the market value is less than the historic cost.
Gains/losses on key money from the subsequent disposal of these retail locations are recognised in the Consolidated profit and
loss account.
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Penﬂand Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Tangible fixed assets

Certain freehold and leasehold properties were re-valued in 1998. All properties previously included at valuation were frozen in
1998 at their deemed cost. All other tangible assets are stated at historic purchase cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost
includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use.

No depreciation is provided for on freehold land and assets under construction. The principal ‘depreciation rates used on a
straight- line basis are:

Long leasehold and freehold property 50 years

Short leasehold property 50 years or lease term if shorter
Fixtures and fittings 5 years

Plant and equipment 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
effect of any change is accounted for prospectively.

Derecognition

Tangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected. On disposal, the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss and included in operating profit.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental income, or for capital appreciation, or for both.
Investment properties are recognised initially at cost.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the tangible fixed asset policy is applied up to the date of change
in use. Any difference at that date between the carrying amount of the property and its fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income and is accumulated in the revaluation reserve within equity.

After initial recognition, investment properties where the fair value can be measured reliably without undue cost or effort are held
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised in the profit or loss in the period that they arise
and in the fair value reserve. No depreciation is provided for in respect of investment properties applying the fair value model.

If a reliable measure is not available without undue cost or effort for an item of investment property, this item is thereafter
accounted for as a tangible fixed asset until a reliable measure of fair value becomes available.

Leases
At inception, the Company assesses agreements that transfer the right to use assets. The assessment considers whether the
arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the substance of the arrangement. Leased assets are categorised and treated as
follows:

Finance leases
Assets funded through finance leases and similar hire purchase contracts are capitalised as property, plant and equipment where
the Group assumes substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured

at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Future instalments under such leases, net of
financing costs, are included within interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Rental payments are apportioned between the finance element, which is included in finance costs, and the capital element, which
reduces the outstanding obligation for future instalments so as to give a constant charge on the outstanding obligation.

Operating leases

Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Payments under operating
leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Contingent rentals payable based on store revenues are accrued in line with the related sales and are charged as expenses in the
period to which they relate. The value of any lease incentive is recognised as deferred income and credited to the Consolidated
profit and loss account against rentals payable on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

Property incentives

Lease incentives

Incentives received to enter into a finance lease reduce the fair value of the asset and are included in the calculation of present
value of minimum lease payments.

Incentives received to enter into an operating lease are credited to the Consolidated profit and loss account to reduce the lease
expense on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. Cost is determined on the first-in, first out (FIFO) method.
Cost includes the purchase price, including taxes and duties and transport and handling directly attributable to bringing the
inventory to its present location and condition.

Inventories are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period. If an item of inventory is impaired, the identified
inventory is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell and an impairment charge is recognised in the profit and
loss account. '

Where a reversal of the impairment is recognised, the impairment charge is reversed, up to the original impairment loss, and is
recognised as a credit in the Consolidated profit and loss account.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

The provisions are discounted where the effect is material.
In particular:

- The Group makes a provision for onerous property leases on specific stores based on the anticipated future cash outflows
relating to the contractual lease cost less potential sublease income. The estimation of sublease income is based on
historical experience and knowledge of the retail property market in the area around each property. Assumptions and
judgements are used in making these estimates and changes in assumptions and future events could cause the value of
these provisions to change. This would include sublet premises becoming vacant, the liquidation of an assignee resulting
in a property reverting to the Group, or closing an uneconomic store and subletting at below contracted rent. Within the
onerous lease provision, management have provided against the minimum contractual lease cost less potential sublease
income for vacant stores. For loss making trading stores, and for stores where there is a probable risk of the store
returning to the Group under privity of contract, a provision is made to the extent that the lease is deemed to be onerous

- Restructuring provisions are recognised when the Company has a detailed, formal plan for the restructuring and has
raised a valid expectation in those affected by either starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to
those affected, and therefore has a legal or constructive obligation to carry out the restructuring

- Provision is not made for future operating losses; and

- Legal provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a legal
claim for which the payment is probable (defined as more likely than not) and the amount can be estimated reliably

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities arise as a result of past events when (i) it is not probable that there will be an outflow of resources or that
the amount cannot be reliably measured at the reporting date or (ii) when the existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or

non-occurrence of uncertain future events not wholly within the Company’s control. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the
financial statements unless the probability of an outflow of resources is remote.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less and bank debit balances included within pooling arrangements. Bank overdrafts
outside of pooling arrangements are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated at the spot exchange rate at the transaction date or, in the case
of stock purchases, at an average spot rate of exchange for the period in which the purchases were made or actual spot rate at the
transaction date, where this would give a material difference.
At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing spot rate. Non-monetary items measured at

historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at estimated
fair value are measured using the exchange rate when fair value was determined.
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the translation at period end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and all other foreign exchange gain and
losses are presented in the profit and loss account within administrative expenses.

The balance sheets of entities in foreign currencies are translated into pound sterling at rates of exchange at the balance sheet
date. Profit and loss accounts are translated at the average rates of exchange for the year. Foreign exchange differences on
translation are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assets expire or are transferred. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

All financial assets and liabilities are measured at transaction price (including transaction costs) except for those financial assets
classified at fair value through the profit or loss, which are initially measured at estimated fair value and subsequently measured
at fair value.

Financial commitments that are contracted for, but not provided for, are disclosed in note 27.
Non-current asset and current asset investments N

Non-current asset and current asset investments, other than subsidiary and associated undertakings, where fair value can be
measured reliably are valued at estimated fair value through the profit and loss account.

Non-current asset and current asset investments, other than subsidiary and associated undertakings, where fair value cannot be
measured reliably are measured at cost less impairment.

Subsidiary and associated undertakings are measured at cost less impairment.
Derivative financial instruments

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other than pound
sterling. The principal currencies giving rise to this risk are the euro and US dollar.

In the normal course of business, this risk is managed by using derivative financial instruments to economically hedge the Group’s
exposure.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at estimated fair value and remeasured at each period end. The estimated
fair value of foreign exchange derivative contracts is determined using cash flows derived from the forward exchange rates at the
balance sheet date discounted to provide the present value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to estimated fair value is
recognised immediately in the Consolidated profit and loss account.

Fair value measurement

The best evidence of estimated fair value is a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market. This is adjusted by
management, as required, to reflect other known circumstances at the time of valuation such as the size or strategic nature of the
holding. When quoted prices are unavailable, the price of a recent transaction for an identical asset provides evidence of fair value
as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances or a significant lapse of time since the transaction
took place. If the market is not active and recent transactions of an identical asset on their own are not a good estimate of fair
value, and it is economic to do so, the fair value is estimated by using a valuation technique using available information. Where
the fair value of an asset is not able to be reliably measured, its carrying amount at the last date that the asset was reliably
measurable becomes its new cost. The asset is carried at this cost amount less impairment until a reliable measure of fair value
becomes available.

Value of put options held by non-controlling interests

For put options held by controlling interests or call options held by the Group, where the Group currently hold a non-controlling
interest, the Group assesses the likelihood of each option being exercised. Where no option is considered more likely, no financial
asset or liability is recognised. Where an option is assessed as likely, the Group does the following:

Put options held by non-controlling interests are accounted for using the present access method. The Group recognises put
options held by non-controlling interests in its subsidiary undertakings as a liability in the Consolidated balance sheet at the
present value of the estimated exercise price of the put option. Upon initial recognition of put options a corresponding entry is
made to other equity, and for subsequent changes on remeasurement of the liability a corresponding entry is made to the
Consolidated profit and loss account.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Value of put options held by non-controlling interests (continued)
Call options held by the Group are also accounted for using the present access method. The Group recognises call options over
non-controlling interests in its subsidiary undertakings as a liability in the Consolidated balance sheet at the present value of the
estimated exercise price of the call option. Upon initial recognition of call options, and for subsequent changes on remeasurement
of the liability, a correspondmg entry is made to the Consolidated profit and loss account.

Tumover :

Turnover comprises the value of external sales and royalties, net of trade discounts, rebates and returns, excluding sales related
taxes.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amount receivable for goods
supplied net of returns, discounts and rebates allowed by the Group and value added taxes.

The Group bases its estimate of returns on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

The Group recognises revenue when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.
Sale of goods — retail’

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

In the case of goods sold through retail stores, revenue is recognised when goods are sold and the title has passed, less provision
for returns. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for such returns at the time of the sale. Retail sales are usually
in cash, by debit card or by credit card.
Sale of goods - other
The Group sells a range of products in the wholesale market. The sale of goods are recognised on delivery to the wholesaler, when
the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the product and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the wholesaler’s acceptance of the product. Delivery occurs when the goods have been shipped to the location specified by
the wholesaler, the risks of obsolescence or loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the company has objectlve evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. .
Goods sold to wholesalers are often sold with volume rebates and with the provision for the wholesale customer to return faulty
goods. Sales are measured at the prices specified in the sale contract, net of estimated volume rebates and returns. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts and returns.
Volume rebates are assessed based on anticipated annual purchases.
Provisions are made for credit notes based on the expected level of returns, which is based on the historical experience of returns.
Sale of goods — internet-based transactions

The Group sells goods via its websites for delivery to the customer. Revenue is recognised when the risks and rewards of the
inventory are passed to the customer on dispatch, which is not considered to be materially different to recognition of delivery.

Royalty income

Royalty income is charged to licensee partner(s) according to the terms of a licence agreement(s) and is recognised in the same
period as the sales or purchases to which the royalty relates.

Dividend income
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Government grants

Government grants that have been received for the purpose of providing financial support (Corona Virus Job Retention Scheme)
with no future related costs are recognised in other operating income in the period in which it becomes receivable.

Financial income and expenses

Financial income comprises interest receivable on funds invested. Financial income is recognised in the Consolidated profit and
loss account on an effective interest method.

Financial expenses comprise interest payable on interest-bearing loans and borrowings. Financial expenses are recognised in the
Consolidated profit and loss account on an effective interest method.

32




Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

1 Summary of significant aqcounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits

The Group provides a range of benefits to employees including paid holiday arrangements and defined benefit and defined
contribution pension plans.

Short term benefits

Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the service is received. )

Annual bonus plan

Should the Company provide a bonus for employees, an expense is recognised in the profit and loss account when the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation to make payments under the plan as a result of past events, and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Retirement benefits

The Group operates a contributory defined benefit pension scheme for some UK based employees which was closed to new
members on 30 June 2005 and to existing members on 30 November 2005. The assets of the closed scheme are held separately
to those of the Group. . .

As part of the demerger of the Investment Group (note 5), the Group agreed to split the defined benefit pension scheme deficit
reduction contributions, pension scheme buy-out costs and scheme expenses with the Investment Group headed by Pentland
Capital Holdings Limited. The Group retains 60% of the total net defined pension liability and accounts for its respective share
of the total defined benefit costs.

Pension scheme assets are measured using market values. Pension scheme liabilities are measured using a projected unit method
and discounted at the current rate of return on high quality corporate bonds of equivalent terms to the liabilities.

The plan assets do not include any of the Group’s financial instruments nor is any property occupied by any Group entity.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of the plan assets at reporting date.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income. These amounts, together with the return on plan assets, less amounts included in net interest, are
disclosed as “Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability”.

The cost of the defined benefit plan is recognised in profit and loss as employee costs.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. The cost is recognised in profit or loss as a finance expense.

Following closure of the defined benefit pension scheme, the Group introduced a defined contribution scheme being a Group
Personal Pension Plan. The assets of the plan attributable to individuals participating in the plan are independently administered
and managed by Standard Life. The amounts charged against profits represent the contributions payable to the scheme in respect
of the accounting year.

Other defined contribution pension schemes are money purchase schemes, the assets of which are held separately from those of

the Group in independently administered funds. The amounts charged against profits represent the contributions payable to the
schemes in respect of the accounting year.

Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated based on tax rates and laws enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Management periodically evaluate positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between taxable profits and total comprehensive income as
stated in the financial statements. These differences arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in periods
different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.

Deferred income tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet
date and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised, or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deférred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities, and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis. .

Impairment of assets

Assets, other than those measured at fair value, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. If there is
objective evidence of impairment, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss as described below.

Non-financial assets

An asset is impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after initial recognition,
the estimated recoverable value of the asset has been reduced. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its estimated
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

The recoverable amount of goodwill is derived from measurement of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of the
cash-generating units of which the goodwill is a part. Any impairment loss in respect of a Cash Generation Unit (“CGU”) is
allocated first to the goodwill attached to that CGU and then to other assets within that CGU on a pro-rata basis.

Where indicators exist for a decrease in impairment loss, the prior impairment loss is tested to determine reversal. An impairment
loss is reversed on an individual impaired asset to the extent that the revised recoverable value does not lead to a revised carrying
amount higher than the carrying value had no impairment been recognised. Where a reversal of impairment occurs in respect of
a CGU, the reversal is applied first to the assets (other than goodwill) of the CGU on a pro-rata basis and then to any goodwill
allocated to that CGU.

Financial assets

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

Where indicators exist for a decrease in impairment loss, and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the prior impairment loss is tested to determine reversal. An impairment loss is reversed on an
individual impaired financial asset to the extent that the revised recoverable value does not lead to a revised carrying amount
higher than the carrying value had no impairment been recognised.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options
would be shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Distributions to equity holders

Dividends and other distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the
period in which the dividends and other distributions are approved by the Group’s shareholders. These amounts are recognised
in the Statement of changes in equity.

Share-based payments

The executive directors of JD receive an element of remuneration in the form of share-based payments. Share-based payments
are measured at fair value at the grant date which is determined by the share price on that date. The cost of share-based payments
is recognised as an expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of
the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and
non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised is based on the number
of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

Related party transactions

As per FRS 102 p.33.1(a), the Group discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the same group.
It does not disclose transactions with members of the same group that are wholly owned.
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Exceptional items

Items that are material and/or non-recurring by size and incidence are disclosed separately on the face of the Consolidated profit
and loss account as they are not considered reflective of the year-on-year trading performance of the Group. This helps provide
an indication of the Group’s underlying business performance.

The'principal items which may be included as exceptional items are:

- Profit/(loss) on the disposal of certain non-current assets

- Provision for rentals on onerous property leases

- Impairment of property, plant and equipment and non-current other assets
- Impairment of goodwill, brand names and fascia names

- Business restructuring and business closure related costs; and

- Fair value adjustments to put option liabilities

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Useful economic lives

The annual depreciation charge for tangible assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful economic lives and residual
values of the assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are reassessed annually. They are amended, when necessary,
to reflect current estimates based on technological advancement, future investments, economic utilisation and the physical
condition of the assets. See note 12 for the carrying amount of the tangible assets.

The Group also amortises the goodwill associated with the acquisition of brand names and fascias over their useful economic life.
In determining the useful economic life of each brand name, the Group considers the market position of the brands acquired, the
nature of the market that the brands operate in, typical product life cycles of brands and the useful economic lives of similar assets
that are used in comparable ways. See note 11 for the carrying amount of the intangible assets.

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition is allocated to groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination from which goodwill arose, being portfolios of stores or individual businesses. The cash-generating
units used to monitor goodwill and test it for impairment are therefore the store portfolios and individual businesses rather than
individual stores, as the cash flows of individual stores are not considered to be independent.

The Group is required to assess whether there is an indication that goodwill has suffered any impairment. Where an indication
of impairment is identified, the estimation of recoverable values requires estimation of the recoverable value of the cash
generating units (CGUs). This requires estimation of the future cash flows from the CGUs and also a selection of appropriate
discount rates in order to calculate the net present value of those cash flows. See note 11 for further disclosure on impairment of
goodwill and review of the key assumptions used.

Impairment of intangibles assets

The Group is required to assess whether there is an indication that intangible assets with a definite useful economic life have
suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount of brand and fascia names is based on an estimation of future sales and the
choice of a suitable royalty and discount rate in order to calculate the present value, when this method is deemed the most
appropriate. Alternatively, the carrying value of the brand names has been allocated to a cash-generating unit, along with the
relevant goodwill and fascia names, and tested in the value-in-use calculation performed for that cash-generating unit. The
recoverable amount of brand licences is determined based on value-in-use calculations. The use of this method requires the
estimation of future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing operation of the cash-generating unit until the licence expiry
date and the choice of a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group operates a UK registered trust-based pension scheme that provides defined benefits. The Trustees are responsible for
running the scheme and have obligations to pay benefits to certain employees. The costs of these benefits, and the present value
of the obligation, depend on several factors including: life expectancy, salary increases, asset valuations and discount rates.
Management estimate these factors in determining the net pension obligation in the balance sheet. The assumptions reflect
historical experience and current trends. See note 7 for details.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The activities of JD are overseen by a number of regulators around the world and, whilst JD strives to ensure full compliance with
all its regulatory obligations, periodic reviews are inevitable which may result in a financial penalty. If the risk of a financial
penalty arising from one of these reviews is more than remote, but not probable or cannot be measured reliably, then the Group
will disclose this matter as a contingent liability. If the risk of a financial penalty is considered probable and can be measured
reliably then the Group will make a provision for this matter. See notes 23 and 27 for details.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Onerous property lease provisions

The Group makes provision for onerous property leases on specific stores based on the anticipated future cash outflows relating
to the contractual lease cost less potential sublease income. The estimation of sublease income is based on historical experience
and knowledge of the retail property market in the area around each specific property. Significant assumptions and judgements
are used in making these estimates and changes in assumptions and future events could cause the value of these provisions to
change. This would include sublet premises becoming vacant, the liquidation of an assignee resulting in a property reverting to
the Group, or closing an uneconomic store and subletting at below contracted rent. See note 23 for details.

Determination of fair value of assets and liabilities on acquisition

Included within critical accounting estimates in the current year is the valuation of the intangible assets recognised as part of the
acquisition of DTLR Villa LLC (‘DTLR’) (see note 10). The estimates used in the valuation of the intangible assets are considered
to have a significant risk of causing a material misstatement, specifically the estimation of future cash flows, the useful economic
life of the asset, the selection of suitable royalty relief rates and the selection of a suitable discount rate. The key assumption used
by management in the valuation of the fascia name was the royalty rate. The royalty rate assumption used in the valuation was
estimated based on published comparable licence fees in the sports fashion market and a calculation of the expected return on
assets of the DTLR business.

Put options

Put options are in place over all or part of the remaining non-controlling interest shareholding in various subsidiaries and these
options are required to be fair valued at each accounting period date. Put options held by non-controlling interests are accounted
for using the present access method. The present value of the non-controlling interests’ put options is estimated using board
approved forecasts multiplied by an earnings multiple. The option formula and multiple are usually stated in the put option
agreement; however, in the absence of a specified formula or multiple, we would estimate this based on current evidence in the
mergers and acquisitions market and our past experience of multiples paid for similar businesses.

These forecast cash flows are discounted using a discount rate reflecting the current market assessment of the time value of money

and any specific risk premiums relevant to the individual businesses involved. These discount rates are considered to be
equivalent to the rates a market participant would use. See note 24 for details.
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2 Turnover

Turnover by business segment

2021 2020
Em Em
Sale of goods : o 8,916.7 6,559.2
Royalties . ) - 11.7 12.5
Rendering of services 15.6 24.0
8,944.0 6,595.7

Turnover by geographical origin*
: 2021 2020
£m £m
United Kingdom ) 3,865.0 2,925.6
Republic of Ireland and Continental Europe 2,049.1 1,496.8
America . . 2,632.9 1,858.0
Asia-Pacific ' 456.0 150.8
Other 1.0 164.5
8,944.0 6,595.7

*Turnover by geographical origin represents sales originated in the country where the legal company selling the product is based.

Turnover by geographical destination**

2021 2020

£m Em

United Kingdom . 3,515.4 2,718.5
Republic of Ireland and Continental Europe 2,254.0 1,661.6
America 2,784.4 1,873.8
Asia-Pacific 372.2 320.1
Other 18.0 12.7
8,944.0 6,595.7

**Turnover by geographical destination represents sales originated in the country to which the goods are shipped.
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3 ~ Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after (crediting)/charging:
2021 2020
Note £m £m
Wages and salaries 1,051.5 864.3
Social security costs 112:0 89.1
Other pension costs 18.1 16.9
Total staff costs 1,181.6 970.3
Tangible assets
- Depreciation — owned assets 12 . 159.3 140.6
- Loss on disposal 5.5 2.0
Intangible assets
- Amortisation 1 162.7 75.4
- Loss on disposal 1.0 -
Impairment of trade debtors 0.5 1.9
Impairment of inventory (reversal)/charge . ) (5.4) 24.3
Rent of land and buildings 470.3 382.2
Other operating lease rentals » 7.6 5.5
Included within operating exceptional items
Impairment of assets (1) 11,12 63.2 103.1
Fair value movement on put options held by non-controlling interests 24 288.9 24.3
Restructuring, integration, intellectual property protection costs and other 16.7 .
provisions : 9
Impairment of associates - 5.7
Total operating exceptional items 368.8 141.0

(1) The éharge in the year to 31 December 2021 (and 2020) relates to the non-cash impairment of the fascia names and goodwill
balance arising on acquisitions (see note 11) as well as £8.5m in the current year in relation to the impairment of fixed assets
(see note 12).

Auditors’ remuneration

The total remuneration of the Group auditor, KPMG LLP, for 2021 and its affiliates for the services to the Group is analysed below.

2021 2020
£m : Em

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the parent company’s and the
) : 0.2 0.4

Group’s financial statements

Audit of the financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries 3.0 2.3
Total auditors’ remuneration 3.2 2.7
Fees payable to other auditors for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 0.2 0.3
0.2 0.3

Fees of £13,500 were incurred and paid to KPMG LLP for non-audit services in relation to certification of turnover for certain
subsidiary undertakings:
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4 Employees and directors
Employees

The average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

Group : Company
Full time equivalent - Average headcount Full time equivalent Average headcount
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
No. No. No. No. No. No. No. . No.
Retail 35,564 35,606 65,775 54,087 - - -
Other 1,748 1,668 1,748 1,668 2 2 2 2
37,312 37,274 67,523 55,755 2 2 2 2

Staff costs of the Company and Group were as follows:

Group Company
2021 2020 . 2021 2020
£m £m £m £m
Wages and salaries 1,051.5 864.3 0.1 -
Social security costs 112.0 89.1 - -
Other pension costs 18.1 16.9 - -
1,181.6 970.3 0.1 -

Directors’ emoluments

The directors’ emoluments disclosed below include two directors appointed by the Company and eight common directors between
the Company and Pentland Group Limited, a former subsidiary. Since the demerger of the Investment Group (see note 5),
Pentland Group Limited is a related party. No emoluments of the common directors have been recharged to the Company, but
the remuneration has been apportioned to the Company and is therefore included in the table below.

Directors’ emoluments were as follows:

2021 2020

£m Em

Aggregate emoluments : . 6.6 6.9
Pension contributions - money purchase schemes 0.1 0.1
6.7 7.0

Aggregate emoluments include £nil as compensation for loss of office (2020: £0.6m).

Retirement benefits are accruing to three directors under defined benefit scheme (2020: four) and two directors under money
purchase schemes (2020: two).

Highest paid director
The highest paid director’s emoluments were as follows: .
2021 2020
£m £m
Aggregate emoluments ) 3.7 2.3
Pension contributions - money purchase schemes - 0.1
3.7 2.4

39 .




Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

5 Discontinued operations

In October 2021, the Pentland investment business, being Pentland Group Limited together with its related investment activities - .

and subsidiaries (the “Investment Group”), was demerged into a newly established group, creating two independent groups - the
demerged Investment Group headed by Pentland Capital Holdings Limited and the Trading Group, consisting of the Pentland
consumer brands and retail businesses, which continue to be headed by the Company.

Discontinued operations in 2021 comprise the results of the Investment Group for the period up to the date of the demerger. Prior

year comparatives in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss have been restated accordingly. Up to the date of the demerger, =

the Investment Group contributed post-tax profits of £24.6m (2020: £393.4m).

Following a number of steps, the demerger was ultimately affected by way of the Company undertaking a capital reduction of its
share premium. This was satisfied by the transfer, by the Company, of the entire issued share capital of Pentland Investment
Holdings Limited, a newly incorporated parent company of the Investment Group, to Pentland Capital Holdings Limited in return
for Pentland Capital Holdings Limited allotting and issuing shares to the Company’s existing shareholders.

The net assets of the Investment Group at the date of demerger of £978.5m were deducted from the share premium, revaluation,
fair value and profit and loss reserves. No gain or loss was recognised in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss.

6 Net interest expense
2021 . 2020
£m ~ Em
Interest receivable on cash deposits
- Group 1.8 2.3
- Associate undertakings 0.1 -
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts -
- Group (8.1) (6.8)
- Associate undertakings - (0.5)
- Hire purchase leases (0.3) (0.1)
(6.5) (5.1)
7 Pension schemes

The Group operates a contributory defined benefit pension scheme for some UK based employees, excluding employees of JD,
which was closed to new members on 30 June 2005 and to existing members on 30 November 2005. The closed scheme continues
to be administered by its Trustees and is independent of Group finances. Contributions are paid to the scheme in accordance with
the recommendations of an independent actuary to enable the Trustees to meet, from the scheme, the benefits accruing in respect
of service to 30 November 2005. The scheme’s assets are invested and managed by Fulcrum Asset Management on behalf of the
Trustees of the scheme. .

As set out in note 5, in October 2021, Pentland’s Investment Group was demerged into a newly established group headed by
Pentland Capital Holdings Limited. The two groups have entered into a contractual agreement to split the pension scheme deficit
reduction contributions, scheme buy-out costs and scheme expenses using a 60:40 ratio. The Group retained 60% of the net
pension deficit upon demerger with a remeasurement gain recognised in the Consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income. Since the demerger, the Group recognises it’s 60% share of net pension scheme income and charges in the Consolidated
statement of profit and loss and the Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Certain companies within the Group, together with certain companies within the demerged Investment Group, are jointly and
severally liable for any obligations in respect of the scheme (see note 27).

The Trustees are required to carry out an actuarial valuation every 3 years. The last actuarial valuation of the scheme was
performed by the scheme actuary as at 1 April 2021. That valuation revealed a funding shortfall of £38.3m for a combined scheme
between the two groups, of which 60% is attributable to the Group. In respect of the deficit as at 1 April 2021, Pentland Group
(Trading) Limited has agreed to pay its 60% share, equal to £3.5m of an £5.8m annual contribution, each January from 2023 to
2028. In line with the previously agreed funding scheme, based on the actuarial valuation as at 1 April 2018, Pentland Group
(Trading) Limited paid its 60% share, equal to £0.8m of a £1.4m annual contribution, in January 2022.

Total contributions paid during 2021 under the Recovery Plan were £1.4m (2020: £1.4m).

Following the closure of the Group’s contributory defined benefit pension scheme, the Group introduced a defined contribution
pension scheme being a Group personal pension plan to UK based employees, excluding employees of JD. The assets of the Group
personal pension plan are held separately from those of the Group in individual funds for the benefit of the participants and
independently managed and administered by Standard Life. Contributions to the plan are made both by Group companies and
employees. The amounts charged against profits represent the contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the accounting
year.

JD operates a money purchase scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of JD and the funds are invested
with Standard Life. Contributions to the scheme are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account when incurred.

The cost incurred by the Group in respect of the defined contribution scheme was £18.1m (2020: £16.9m).
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7 4 Pension schemes (continued)
Defined benefit scheme

The charge to the profit and loss account for the year for the closed defined benefit pension scheme was £0.8m (2020: charge of
£1.1m). This includes a charge for GMP equalisation of £nil (2020: charge of £nil).

The valuation relating to the closed defined benefit scheme has been based on the habllltles as valued at 31 December 2021 and
allows for the closure of the scheme to future accrual from 30 November 2005.

The financial assumptions used to calculate scheme liabilities are: :
. : 2021 ' 2020

Discount rate o - N 1.9% 1.3%
RPI Inflation rate . 2.9% 2.7%
CPI Inflation rate. . . 2.7% 2.1%
Deferred pension revaluation rate . 2.7% 2.1%
. Rate of in¢rease in pensions in payment: ' :

- CPImax 3% ) ) 2.3% 1.9%
- RPI max 5% 2.9% 2.7%
- Revaluation of deferred pensions in excess of GMP 2.7% 2.1%
The mortality assumptions are:

i 2021 2020
Pre and post retirement mortality table
- Males : 100% S3PMA 100% S3PMA
- Females ) 100% S3PFA 100% S3PFA
Birth year mortality improvement CMI Model 2020 CMI Model 2019
Long term rate of improvement 1.25% pa 1.25% pa
Life expectancy for a current 65-year old
- Males 21.9 years 21.9 years
- Females 24.3 years 24.2 years
Life expectancy at age 65 for a member currently aged 45
- Males : 23.2 years 23.2 years
- Females 25.7 years 25.6 years

Sensitivity analysis

A sensitivity analysis was performed over the key assumptions stated above, individually. The impact of this is shown below:

Defined benefit Change in defined benefit
obligation obligation
£m ’ Em

Final assumptions 83.2
Discount Rate +0.1% p.a. . 81.6 -1.6
Discount Rate -0.1% p.a. 84.8 1.6
RPI inflation +0.1% p.a. 83.4 0.2
RPI inflation -0.1% p.a. ' 83.0 -0.2
CPI inflation +0.1% p.a. 83.6 0.4
CPI inflation -0.1% p.a. 82.8 -0.4
Life expectancy + 1 year ’ ) 86.7 3.5
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Net bension deficit

The fair value of the scheme’s assets, which are not intended to be realised in the short term and may be subject to significant
change before they are realised, and the present value of the scheme’s liabilities, Whlch are derived from the cash flow projections

over long periods and are consequently mherently uncertain, were:

" 2021

2020

£m. £m

Equities ‘ ‘ ' 27.4 43.8
Bonds ] : 4.6 24.3
Cash B ) 0.1 0.3
Alternatives : 19.2 10.1
Annuities » . . ] 1.7 3.2
Total market value of assets . ‘ ) ' 53.0 81.7
Present value of scheme liabilities (83.2) (151.0)
Pension scheme deficit o ' : (30.2) (69.3)

The asset information was supplied by scheme’s investment managers, Fulerum Asset Management.

The amounts detailed below have been recognised in the financial statements for the year to 31 December 2021 for the closed

defined benefit pension scheme.

The plan assets do not include any of the Group’s financial instruments.

2021 2020
£m £m
Profit and loss account
Amounts charged to other finance income
- Interest cost (1.8) (2.6)
- Interest income 1.0 1.5
Total charge included in proﬁt and loss account (0.8) (1.1)
‘2021 2020
£m £m
Amounts recognised in Group statement of comprehensive income (OCI)
Return on assets excluding amount included in net interest 5.3 5.4
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities 12.7 (20.6)
(15.2)

Actuarial and remeasurement gain/(loss) recognised in the OCI 18.0
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited

Notes to the ﬁnanclal statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (conunued)

Vi Pensxon schemes (contmued)

Net pension deficit (contmued)

Reconciliation of present value of scheme assets'and liabilities

2021

Assets Liabilities Total

£m £m £m

1 January 817 (151.0) (69.3)
Interest cost 1.0 (1.8) (0.8)
Contributions by the employer 1.4 1.4
Benefits paid (pensions) (11) 1.1 -
Benefits paid (transfers) (0.2) - 0.2 -
Actuarial losses - 12.7 12.7
Return on plan assets less interest 5.3 - 5.3
Demerger of the Investment Group (see note 5) (35.1) 55.6 20.5
31 December 53.0 . (83.2) (30.2)

Overseas pension schemes

The main overseas subsidiary undertakings schemes are defined contribution schemes in the USA and Far East. Contributions

are taken to the profit and loss account.

The Group has no significant health and medical plans providing post-retirement benefits.

8 Tax on profit

Tax expense included in the profit or loss

2020
£m £m £m £m
Current tax
UK - current corporation tax at 19% (2020: 19%) ' 230.1 62.6
Adjustments in respect of prior years (16.8) (2.1)
213.3 60.5
Current overseas tax 5.5 78.2
Adjustments in respect of prior years (4.8) (0.7)
0.7
77-5
Tax on associate undertakings and joint ventures 2.2 2.7
Total current tax charge 216.2 140.7
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences 2.6 8s5.8
Adjustments in respect of prior years (1.1) 16.1
Effect of changes in tax rates 14.3 1.9
15.8 103.8
Total tax charge on profit on ordinary activities 232.0 244.5
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8 Tax on profit (continqed)
Tax (charge)/income included in other comprehensive income

2021 - 2020

£m ’ Em
Deferred tax — origination and reversal of timing differences S (8.2) 3.5
Total tax (charge)/income included in other comprehensive income (8.2) 3.5

Reconciliation of tax charge
Based on the results, the effective tax rate for the period ended 31 December 2021 was 37.9% (2020: 28.5%).
The tax assessed for the year is higher (2020: higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 19% (2020: 19%).

The current tax charge reconciles with the corporation tax charge calculated using the standard rate of UK corporation tax as
follows:

2021 2020
£m Em
Profit before taxation 611.8 858.2
Profit multiplied by standard rate in UK 19% (2020: 19%) 116.2 163.1
Effect on tax charge of .
- Accelerated capital allowances and other timing differences . 2.9 0.1
- Permanent differences (1.1) 4.2
- Effects of overseas tax rates . 10.8 20.8
- Adjustments in respect of prior years (22.7) ) 18.5 .
- Unrecognised tax losses not utilised (0.4) 2.6
- Unrecognised deferred tax 9.9 10.1
- Expenses not deductible 69.2 27.5
- Income not taxable (60.7) (33.0)
- Tax rate changes 20.2 3.0
- Impairment of goodwill 16.8 8.4
- Other taxes due 19.6 15.3
- Non-deductible movement on put option 53.7 4.8
- Other differences (2.49) (0.9)
Total tax charge for the year ] 232.0 244.5

Following the Budget 2021, legislation to increase the rate of corporation tax from 19% to 25% with effect from 1 April 2023 was
substantively enacted on 10 June 2021. As a result, the company has re-measured its deferred tax balances which are expected to
reverse on or after 1 April 2023 at the revised 25% rate. Deferred tax balances which are expected to reverse before 1 April 2023
continue to be recognised at the current corporation tax rate of 19%.

9 Dividends
2021 2020
£m Em
Dividends paid to shareholders : 10.0 _
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10 Business Combinations
Significant acquisitions

Acquisitions are presented as significant when they are considered significant in terms of total consideration, the size of the store
base and/or geographical reach.

DTLR Villa LLC

Initial acquisition

On 17 March 2021, JD acquired 100% of the issued share capital of DTLR Villa LLC (‘DTLR’), via a wholly owned intermediate
holding company in the US. Total cash consideration was £305.2m, split between £117.9m debt funding and £187.3m equity
funding.

DTLR is based in Baltimore, Maryland and is a hyperlocal athletic footwear and apparel streetwear retailer operating from 247
stores across 19 states on acquisition. The acquisition of DTLR, with its differentiated consumer proposition, will enhance JD’s
neighbourhood presence in the North and East of the US.

The existing DTLR management team has also reinvested a portion of its proceeds back into DTLR in exchange for a new minority
stake of 1.5%. Put and call options, to enable future exit opportunities for the management team, have also been agreed and
become exercisable after a minimum period of three years. A valuation of these put options has been performed using an earnings
multiple, a suitable discount rate and approved forecasts, and the initial liability of £4.2m has been recognised with the
corresponding entry to other equity in accordance with the present value method of accounting. These options are required to be
fair valued at each accounting period date.

Included within the fair value of the net identifiable assets on acquisition is an intangible asset of £101.6m representing the DTLR
fascia name and an intangible asset of £3.8m representing the customer relationships arising from the loyalty scheme in place.
The JD board believes that the excess of consideration paid over net assets on acquisition of £212.0m is best considered as
goodwill on acquisition representing future operating synergies. The goodwill calculation is summarised further below. As at the
date of these financial statements, the period in which measurement adjustments could be made has now closed on this
acquisition and no further fair value measurement adjustments have been made.

Subsequent intra-group transfer

On 2 July 2021, JD completed the transfer of the intermediate parent company and DTLR to Genesis Topco Inc (‘Genesis’), which
is an existing 80.0% subsidiary of JD based in the US, and parent company of the sub-group which contains Finish Line Inc. and
the Shoe Palace Corporation. It was always the intention for DTLR to be part of the Genesis sub-group, but the requirement for
speed and certainty of execution on the original transaction meant that it was more appropriate for JD to initially acquire DTLR
directly. This transfer to Genesis now brings all of JD’s businesses in the US into one sub-group, which will enhance the future
operational collaboration between them. However, as the parent to Genesis, JD will continue to make strategic decisions
regarding the company’s future. The consideration payable by Genesis to JD in relation to the transfer was the same as the total
consideration paid by JD on the original acquisition.

As JD only owns 80% of Genesis, JD effectively disposed of a proportion of its investment in DTLR to the four Mersho Brothers
(‘the Mershos’) who, with their 20% aggregate shareholding in Genesis, are jointly a related party of JD and therefore the Group.
To maintain their shareholding in Genesis at the current level, the Mershos invested their pro-rata element of the equity
consideration of $52.0m into Genesis. This transfer has taken place on an arm’s length basis and reflects the net assets acquired
as at the original acquisition date of 17 March 2021.

Book values Adjustments Fair value
£m £m Em
DTLR Villa LLC

Acquiree’s net assets at acquisition date
- Intangible assets 43.7 62.9 106.6
- Property, plant and equipment 53.7 (4.4) 49.3
- Other non-current assets 0.5 (0.2) 0.3
- Inventories 40.3 - 40.3
- Cash and cash equivalents 95.2 - 95.2
- Trade and other receivables 7.6 (3-3) 4.3
- Income tax asset 0.4 - 0.4

- Trade and other payables (37.6) (0.9) (38.5

- Bank loans and overdrafts (140.2) - (140.2)
- Deferred tax liability : (3.3) (21.2) (24.5)
Net assets acquired 60.3 32.9 93.2
Goodwill on acquisition 212.0
Total consideration 305.2

The revenue from DTLR included in the Consolidated profit and loss account for 2021 was £363.8m. DTLR also contributed profit
before tax of £71.8m over the same period.
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10 Business Combinations (continued)
Marketing Investment Group S.A.

On 30 April 2021, JD acquired 60% of the issued share capital of Marketing Investment Group S.A. (‘MIG’) for total consideration
of £66.0m. Total consideration comprises cash consideration of £63.6m and £2.4m of deferred consideration that is subject to
customary closing conditions and expected to be paid in 2022.

MIG operated 410 stores on acquisition along with associated trading websites in nine countries in Central and Eastern Europe.
The acquisition of MIG provided the platform to develop the JD fascia in Central and Eastern Europe. The MIG team has been
instrumental in the opening of the first JD stores in Eastern Europe with stores at Poznan, Poland, and Constanta, Romania.
Since the year end, JD has opened four further JD stores in Poland, one additional store in Romania and a first store in Hungary,
at the Arkad Shopping Centre in Budapest. JD anticipates further openings for the JD fascia across Eastern Europe in the new
financial year although events in Ukraine do drive some caution.

Put and call options to enable future exit opportunities for the 40% shareholders have also been agreed and become exercisable
after the period ending January 2025. A valuation of these put options has been performed using an earnings multiple, a suitable
discount rate and approved forecasts, and the initial liability of £50.2m has been recognised with the corresponding entry to other
equity in accordance with the present value method of accounting. These options are required to be fair valued at each accounting
period date.

Included within the fair value of the net identifiable assets on acquisition is an intangible asset of £25.1m representing the Sizeer
fascia name and an intangible asset of £4.1m representing the 50 Style fascia name. The JD board believes that the excess of
consideration paid over net assets on acquisition of £41.4m is best considered as goodwill on acquisition representing future
operating synergies. As at the date of these financial statements, the period in which measurement adjustments could be made
has now closed on this acquisition and no further fair value measurement adjustments have been made. The goodwill calculation
is summarised below.

Book values Adjustments Fair value
£m Em £m

Marketing Investment Group S.A.

Acquiree’s net assets at acquisition date
- Intangible assets 2.6 29.2 31.8
- Property, plant and equipment 16.6 - 16.6
- Other non-current assets 1.1 - 1.1
- Inventories 69.1 (1.9) 67.2
- Cash and cash equivalents 6.5 - 6.5
- Trade and other receivables 4.9 1.1 6.0
- Income tax asset 0.1 - 0.1
- Trade and other payables (58.6) 1.7 (56.9)
- Bank loans and overdrafts (27.0) - (27.0)
- Deferred tax asset/(liability) 1.0 (5.5) (4.5)
Net identifiable assets 16.3 24.6 40.9
Non-controlling interest (40%) (6.5) (9.8) (16.3)
Goodwill on acquisition 41.4
Consideration — satisfied in cash 63.6
Consideration - deferred 2.4
Total consideration 66.0

The revenue from MIG included in the Consolidated profit and loss account for 2021 was £163.2m. MIG also contributed profit
before tax of £10.2m over the same period.
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

10 Business Combinations (cpntinued)
Depbrvillage S.L.

On 25 June 2021, Iberian Sports Retail Group S.L. (‘ISRG’), JD’s existing intermediate holding company in Spain, exchanged
contracts on the conditional acquisition of Deporvillage S.L. (‘Deporvillage’), which is based in Manresa, Catalonia. ISRG is a
leading operator in the sporting goods market across Iberia through its Sprinter and Sport Zone fascias with the acquisition of
Deporvillage, an online retailer of specialist sports equipment with country specific websites in six European countries, giving
additional depth and expertise in the key categories of cycling, running and outdoor. The transaction was subject to certain
conditions, principally relating to anti-trust clearance, with formal completion taking place on 3 August 2021. Total maximum
cash consideration for the acquisition of an initial 80% holding is £119.6m of which a maximum of £34.5m has been deferred and
will be paid contingent on achieving certain future performance criteria. As at the date of the acquisition and the year-end, the
fair value of the contingent consideration was determined to be £19.om.

Put and call options to enable future exit opportunities for the 20% shareholders have also been agreed and become exercisable
from 2024 onwards. A valuation of these put options has been performed using an earnings multiple, a suitable discount rate and
approved forecasts, and the initial liability of £11.2m has been recognised with the corresponding entry to other equity in
accordance with the present value method of accounting. These options are required to be fair valued at each accounting period
date.

Included within the fair value of the net identifiable assets on acquisition is an intangible asset of £38.8m representing the
Deporvillage online fascia name and an intangible asset of £2.9m representing the fair value of the customer base. The JD board
believes that the excess of consideration paid over net assets on acquisition of £70.4m is best considered as goodwill on acquisition
representing future operating synergies. The provisional goodwill calculation is summarised below.

Book values Adjustments Fair value
£m £m £m
Deporvillage S.L.
Acquiree’s net assets at acquisition date
- Intangible assets ) ) 0.9 48.4 49.3
- Property, plant and equipment 0.3 - 0.3
- Inventories 28.6 - 28.6
- Cash and cash equivalents 2.4 - . 2.4
- Trade and other receivables 4.7 - 4.7
- Trade and other payables (29.3 - (29.3)
- Bank loans and overdrafts ) (1.3) - (1.3)
- Income tax liability (1.0) - (1.0)
- Deferred tax asset/(liability) 0.6 (12.1) (11.5)
Net identifiable assets 5.9 36.3 42.2
Non-controlling interest (20%) (1.2) 7.3) (8.5)
Goodwill on acquisition © . 70.4
Consideration — satisfied in cash ‘ 85.1
Consideration — deferred 19.0

Total consideration 104.1

The revenue from Deporvillage included in the Consolidated profit and loss account for 2021 was £55.2m. Deporvillage also
contributed profit before tax of £4.1m over the same period.
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10 Business Combinations (continued)
Cosmos Sport S.A.

On 21 October 2021, JD acquired 80% of the issued share capital of Cosmos Sport S.A. (‘Cosmos’) for cash consideration of
£65.0m. At acquisition Cosmos operated 58 stores in Greece and three in Cyprus under a variety of retail banners and associated
trading websites. The two main fascias are Cosmos, which is the core fascia of the business and has an elevated sporting goods
and lifestyle proposition, and Sneaker 10, which has a more premium footwear offer.

Put and call options to enable future exit opportunities for the 20% shareholders have also been agreed and become exercisable
from 2025 onwards. A valuation of these put options has been performed using an earnings multiple, a suitable discount rate and
approved forecasts, and the initial liability of £10.0m has been recognised with the corresponding entry to other equity in
accordance with the present value method of accounting. These options are required to be fair valued at each accounting period
date.

Included within the fair value of the net identifiable assets on acquisition is an intangible asset of £9.1m representing the Cosmos
fascia name and an intangible asset of £4.2m representing the Sneaker 10 fascia name. The JD board believes that the excess of
consideration paid over net assets on acquisition of £39.5m is best considered as goodwill on acquisition representing future
operating synergies. The provisional goodwill calculation is summarised below.

Book values Adjustments Fair value
£m £m £m
Cosmos Sport S_.A.
Acquiree’s net assets at acquisition date
- Intangible assets - 13.3 13.3
- Property, plant and equipment 14.0 - 14.0
- Other non-current assets 1.0 - 1.0
- Inventories 24.3 - 24.3
- Cash and cash equivalents 13.2 - 13.2
- Trade and other receivables 5.7 - 5.7
- Income tax asset 0.3 - 0.3
- Trade and other payables (27.9) - (27.9)
- Bank loans and overdrafts . 8.5) - (8.5)
- Deferred tax liability (0.3) (3.2) 3.5)
Net identifiable assets 21.8 10.1 31.9
Non-controlling interest (20%) (4.4) (2.0) (6.4)
Goodwill on acquisition 39.5
Total consideration 65.0

The revenue from Cosmos included in the Consolidated profit and loss account for 2021 was £20.7m. Cosmos also contributed
profit before tax of £2.4m over the same period.
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

10 Business Combinations (cpntinued)

Other Acquisitions

The aggregate impact of other acquisitions in the current period is summarised below, with further details provided in the
narrative on the subsequent pages.

Fair value
Em

Acquiree’s net assets at acquisition date
- Intangible assets ) 34.4
- Property, plant and equipment’ : : 8.5
- Other non-current assets 0.2
- Inventories . 31.6
- Cash and cash equivalents ) 35.3
- Trade and other receivables . 9.6
- Trade and other payables (24.5)
- Bank loans and overdrafts . (6.2)
- Income tax liabilities (4.4)
- Deferred tax liabilities (6.6)
Net identifiable assets ’ 77.9
Non-controlling interest (various) (11.6)
Goodwill on acquisition 3 126.7
Consideration - satisfied in cash 174.3
Consideration — deferred 18.7
Total consideration 193.0

80s Casual Classics Limited

On 2 March 2021, JD acquired 70% of the issued share capital of 80s Casual Classics Limited (‘80s CC’) for cash consideration of
£15.4m. 80s CC is predominantly an online retailer of retro and original clothing from brands such as adidas and Sergio Tacchini,
inspired by the British subculture of the ‘70s, ‘80s and ‘90s. The acquisition included put and call options over the remaining 30%
of shares, exercisable in annual tranches after a minimum period of three years.

Included within the fair value of the net identifiable assets on acquisition is an intangible asset of £1.0m representing the 80os CC
fascia name. The JD board believes that the excess of consideration paid over net assets on acquisition of £9.0m is best considered
as goodwill representing future operating synergies. As at the date of this report, the period in which measurement adjustments
could be made has now closed on this acquisition and no further fair value measurement adjustments have been made.

The revenue from 80s Casual Classics included in the Consolldated profit and loss account for 2021 was £12.2m. 80s Casual
Classics also contributed profit before tax of £3.8m over the same period.

Uggbugg Fashion Limited

On 18 June 2021, JD acquired 51% of the issued share capital of Uggbugg Fashion Limited, including a wholly owned subsidiary,
Missy Empire Limited (together ‘Missy Empire’), for initial cash consideration of £11.7m. Additional consideration of up to £2.2m
is payable if certain performance criteria are achieved. The fair value of the contingent consideration as at the acquisition date
and as at 31 December 2021 was determined to be £nil.

Included within the fair value of the net identifiable assets on acquisition is an intangible asset of £0.9m representing the Missy
Empire fascia name. The JD board believes that the excess of consideration paid over net assets on acquisition of £9.6m is best
considered as goodwill on acquisition representing future operating synergies.

Put and call options over 9% of the remaining 49% shareholding have also been agreed and become exercisable after the period
ending January 2025. A valuation of these put options has been performed using an earnings multiple, a suitable discount rate
and approved forecasts, and the initial liability of £1.4m has been recognised with the corresponding entry to other equity in
accordance with the present value method of accounting. These options are required to be fair valued at each accounting period
date.

The revenue from Missy Empire included in the Consolidated profit and loss account for 2021 was £5.4m. Missy Emplre also
contributed profit before tax of £0.1m over the same period.
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10 Business Combinations (continued)
The Watch Shop Holdings Limited and Watch Shop Logistics Ltd

On 18 June 2021, JD acquired 100% of the issued share capital of The Watch Shop Holdings Limited and Watch Shop Logistics
Ltd (together ‘WatchShop’) via a wholly owned intermediate holding company. Total cash consideration paid was £26.2m.
Contingent consideration is payable subject to certain criteria being met. The fair value of the contingent consideration as at the
acquisition date and as at 31 December 2021 was determined to be £nil.

WatchShop is an online retailer of designer fashion watches from brands such as Armani, Michael Kors and Hugo Boss. Included
within the fair value of the net identifiable assets on acquisition is an intangible asset of £2.5m representing the WatchShop fascia
name. The JD board believes that the excess of consideration paid over net assets on acquisition of £10.6m is best considered as
goodwill on acquisition representing future operating synergies.

The revenue from WatchShop included in the Consolidated profit and loss account for 2021 was £17.7m. WatchShop also
contributed loss before tax of £0.1m over the same period.

Bodytone International Sport S.L.

On 3 August 2021, Tberian Sports Retail Group SL (‘ISRG’), JD’s existing intermediate holding company in Spain, acquired 50.1%
of the issued share capital of Bodytone International Sport S.L. (‘Bodytone’) for initial cash consideration of £8.9m. Additional
consideration of up to £3.1m is payable if certain performance criteria are achieved and the fair value of this contingent
consideration as at the acquisition date and as at 31 December 2021 was determined to be £2.9m.

Based in Murcia in Spain, Bodytone manufactures and distributes professional fitness equipment with a presence in over 40
countries worldwide. ISRG believes that the acquisition of Bodytone will enhance its product categories and improve its
specialised sporting goods offer. Included within the fair value of the net identifiable assets on acquisition is an intangible asset
of £4.9m representing the Bodytone name. The JD board believes that the excess of consideration paid over net assets on
acquisition of £8.8m is best considered as goodwill on acquisition representing future operating synergies.

Put and call options over the remaining 49.9% shareholding have also been agreed and become exercisable in tranches from 2024
onwards. A valuation of these put options has been performed using an earnings multiple, a suitable discount rate and approved
forecasts, and the initial liability of £11.3m has been recognised with the corresponding entry to other equity in accordance with
the present value method of accounting. These options are required to be fair valued at each accounting period date.

The revenue from Bodytone included in the Consolidated profit and loss account for 2021 was £6.2m. Bodytone also contributed
profit before tax of £1.0m over the same period.

Hairburst Holding Group Limited

On 17 September 2021, JD acquired 75% of the issued share capital of Hairburst Holding Group Limited, including three wholly
owned subsidiaries (together ‘Hairburst’) for cash consideration of £26.2m.

Hairburst retails own label haircare products and vitamins via a direct to consumer website and as a wholesaler both in the UK
and internationally. Included within the fair value of the net identifiable assets on acquisition is an intangible asset of £6.6m
representing the Hairburst name. The JD board believes that the excess of consideration paid over net assets on acquisition of
£18.1m is best considered as goodwill on acquisition representing future operating synergies.

Put and call options over the remaining 25% shareholding have also been agreed and become exercisable in tranches from 2025
onwards. A valuation of these put options has been performed using an earnings multiple, a suitable discount rate and approved
forecasts, and the initial liability of £8.4m has been recognised with the corresponding entry to other equity in accordance with -
the present value method of accounting. These options are required to be fair valued at each accounting period date.

The revenue from Hairburst included in the Consolidated profit and loss account for 2021 was £5.6m. Hairburst also contributed
profit before tax of £0.5m over the same period.

Wheelbase Lakeland Limited

On 3 June 2021, JD exchanged contracts on the conditional acquisition of 77.5% of the issued share capital of Wheelbase Lakeland
Limited (‘Wheelbase’). Completion of the acquisition was subject to obtaining consent for the change in control from the Financial
Conduct Authority. This was obtained and the acquisition subsequently completed on 30 September 2021. The cash consideration
paid was £22.2m.

Operating from three stores on acquisition and a trading website, Wheelbase is firmly established as one of the premier cycling
retailers in the UK, and the product offering centres on premium cycles and accessories from key brands such as Cube,
Cannondale, Trek and Specialized. Included within the fair value of the net identifiable assets on acquisition is an intangible asset
of £1.4m representing the Wheelbase fascia name. The JD board believes that the excess of consideration paid over net assets on
acquisition of £18.7m is best considered as goodwill on acquisition representing future operating synergies.

Put and call options over the remaining 22.5% shareholding have also been agreed and become exercisable in tranches from 2025
onwards. A valuation of these put options has been performed using an earnings multiple, a suitable discount rate and approved
forecasts, and the initial liability of £4.0m has been recognised with the corresponding entry to other equity in accordance with
the present value method of accounting. These options are required to be fair valued at each accounting period date.

The revenue from Wheelbase included in the Consolidated profit and loss account for 2021 was £2.8m. Wheelbase also
contributed profit before tax of £0.2m over the same period.
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10 Business Combinations (c_ontinued)
XLRS8 Sports Limited

On 19 November 2021, JD acquired 100% of XLR8 Sports Limited trading as Leisure Lakes Bikes (‘Leisure Lakes’) for initial cash
consideration of £25.6m plus additional consideration up to a maximum of £15.0m if certain performance criteria are achieved.
The fair value of this contingent consideration as at the acquisition date and as at 31 December 2021 was determined to be £11.2m.

Operating from 10 stores and a trading website, Leisure Lakes is considered to be one of the leading omnichannel retailers of
bicycles and bicycle parts, equipment, clothing and accessories, and is a key partner for most of the major brands including Trek,
Cube and Specialized. Included within the fair value of the net identifiable assets on acquisition is an intangible asset of £2.5m
representing the Leisure Lakes fascia name. The JD board believes that the excess of consideration paid over net assets on
acquisition of £25.9m is best considered as goodwill on acquisition representing future operating synergies. .

The revenue from Leisure Lakes included in the Consolidated profit and loss account for 2021 was £2.5m. Leisure Lakes also
contributed profit before tax of £0.1m over the same period.

GymNation

On 24 December 2021, JD’s existing subsidiary JD Sports Gyms Limited (‘JD Gyms’) acquired 100% of GymNation Limited and
its 100% owned subsidiary GymNation LLC (together ‘GymNation’) for cash consideration of $42.2m and contingent
consideration of $6.1m. The company assessed the substance of the contingent payment taking into account the management
leaver terms of the shareholder agreement and concluded that an element of the contingent payment is a future payment to
employees and the remainder is contingent consideration. Contingent consideration is cash-settled and is linked to GymNation’s
future performance. It is initially measured at fair value and is subsequently remeasured to fair value at each reporting date until
the contingency is settled. The fair value of contingent consideration recognised at 31 December 2021 is $6.6m (£4.9m). The
maximum amount of the future payment is £75m.

GymNation is a chain of seven gyms in the UAE (six in Dubai and one Abu Dhabi). Included within the fair value of the net
identifiable assets on acquisition is an intangible asset of £7.9m representing the GymNation fascia name. The JD board believes
that the excess of consideration paid over net assets on acquisition of £21.8m is best considered as goodwill on acquisition
representing future operating synergies.

The revenue from GymNation included in the Consolidated profit and loss account for 2021 was £nil. GymNation also contributed
profit before tax of £nil over the same period.

Other Acquisitions

During the year, the Group made one other small acquisition. This transaction was not material.
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11 Intangible assets
Reacquired
Goodwill Fascia name right Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Group
Cost .
At 1January 2021 . 903.2 300.8 66.5 254.4 1,524.9
Additions . - - - 22.4° 22.4
Acquisitions 485.0 212.8 - 25.4 723.2
Reclassification - - - 0.2 0.2
Disposals - - - (30.7) (30.7)
Currency adjustments (25.8) - 0.8 (4.4) (29.4)
At 31 December 2021 1,362.4 513.6 67.3 267.3 2,210.6
Acéumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2021 358.6 100.8 27.9 149.2 636.5
Amortisation 92.7 38.0 6.6 25.4 162.7
Impairments 18.0 0.1 31.7 4.9 54.7
Reclassification - - - (1.3 (1.3)
Disposals - - - (22.1) (22.1)
Currency adjustments 0.2 - 1.1 1.3 2.6
At 31 December 2021 469.5 138.9 67.3 157.4 833.1
Net book value at
31 December 2021 892.9 374.7 -. 109.9 1,377.5
31 December 2020 544.6 200.0 38.6 105.2 888.4

The amortisation of £162;7m is included within the ‘Amortisation of goodwill and other intangibles’ line in the Consolidated profit
and loss account.

In addition, the Group owns a portfolio of brands whose value is not recognised in the Consolidated balance sheet. Other
intangibles include licences, software development and customer relationships.

The acquisition of intangibles assets in the current year principally relate to the acquisition of goodwill and fascia names as
described in note 10.

Other additions of £22.4m (2020: £27.7m) in the current year relate to software of £13.7m, brands of £5.2m and other of £3.5m.
The Company has no intangible assets as at 31 December 2021 (2020: £nil).
lmpai_rment

The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed annually to assess whether there has been any diminution in value following any trigger
event that may indicate an impairment. The cash-generating units used are individual stores and the groups of cash-generating
units are either the store portfolios or individual businesses acquired. The recoverable amount is compared to the carrying amount
of the cash-generating units including goodwill.

The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations. The intangible assets in the
table below have been reviewed for indicators of impairment. The carrying amount of goodwill and fascia name by cash-
generating units, along with the key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation, are as follows:

(1)  The short-term growth rate is the compound annual growth rate for the 5 year period from 1 January 2022, based on
management forecasts. The rates used range between 1% and 4.8%

(2) The long-term growth rate is the rate used thereafter, which is an estimate of the growth based on past experience within
the Group taking account of economic growth forecast for the relevant industries. The rates used range between 1% and
3.0%

(3) Thediscount rate applied is pre-tax and reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and any specific
risk premiums relevant to the individual cash-generating unit. These discount rates are considered to be equivalent to the
rates a market participant would use. The rates used range between 8.5% and 20.4%

The cash flow projections used in the value-in-use calculations are all based on actual operating results, together with financial

forecasts and strategy plans approved by management of the relevant business units, covering a 5 year period. These forecasts
and plans are based on both past performance and expectations for future market development.
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11 Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment (continued)

The impairment of £54.7m (2020: £94.2m) primarily relates to Speedo North America’s reacquired right, which is fully impaired
(£31.7m), goodwill of investment in Endura Ltd fully impaired (£16.3m), Rascal Clothing Limited (£1.8m), software (£2.0m) and
other (£2.9m). The impairment has been recognised within exceptional items in the Consolidated profit and loss account.

The individual intangible assets which are material to the financial statements are the following:

Remaining amortisation

Carrying amount period (years)
2021 2020 2021 2020

Em £m
Goodwill on acquisition of Shoe Palace 363.7 406.7 9 10
Fascia name on acquisition of Shoe Palace 95.9 106.4 9 10
Goodwill on acquisition of DTLR 196.2 - 10 -
Fascia name on acquisition of DTLR : 93.9 - 10 -
Goodwill on acquisition of MIG 38.8 - 10 -
Fascia name on acquisition of MIG 28.8 - 10 -
Goodwill on acquisition of JD Gyms (X4L) 12.0 14.1 9 10
Goodwill on acquisition of JD Sports Fashion Plc 6.9 ) 9.5 3 4
Goodwill on acquisition of Endura Ltd. - 19.0 7 8
Goodwill on acquisition of Sports Zone 11.0 12.3 7 8
Goodwill on acquisition of Finish Line Inc. 68.1 78.4 7 8
Fascia name on acquisition of Finish Line Inc. 47.4 54.7 7 8
Fascia name on acquisition of Go Outdoors Topco Limited 12.3 18.3 5 6

Sensitivity analysis

A sensitivity analysis has been performed on the base case assumptions of margin growth used for assessing the goodwill and
other intangibles, which in the Group’s Consolidated balance sheet largely comprise the assets managed by JD.

JD’s management has considered the possibility of each business achieving less revenue and gross profit % than forecast. Whilst
any reduction in revenue would be partially offset by a reduction in revenue related costs, JD’s management would also take
action to mitigate the loss of gross profit by reducing other costs. With regards to the assessment of value-in-use of all cash-
generating units, with the exceptions of those listed below, JD’s management believe that there are no reasonably possible
changes in any of the key assumptions which would cause the carrying value of the unit to exceed its recoverable amount.

For Go Outdoors and Shoe Pé]ace CGUs, significant changes to the base case assumptions could eliminate the headroom and
cause the carrying value of the CGU to exceed its recoverable amount. +/-1% was considered a reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions: short-term growth rate, long-term growth rate and pre-tax discount rate.

For the Go Outdoors cash-generating unit, +/-1% change in key assumptions, with all other assumptions remaining unchanged,
would not result in an impairment.

For the Shoe Palace cash-generating unit, marginal changes in key assumptions could cause the carrying value of the unit to
exceed its recoverable amount. The following sensitivities were performed:

- if the pre-tax discount rate increased by 1%, with all other assumptions remaining unchanged, this would result in an
impairment of £19.2m (representing 3.5% of the carrying value of the Shoe Palace Group CGU)

- reducing the short-term and long-term growth rate by 1%, with all other assumptions remaining unchanged, would result
in an impairment of £18.1m (representing 3.3% of the carrying value of the Shoe Palace Group CGU

- reducing the forecast gross profit margin rate by 1%, with all other assumptions remaining unchanged, would not result
in an impairment but would reduce the headroom to £8.1 million (representing 1.5% of the carrying value of the Shoe
Palace Group CGU)

+/-1% was considered a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions listed above. Whilst the potential impairments as a
result of the sensitivity analysis are material in value, they are not significant as a % of the £546.7m carrying value of the Shoe
Palace Group CGU. Whilst the model is sensitive to the assumptions used, there are no indicators of impairment in relation to
the Shoe Palace intangibles since acquisition in December 2021 and Shoe Palace (along with JD’s other businesses in the US) has
performed well against expectations over the last financial year. This will, however, be kept under close review by JD’s
management during 2022.
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12 ~ Tangible assets
Long Short - Fixtures Assets
Freehold leasehold leasehold Plant and and under
' property property property equipment  fittings construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Group ’
Cost : -
At 1January 2021 ’ 94.1 7.1 203.0 119.5 813.2 1.0 1,237.9
Additions 2.2 - 50.0 22.9 124.2 1.4 200.7
Acquired subsidiaries 01 - 52.3 ) 3.9 32.3 - 88.6 -
Transfer to investment
property (note 13) - (2.2) - - - - (2.2).
Disposals (0.4) - (7.0) (23.2) (23.3) - (53.9)
Demerger of the o :
Investment Group 2.7) (3.6) (0.1) (1.9) (5.2) - (13.5)
(note 5)
Reclassification 08 - (4.8) 2.3 1.5 - (0.2)
Currency adjustments 0.4 - 4.1 (0.9) (19.3) - (15.7)
At 31 December 2021 94.5 1.3 297.5 122.6 923.4 ) 2.4 1,441.7
Accumulated depreciation
At 1January 2021 20.5 2.6 80.1 89.1 405.6 - 597.9
Acquired subsidiaries (0.1) - - - - - (0.1)
Depreciation charge for R
the year 2.3 0.1 21.6 18.2 117.1 159.3
Impairments 0.3 - 1.3 0.6 6.3 - 8.5
Disposals (0.1) - (4.4) (22.3) (20.3) - (47.1)
Demerger of the
Investment Group (0.4) (1.8) - (1.5) (0.7 - 4.9
(note 5) _
Reclassification 0.5 - 1.6 1.3 {2.1) - 1.3
Currency adjustments - .- 0.2 0.2 1.7 - 2.1
At 31 December 2021 23.0 0.9 100.4 85.6 507.6 - 717.5°
Net book value at
31 December 2021 71.5 0.4 197.1 37.0 415.8 2.4 724.2
31 December 2020 73.6 4.5 122.9 30.4 407.6 1.0 640.0

Depreciation of £159.3m has been recognised within administrative expenses in the Consolidated profit and loss account.

Impairment
Due to the existence of impairment indicators, JD performed an impairment assessment of certain Store cash-generating units.

The discount rate applied in the value-in-use calculations is a pre-tax measure based on the historical industry average weighted
average cost of capital, with a possible debt leverage of 15% at a market interest rate of 5%. The discount rate applied reflects any
specific risk premiums relevant to the Store CGU. These discount rates are considered to be equivalent to the rates a market
participant would use.

Impairment charges of £8.5m (2020: £10.1m) relate to all classes of property, plant and equipment in Store CGUs which are loss
making and where it is considered that the position cannot be recovered as a result of a continuing deterioration in the performance
of the particular store. The loss is based on the specific revenue streams and costs attributable to the Store CGU. Assets in impaired
Store CGUs are written down to their recoverable amount which is calculated as the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and
value-in-use.
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13 Investment property
Total
£m
Group
Cost -
At 1 January 2021 ) 9.1
Net gain from fair value adjustments : 0.7
Transfer from tangible fixed assets (note 12) : © 22
Disposals (0.2)
Demerger of the Investment Group (note 5) 8.9)
Currency adjustments 0.1
At 31 December 2021 : 3.0
The Company had no investment properfy as at 31 December 2021 (2020: £nil).
14 Non-current investments
Participating
interest in Unlisted
associates and joint interests at
ventures fair value Total
£m £m £m
[al
Group
At 1 January 2021 31.2 465.6 496.8
Additions {b] 57.1 53.9 111.0
Share of operating profits for the year . 15.7 - 15.7
Net interest received/(paid) by associate undertakin 0.1 - 0.1
Tax charge on income (2.2) - (2.2)
Disposals - (54.2) (54.2)
Dividends [c] (23.2) - (23.2)
Fair value gain - 87.9 87.9
Currency adjustments (0.2) 0.6 0.4
Demerger of the Investment Group (note 5) - (553.8) (553.8)
At 31 December 2021 78.5 T 78.5

[a] When quoted prices are unavailable, the price of a recent transaction for an identical asset provides evidence of fair value as
long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances or a significant lapse of time since the transaction
took place. If the market is not active and recent transactions are not a good estimate of fair value, and it is economic to do
so, the fair value is estimated by using a valuation technique using available information. Where the fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the cost value is used. The asset is held at the cost amount less impairment until a reliable measure of fair
value becomes available.

[b] Participating interest additions in the year relate to Applied Nutrition (£29.5m), Gym King (£22.7m) and other JD associates
(E4.9m).

[c] Dividends from associate undertakings relate to Pentland Chaussures Limited (£16.3m), Applied Nutrition (£6.0m) and
Mallet (£0.9m), which were declared and paid in the year.

Subsidiary undertakings
£m
Company
As at 1 January 2021 5,130.0
Return by way of demerger to shareholders (709.0)
At 31 December 2021 . 4,421.0

The subsidiary undertakings of the Group are listed in note 15.

In October 2021, the Investment Group was demerged into a newly established group. Following a number of steps, the demerger
was ultimately affected by the Company undertaking a capital reduction of its share premium. This was satisfied by the transfer,
by the Company, of the entire issued share capital of Pentland Investment Holdings Limited, a newly incorporated parent
company of the Investment Group, to Pentland Capital Holdings Limited.
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14 - Non-current investments (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings (continued)

The carrying value of the Company’s investment in Pentland Investment Holdings Limited of £709m is presented as a réturn by

way of demerger to shareholders in the table above.

The fair value of the Investment Group returned to the shareholders was £952m on the date of demerger. For more details refer
to note 5 ‘Discontinued operations’.

15 Group undertakings

The following companies were direct and indirect undertakings of the Company at 31 December 2021. Shares in Pentland
Industries International Designated Activity Company are held directly by the Company. All other holdings in subsidiaries,

associates and joint venture undertakings are owned by members of the Group. All subsidiaries are consolidated in the Group’s

financial statements.

Subsidiary undertakings
Name Country Of. Registered office Nature of the business Interest
incorporation
Airborne Footwear . . 8 Manchester Square, London, Design, sourcing, marketing o
Limited United Kingdom w1U 3PH & distribution of footwear 100%
Design, sourcing, marketing
s . . 8 Manchester Square, London, & distribution of outdoor o
Berghaus Limited United Kingdom WiU 3PH clothing, footwear & related 100%
accessories
Boxfresh International . . 8 Manchester Square, London, . .
Limited United Kingdom W1U 3PH Hibernated business 100%
. . . 8 Manchester Square, London, Holding company of the o
Canterbury Limited United Kingdom W1U 3PH Canterbury group 100%
Canterbury of New . . 8 Manchester Square, London, Design & wholesale of . o
Zealand Limited United Kingdom W1U 3PH Canterbury branded products 100%
s . . 8 Manchester Square, London, Management of the Ellesse o
Ellesse Limited United Kingdom W1U 3PH brand 100%
Ellesse International Ital Italia — Perugia-Via Mario Licensing company for the 100%
SpA Y Angelonin.80/a Ellesse brand °
3 Starlaw Business Park, Design, manufacturing and
Endura Ltd United Kingdom  Livingston, West Lothian, EH54 sale of cycle specific clothing 100%
: 8SF and accessories
. . .. . . 8 Manchester Square, London, Retailer of clothing in
First Retail UK Limited  United ngdgm W1U 3PH specialist stores 100%
. . Retailer of clothing and
JD Sports Fashion plc United Kingdom Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, footwear in specialised stores, 51.89%
Bury, Lancashire BLg 8RR . p p
via mail order and internet
Design, sourcing, marketing
Mitre Sports . : 8 Manchester Square, London, & distribution of sports o
International Limited United Kingdom W1U 3PH footwear, balls and related 100%
: accessories
Pentland Brands . . 8 Manchester Square, London, . . R o
Limited United Kingdom W1U 3PH Provision of shared services 100%
Pentland Brands Miinchner StraBe 125 Provision of sales and
Deutschland GmbH Germany 83703 Gmund a Tegernsee- marketing services to brands 100%
€ Diirnback within Pentland Brands
Import and wholesale of
30/32 avenue du Général swimwear, t-shirts, outerwear
:ﬁ::;ngagr ands France Leclerc, 92100 Boulogne- and all other products 100%
Billancourt associated with sports
activities
Pentland Brands UK . . 8 Manchester Square, London, Distribution of footwear in o
Distribution Limited ~ Umited Kingdom v,y pyy the UK 100%
Pentland Brands . . 8 Manchester Square, London, .
Greenhouse Limited United Kingdom W1U 3PH Non-trading company 100%
Business development and
Pentland Brands sales agent of other
Overseas Agency United Kingdom 3V1:/[I? ncphlister Square, London, companies within the 100%
Limited 3 Pentland Brands group of
companies
Pentland Group . . 8 Manchester Square, London Management holding o
(Trading) Limited United Kingdom WiU 3PH company 100%
Pentland Holdings : 8 Manchester Square, London,  Intermediate holding o
BV The Netherlands W1U 3PH company 100%

1. Tax residency is United Kingdom
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15 _ Group undertakings (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings (continued)

(Thailand) Co., Ltd

Pathumwan Sub-District,
Thailand

Name gl(zg:'ptrgr:‘t:ion Registered office Nature of the business Interest
Pentland Industries
International 3 Dublin Landings, North Wall  Intermediate holding
Designated Activity Ireland Quay, Dublin 1 company 100%
Company " '
.. . . 8 Manchester Square, London,  Royalty income company of o
Peptland KM Limited United Kingdom WU 3PH Karen Millen footwear 100%
. . . 8 Manchester Square, London,  Intermediate holding 9
Pentland UK Holdings  United Kingdom WiU 3PH company 100%
Red or Dead Limited United Kingdom ?NI;/I[? r;)hgster Square, London, gl::;g;rr::gt of the ‘Red or 100%
Regentmart Limited  United Kingdom  Yahchester Square, London, — ering office accommodation 1005
. 8 Manchester Square, London,  Licensing company for the o
Speedo Holdings B.V.'  The Netherlands WU 3PH Speedo brand 100%
Specdonermaonsl g ingaom 8 Manchestr S, London,  SSUET souing mureting
Limited W1U 3PH related accessories
. 1209 Orange Street, Distribution of outdoor
Berghaus USA LLC ergéig::tates of Wilmington, New Castle, DE clothing, footwear and related 100%
19801 USA accessories
. 251 Little Falls Drive s
United States of A > Distribution of Canterbury
Canterbury USA LLC . Wilmington, New Castle, DE 100%
America 19808 USA branded apparel
’ . 251 Little Falls Drive, e
Ellesse USA LLC Unltegl States of Wilmington, New Castle, DE Distribution of Ellesse brand 100%
America 19808 USA apparel
. Howard Hughes Parkway L
United States of 3773 Distribution of Endura
Endura Inc. - Suite 500’s Las Vegas, NV . 100%
America 8916 95US A g branded cycling apparel °
. 251 Little Falls Drive, Distribution of sports
Mitre USA LLC H;:;?gjtates of Wilmington, New Castle, DE footwear, balls and related 100%
19808 USA accessories
. 251 Little Falls Drive, .
f:éltland Brands USA grr:ll;z:ic :tates of Wilmington, New Castle, DE Eosm pa;snt and holding 100%
: 19808 USA 'pany
e . 251 Little Falls Drive, : :
IS::Vees Acquisitions H:::(t;;ic:tates of Wilmington, New Castle, DE ig:sn::dlate holding 93.5%
19808 USA pany
. 251 Little Falls Drive, . . .
SeaVees Holdings Inc gjr::&:tates of Wilmington, New Castle, DE ig:le]rr::dlate holding 93.5%
19808 USA pany
. 251 Little Falls Drive, Design, development,
SeaVees Inc er:étregtates of Wilmington, New Castle, DE sourcing, marketing & 93.5%
19808 USA distribution of footwear
2200 HSBC Building, 885 Distributor of Speedo branded
SDE::g ?l?u(t:?or;a;i:c Canada Weést Georgia Street, swimwear and related 100%
: Vancouver, BC accessories
: . 1209 Orange Street, . .
. i[l):edo NA Holdings H:::S?c:tates of Wilmington, New Castle, DE ig:srr:sdlate holding 100%
. 19801 USA pany
. . 251 Little Falls Drive, Distributor of Speedo branded
Speedo USA Inc. Krr:::idc:tates of Wilmington, New Castle, DE swimwear and related 100%
19808 USA accessories
. 251 Little Falls Drive,
fgcgedo USA Products er::idc:tates of Wilmington, New Castle, DE Service company 100%
. 19808 USA
| § Manchester Square, London,  Kangaross brandand. -
- anchester Square, London, ngaroos brand an
Asco Group Limited Bahamas WU 3PH ! intermediate holding 100%
company
. Chancery Court, The Mall, P.O. .
Asco General Supplies > ’ Buying agency and related
(Far East) Limited 2 Bahamas Box F-42632, Freepo;t, services 100%
Bahamas
No. 999/9 The Offices at
. . Centralworld, 19t Floor, Room
Asco General Supplies Thailand ML1910, Rama 1 Road, Sourcing operations 100%

1. Tax residency is United Kingdom
2. Tax residency is Hong Kong
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Subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Country of

Name incorporation Registered office Nature of the busme§s Interest
Unit 204, Saigon Riverside
Asco General Supplies Office Center Building, 24-4A
(Vietnam) Company Vietnam Ton Duc Thang Street, Den Sourcing operations 100%
Limited Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho Chi
Minh City, Vietnam
Canterbury
. PWC, Level 23, 480 Queen .
International . e ¢ Design & wholesale of 9
(Australia) PTY Australia Street, ]}nsbane, QLD 4000, Canterbury branded products 100%
e Australia
Limited
Canterbury of New 19 Copsey Place, Avondale, Design, market & sale of 5
Zealand Limited New Zealand Auckland, 1026 New Zealand sports apparel in New Zealand 100%
13/F, Harbour Crystal Centre, .
Pentland Asia Pacific 100 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Export trading of footwear o
Limited Hong Kong Tsui East, Kowloon Hong garments 100%
Kong -
13/F, HarbourCrystal Centre,
Pentland Brands Asia 100 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Export trading of footwear o
Pacific Limited Hong Kgng : Tsui East, Kowloon Hong garments 100%
Kong
Pentland India 145, Santhome High Road, Manufacturer and exporter of
Trading Private India MRC Nagar, Channai — 600 leather products and 100%
Limited 028, India accessories
Pentland Management Room 201, Block A, No. 1,
Consulting (Shenzhen) China QianWan Yi Road, Qianhai Service company 100%
Co. Limited Shenzhen
Pentland Trading Unit 4601, No. 268, Central Sﬁillgel; zﬁzecllfzgﬁpment,
(Shanghai) Company China Tibet Road, HuangPu District, . ! - 100%
Limited Shanghai City, PRC import/export, commission
! agency and consulting service
Dormant undertakings
Name Country of Registered office Nature of the business Interest
incorporation
Boxfresh Global . . 8 Manchester Square, London, o
Limited United Kingdom . WU 3PH Dormant company‘ 100%
Canterbury Cotton . . 8 Manchester Square, London, o
Oxford Limited United Kingdom WU 3PH Dormant company 100%
Canterbury European . . 8 Manchester Square, London, o
Fashionwear Limited United Kingdom WU 3PH Dormant company 100%
Ellesse International . . 8 Manchester Square, London, o
Limited United Kingdom WiU 3PH Dormant company 100%
Kangaroos Limited United Kingdom s\’lld[? r;(;,)};elzster Square, London, Dormant company 100%
Kangaroos : - 8 Manchester Square, London ' o
International Limited United Kingdom WU 3PH Dormant company 100%
Matchstick Sports pp— 8 Manchester Square, London, o
Limited United Kingdom WiU 3PH Dormant company 100%
Liverpool Shoe . : 8 Manchester Square, London,
Company Limited United Kingdom W1U 3PH Dormant company 100%
Pentland Brands . A 8 Manchester Square, London, o
Lakeside Limited United Kingdom WU 3PH Dormant company 100%
Pentland Brands UK . . 8 Manchester Square, London, N
Limited United Kingdom W1U 3PH Dormant company 100%
Prostar Sports Limited  United Kingdom ?Vlrl(? r;cph;st er Square, London Dormant company 100%
Robert Stephen . . 8 Manchester Square, London, o
Holdings Limited United Kingdom WU 3PH Dormant company 100%
The Brasher Boot United Kingdom 8 Manchester Square, London, Dormant company 100%

Company Limited

W1U 3PH
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15 Group undertakings (continued)

Dormant undertakings (continued)

Country of . ) : -
Name incorporation Registered office Nature of the business Interest
) . 251 Little Falls Drive,
PB Agency LLC H::teq States of Wilmington, New Castle, DE Dormant company 100%
erica
19808 US
Chancery Court, The Mall, P.O. .-
Asco Holdings Limited  Bahamas Box F-42632, Freeport, Inactive company 100%
Bahamas
Chancery Court, The Mall, P.O.
A.SCC.' I_nvestments Bahamas Box F-42632, Freeport, Inactive company 100%
Limited . .
Bahamas :
13/F, Harbour Crystal Centre,
.. 100 Granville Road, Tsim Sha o
Asset Member Limited Hong Kong Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Dormant company 100%
Kong
13/F, Harbour Crystal Centre,
Chinaways 100 Granville Road, Tsim Sha . o
International Limited Hong Kong Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Inactive company 100%
Kong
. Chancery Court, The Mall, P.O.
Footwear Sourcing ’ ’ " o
International Limited Bahamas ggﬁ F-42632, Freeport, Inactive company 100%
amas
13/F, Harbour Crystal Centre,
s 100 Granville Road, Tsim Sha o
Pentland Asia Limited = Hong Kong Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong 'Dormant Company 100%
Kong
Associate and joint venture undertakings
Country of . .
Name incorporation Registered office Nature of the business Interest
Joint ventures
10oth floor, Aitken Spence
Linea Aqua (Pvt) Ltd Sri Lanka Tower 11, No 315, Vauxhall Garments manufacture 50%
Street, Colombo
Associates
Pentland Chaussures : : 8 Manchester Square, London, fo om0
Limited United Kingdom W1U 3PH Footwear distributor 50%
Intermarket Agencies 33~ Floor, One Pacific Place, Footwear and Apparel o
(Far East) Limited Hong Kong 88 Queensway, Hong Kong distributor 30%

JD Sports Fashion plc subsidiaries

The Group’s interest in the partly owned subsidiary JD Sports Fashion plc is 51.89% as at 31 December 2021. The percentages
presented in the following tables represent JD’s interest in its undertakings and therefore does not represent the Group’s ultimate

interest.
Country of . . JD’s

Name incorporation Registered office Nature of the business Interest
2Squared Agency United Kingdom ggg“f;;‘c’;’skhy :3;;59‘]58‘{{‘;{“*" Distributor of fashion 100%
80s Casual Classics . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of fashion apparel
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BL9g 8RR and footwear 70%
AumberofNames g ngaom  Hollnsbonk Wy, Plerth, - Wholesleofdothingand
AMInsnct KOS e ngaom  HOlSbrook Way Ploserth,  Intermedistehding
Alpine Grou . . 1 Commercial Street, Leith, Int diate holdi
(Scpotland) Lﬁnited United Kingdom Edinburgh, EH6 6JD correg::y : "8 60%

. .. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding o
Athleisure Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR company 100%
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15 Group undertakings (continued)

JD Sports Fashion plc subsidiaries (continued)

Country of . . JD’s
Name incorporation Registered office Nature of the business Interest
Base Childrenswear . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of children’s fashion ’
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR apparel and footwear 80%
.. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of premium women’s © ano,
Bernard Esher Limited  United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR fashion apparel and footwear 80%
Blacks Outdoor Retail . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of outdoor footwear,
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR apparel and equipment 100%
Bodytone . Manufacture and distribute
. . Calle Legén, 180 — 30500, . o
éniematlonal Sport ‘ Spain Molina de Segura, Murcia ep;ﬁgisrilg:lltal fitness 25%**
Capso Holdings 33—37 Athol Street, Isle of Intermediate holding o
Limited Isle of Man Man, IM11LB company ) 100%
. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retail of clothing in a o
Catchbest Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR specialised store 80%
Champion Retail ~ - Ireland 3 Burlington Road, Dublin 4, Retailer of sports and leisure 1 00%
Limited D04RD68, Republic of Ireland ~ goods °
Champion Sports Ireland 3 Burlington Road, Dublin 4, Intermediate holding 100%
Group Limited D04RD68, Republic of Ireland  company °
Champion Sports Ireland 3 Burlington Road, Dublin 4, Retailer of sports and leisure 100%
Ireland Do4RD68, Republic of Ireland  goods
L . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of fashion apparel o
Choice Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR and footwear 88%
Clothingsites Holdings . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BL9 8RR company 100%
Clothingsites.co.uk . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of fashion apparel o
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR and footwear ) 100%
Cosmos Sport
Commercial, Hotgl Greece 148, 62 Martiron Ave. 71303, Retailer of sports inspired 80%
and Tourism Société Kaminia, Heraklion, Crete footwear and apparel
Anonyme
Cosmossport :I‘rading Cyprus 11.Michail Paridi, 1095, Retailer of sports inspired 80%
(Cyprus) Limited Nicosia footwear and apparel
Dallas D&K . 1300 Mercedes Drive Hanover  Athletic footwear and apparel
Corporation United States MD 21076 streetwear retailer 79%
. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of children’s fashion o
Dantra Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BL9g 8RR apparel and footwear 75%
Placa de la Ciencia 1 Local 4, . .
Deporvillage S.L. Spain Edifici Impuls, Manresa, R:ct)zlsler of sports and leisure 40%**
08240, Barcelona g
. . 1300 Mercedes Drive Hanover  Intermediate holding
DTLR Holding Inc United States MD 21076 company 79%
. . 1300 Mercedes Drive Hanover  Athletic footwear and apparel o
DTLR Villa LLC United States MD 21076 streetwear retailer 79%
. 1300 Mercedes Drive Hanover  Athletic footwear and apparel
DTLR, Inc United States MD 21076 streetwear retailer 79%
Duffer of St George . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, . .
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR Licensor of a fashion brand 100%
.. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding o
Focus Brands Limited  United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR company 100%
Focus Group Holdings . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding o
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR company 100%
Focus International . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Distributor of sports apparel o
Limited UK United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR and footwear 100%
Focus International Danzigerkade 9 A, 1013AP Distributor of sports apparel
NLB.V. Netherlands Amsterdam and footwear 100%
Viale Majno Luigi 17/A, 20122 Distributor of sports apparel o
Focus Italy S.pa. Italy Milano and footwear 100%
Wittestr. 30K, 13509, Berlin, Retailer of sports inspired o
Footasylum GmbH Germany 13509, Berlin footwear and apparel 100%
. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth,  Retailer of sports inspired o
Footasylum Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BL9 8RR footwear and apparel 100%
- o . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth,  ‘Intermediate holding o
Genesis Finco Limited ~ United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR company ‘ 100%
. . . 3308 N. Mitthoeffer Rd. Intermediate holding
Genesis Holdings Inc United States Indianapolis, IN 46235 company ; 80%
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JD Sports Fashion plc subsidiaries (continued)

Country of . . JD’s
Name incorporation Registered office Nature of the business Interest
. . . v 3308 N. Mitthoeffer Rd. Intermediate holding
ngesm Topco Inc United States Indianapolis, IN 46235 company 80%
George Fisher . . 41 Commercial Street, Intermediate holding o
Holdings Limited United Kingdom Edinburgh, EH6 6JD company 60%
. .. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of outdoor footwear,
George Fisher Limited  United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR apparel and equipment 60%
Giulio Fashion . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR company 88%
e .. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of premium fashion
Giulio Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR apparel and footwear 88%
Go Outdoors Fishing . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of outdoor leisure
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BL9 8RR equipment and apparel 100%
Go Outdoors Retail . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of outdoor leisure
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BL9g 8RR equipment and apparel 100%
. . . . 41 Commercial Street, Leith, Retailer of outdoor footwear, o
Graham Tiso Limited United Kingdom Edinburgh, EH6 6JD apparel and equipment 60%
: . British Virgin Craigmuir Chambers, Road Intermediate holding
GymNation Limited Islands Town, Tortola VG1110 company 94%
M Floor, ETA Star Building,
. Near Time Square Centre, Al
GymNation LLC UAE Quoz 1, Sheikh Zayed Road, Operator of fitness centres 94%
) Dubai
st Limied  UnedKingdom Hollnsreck Woy Blsverth - Retlerftai saminsand s
Hairburst Holding . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding o
Group Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR company 75%
. . . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of premium men’s
Hip Store Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR fashion apparel and footwear 100%
‘ N 6701 Center Drive W, Suite Retailer of sports and leisure o
I Am Athlete, LLC United States 700, Los Angeles, CA 90045 inspired goods 80%
. . Poligono Industrial de las . .
gzr;ansipom Retail Spain Atalayas, Avenida Euro, N2, ir;;elrr:sdlate holding 50.01%
P Alicante 03114 pany
Infinities Retail Group . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding o
Holdings Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR company 100%
Poligono Industrial de las . .
Jandernama SL Spain Atalayas, Avenida Euro, N2, ‘Izgtlelrr:sdlate holding 100%
Alicante 03114 pany
Poligono Industrial de las . N
JD Canary Islands . . Retailer of sports inspired
Spain Atalayas, Avenida Euro, N2, 65%
Sports SL Alicante 03114 footwear and apparel
. Neusser Strafle 93, 50670 Retailer of sports inspired
JD Size GmbH Germany Cologne footwear and apparel 100%
: Poligono Industrial de las . .
‘l]= D Spam Sports Spain Atalayas, Avenida Euro, N2, Retailer of sports inspired 65%
ashion 2010 SL Alicante 03114 footwear and apparel
Room No. TTo4 No. 1106 .
JD Sports (Thailand) Sukhumvit Road, Retailer of sports inspired
Limited Thailand Phrakhanong Sub-district, footwear and apparel 80%
Klongtoey District, Bangkok
JD Sports Fashion 96 R Du Pont Rompu, 59200 Intermediate holding o
(France) SAS France Tourcoing. company 100%
JD Sports Fashion . . . .
% o . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding
ﬁic;lixtlgzglons 2021 United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR company 100%
JD Sports Fashion AT . WallnerstraBe 1, 3. Stock, 1010 Retailer of sports inspired
GmbH Austria Vienna, Austria footwear and apparel 100%
JD Sports Fashion Aus . Level 12, 54 Park St, Sydney, Retailer of sports inspired o
Pty Australia NSW 2000 footwear and apparel 100%
JD Sports Fashion . Wiegstraat 21, 2000 Retailer of sports inspired
Belgium BV Belgium Antwerpen. footwear and apparel 100%
JD Sports Fashion BV TheNetherlands ~ Gosteinderweg 247 B 1432 AT Retailer of sg‘;‘;; Inspired 100%
: Harbour House, . S
JD Sports Fashion ¢/o ’ Retailer of sports inspired
Denmark APS Denmark Sundkrogsgade 21, 2100 footwear and apparel 100%

Copenhagen.
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JD Sports Fashion plc subsidiaries (continued)

Country of . . JD’s
Name incorporation Reglstered office N. afure of the business Interest
e . Intertrust Finland Oy, . -
JD Sports Fashion . c/o i Retailer of sports inspired o
Finland OY Finland ;illj;?;ﬁhankam 6, 00580, footwear and apparel 100%
JD Sports Fashion Neusser Strasse 93, 50670 Retailer of sports inspired o
Germany GmbH Germany Cologne footwear and apparel 80%
JD Sports Fashion trali Level 12, 54 Park St, Sydney, Intermediate holding o
Holdings Aus Pty A NSW 2000 company 100%
- B-808 The Platina, .
},x?dls;)zitls’ Fashion India Gachibawli, Hyderabad, gu;::,:il ;esd multi-channel 100%
Telangana, India - 500032 P
JD Sports Fashion Israel HaMelacha 8 Holon, Israel, Retailer of sports inspired 60%
Israel Ltd Zip code: 5881504 footwear and apparel °
JD Sports Fashion 6F Yoonik Bldg. 430 Eonju-ro,  Retailer of sports inspired o
Korea 50%
Korea Inc Gangnam-gu, Seoul footwear and apparel
Anderson Lloyd, Level 10
JD Sports Fashion NZ Otago House, Cnr Moray Place  Retailer of sports inspired o
Pty Limited New Zealand & Princes Street, Dunedin, footwear and apparel 100%
: 9016
- 190 Middle Road, 14-05, . L.
JD Sports Fashion - . Retailer of sports inspired o
PTE LTD Singapore fgg ;7?; Centre, Singapore, footwear and apparel 80%
Suite D23, 2ND Floor, Plaza
JD Sports Fashion Malaysia Pekeliling, No. 2, Jalan Tun Retailer of sports inspired 80%
SDN BHD ¥S Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur, footwear and apparel °
Malaysia
JD Sports Fashion Via Montenapoleone n. 29 - Retailer of sports inspired
Italy 100%
SRL : 20121 Milan footwear and apparel
. Intertrust CN (Sweden) . A
JD Sports Fashion cfo Retailer of sports inspired o
Sweden AB Sweden ggcilg)o?rgx 16285, 103 25 footwear and apparel 100%
JD Sports Gyms : . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth,
Limited United ngdgm Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR Operator of fitness centres 94%
. - 1200 Waterfront Centre, 200 . .
JDSF Holdings Canada Burrard Street, Vancouver BC Intermediate holding 80%
(Canada) Inc V6C 3L6 company
: 1200 Waterfront Centre, 200 . N
JDSF Retail (Canada) ? Retailer of sports inspired o
Inc Canada ggérgttsueet, Vancouver BC footwear and apparel 88%
JMH Cosmetics . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Other business support o
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR service 75%
John David Sports . : . T
. 3 Burlington Road, Dublin 4, Retailer of sports inspired
f;i};:gg (Ireland) Ireland Do4RD68, Republic of Ireland  footwear and apparel 100%
Unit 4, 27th Floor, Global _—
Kukri (Asia) Limited Hong Kong Trade Square, 21 Wong Chuk ;)r:zt;li)cl;tsosl;)gifessports apparel 80%
Hang Road, Hong Kong
Kukri Australia Pty . Level 12, 338-340 Pitt Street, Distributor of sports apparel
Limited Australia Sydney NSW 2000 and accessories 80%
. - . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Distributor and retailer of o
Kukri GB Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BL9 8RR sports apparel and accessories 80%
. - Unit 2, 45 The Boulevard, Te Distributor of sports apparel o
Kukri NZ Limited New Zealand Rapa Park, Hamilton and accessories 60%
10 Anson Road, 19-15 s
Kukri PTE Limited Singapore International Plaza, Singapore ?;Ztgggéggf:;pom apparel 80%
079903
Room 221-225, No. 2 Building,
Kukri Shanghai . . No.38 Debao Road, China Distributor of sports apparel o
. Shanghai 80%
Limited (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade and accessories
Zone, Shanghai, 200131
Kukri Sports Canada Canada 32:1:'(5131%113;?;?5‘{1%0813;%:; Distributor of sports apparel 60%
Inc V3C 6P3 ’ ’ and accessories’
Kukri Sports Ireland Ireland 3 Burlington Road, Dublin 4, Distributor of sports apparel 80%
Limited Do4RD68, Republic of Ireland  and accessories
. . . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding o
Kukri Sports Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BL9 8RR company 80%
Kukri Sports Middle UAE Lakeview Tower, Jumeirah Distributor of sports apparel 80%
East JLT Lake Towers, Dubai and accessories °
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JD Sports Fashion plc subsidiaries (continued)

Country of . . JD’s
Name incorporation Registered office Nature of the business Interest
Mainline Menswear L . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding
Holdings Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR company 80%
Mainline Menswear . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of premium men’s
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR fashion apparel and footwear 80%
Mz25 Business Centre, 121 . .
li’liﬁlittzéaFootwear United Kingdom Brooker Road, Waltham ;{:Eafl(l) (:)rt:feismon apparel 25%
Abbey, Essex, England, ENg 1J
. A Nikola Y. Vaptsarov Blvd. . .
Marketing Investment . 53 . *  Retailer of sports inspired
Group Bulgaria EOOD Bulgaria ;ﬁgg;;?k?’ms}gg:a zona footwear and apparel 60%
Marketing Investment . Jakubské 647/2, Staré Mésto, Retailer of sports inspired
Group Czech s.r.o. Czech Republic 110 00, Praha footwear and apparel 60%
y . Harju maakond, Tallinn . I
Marketing Investment . . o ’ Retailer of sports inspired
Group Estonia OU Estonia ;(els(lﬂllr;na linnaosa, Narva mnt footwear and apparel 60%
Marketing Investment
Group Hungary Horvat u. 14-24 4.em.2, Retailer of sports inspired R
Korlatolt FelelGsségu Hungary Budapest, 1027 footwear and apparel 60%
Tarsasag
. L. Prof. Michala . L
Marketing Investment s . Retailer of sports inspired o
Group S.A. Poland Zyczlsowsklego 10, 31-864 footwear and apparel 60%
Krakéw
Marketing Investment . . s . Retailer of sports inspired
Group Slovakia s. r. 0. Slovalda Michalskd 7, 811 03 Bratislava footwear and apparel 60%
MIG Marketing . .
Investment Group Austria M_ahlerstraBe 13/1B, 1010 Retailer of sports inspired 60%
Austria GmbH Vienna footwear and apparel
MIG Marketing . I
Investment Group Germany Dr. Hans-Lebach-Str. 2, 15537  Retailer of sports inspired 60%
GmbH Erkner footwear and apparel
MIG Marketing Calea Floreasca 169, Corp P1, . S
Investment Group RO Romania Etaj 3, Camera 10, Bucuresti ?eta:l:;ro: sgorts m:]p ired 60%
SRL 077190 00 nd appar
MIG Wholesale spétka Poland ul. Prof. Michala Wholesale of clothing and 60%
2 0.0. Zyczkowskiego 10, 31-864 footwear 0
.. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of teeth whitening
Mrblancteeth Limited  United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR products 75%
. ~ . Provide comprehensive 5
myBox Spolka z.0.0 Poland Logistyczna 9, 26-060 Checiny support for logistics processes 60%
Naylor's Equestrian . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of Equestrian
LLP United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BL9g 8RR equipment 100%
NiceKicks Holdings . 755 Jarvis Drive, Morgan Hill,  Retailer of athletic footwear
LLC United States CA 95037 and streetwear apparel 80%
Nicholas Deakins . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Distributor of fashion
Limited United Kingdomn Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR footwear 100%
. S . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retail sale of clothing in
Oi-Polloi Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR specialised stores 8o%
. 1200 Waterfront Centre, 200 . .
Opepomtﬁve Ventures Canada Burrard Street, Vancouver BC Retailer of fashion apparel 80%
Limited and footwear
V6C 3L6
3 Burlington Road, Dublin 4, Intermediate holding
PCPONE Ireland Do4RD68, Republic of Ireland  company 100%
. 20371 Irvine Ave, Suite 120, Retailer of spoi-ts and leisure
Pear Sports LLC United States Newport Beach, CA 92660 inspired goods 80%
.. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of fashion apparel
PG2019 Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR and footwear 100%
. .. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding
Pink Soda Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR company 100%
e . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retail sale of clothing in
Prevu Studio Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR specialised stores 100%
Prima Designer . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR company 100%
. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of fashion apparel
R.D. Scott Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR and footwear 100%
. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of fashion apparel o
Rascal Clothing Ltd United Kingdom and footwear 75%

Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR
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JD Sports Fashion plc subsidiaries (continued)

Name pountry Of. Registered office Nature of the business JD’s
incorporation Interest
Rua Joao Mendoga, n° 505,
SDSR - Sports Portugal Matosinhos Freguesia, Sao Retailer of sports and leisure 0%
Division SR, S.A Mamede de Infesta e Senhora goods 50%
da Hora, 4464 503 Matosinhos
Level 19—01, Block B, Plaza :
SEA Sports Fashion Malaysia Zurich, No. 12, Jalan Retailer of sports inspired 60%
SDN. BHD. ¥s Gelenggang, Bukit Damansara, footwear and apparel °
50490 Kuala Lumpur
Shoe Palace . 755 Jarvis Drive, Morgan Hill,  Retailer of athletic footwear o
Corporation United States CA 95037 and streetwear apparel 80%
SIA Marketing . L
Investment Group Latvia Riga, Lienes iela 1-3, LV-1009 tI-(etaller of sgorts ms]p ired 60%
Latvia ‘ootwear and apparel
. - . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth Retailer of sports inspired
? ’ ’ 0,
Size? Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BL9 8RR footwear and apparel 100%
. . 1300 Mercedes Drive Hanover  Athletic footwear and apparel o
Sneaker Villa Inc United States MD 21076 streetwear retailer 79%
- . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Design and distributor of o
Source Lab Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR sportswear 85%
South South East . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding o
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg9 8RR company 100%
Spodis SA France 96 R Du Pont Rompu, 59200 Retailer of sports and leisure 100%
Tourcoing goods
Avenida el Paso, 10, 19,
. Edificio Multiusos, Poligono - .
(Sspf)rt Zone Canarias Spain Industrial Los Majuelos, La R(e):(t)z:jlsler of sports and leisure 30%**
Laguna 38201, Santa Cruz de g
Tenerife
Sportiberica — . I . .
. . Avenida das Industrias, n.° 63, Retailer of sports and leisure
Sociedade de Arigos de  Portugal ., Y ’ 65%
Desporto S.A. Agualva do Cacém, Sintra goods
Sports Unlimited Oosteinderweg 247 B 1432 AT Retailer of sports and leisure o
Retail BV Netherlands Aalsmeer goods 50%
. Poligono Industrial de las : -
ls)gllr)lteerol:dt:gsafgntros Spain Atalayas, Avenida Euro, N2, R(;z(t’z:ilsler of sports and leisure 50%
P Alicante 03114 &
. . . 1300 Mercedes Drive Hanover  Intermediate holding o
Terminus Bidco, Inc. United States MD 21076 company 80%
. .. . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Intermediate holding 5
Tessuti Group Limited ~ United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR company 100%
Sy . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of fashion apparel o
Tessuti Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR and footwear 88%
The Alpine Group . . 41 Commercial Street, Leith, Intermediate holding o
Limited United Kingdom Edinburgh, EH6 6JD company 60%
The Finish Line . 3308 N. Mitthoeffer Rd. Retailer of sports and leisure o
Distribution, Inc United States Indianapolis, IN 46235 inspired goods 80%
The Finish Line Puerto . 3308 N. Mitthoeffer Rd. Retailer of sports and leisure
Rico, Inc United States Indianapolis, IN 46235 inspired goods 80%
The Finish Line . 3308 N. Mitthoeffer Rd. Retailer of sports and leisure
Transportation, Inc United States Indianapolis, IN 46235 inspired goods 80%
The Finish Line USA, . 3308 N. Mitthoeffer Rd. Retailer of sports and leisure o
Inc United States Indianapolis, IN 46235 inspired goods 80%
. . 3308 N. Mitthoeffer Rd. Intermediate holding o
The Finish Line, Inc United States Indianapolis, IN 46235 company 80%
The Watch Shop . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retail sale of watches and
Holdings Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR jewellery in specialised stores 100%
. .. . . 41 Commercial Street, Leith, Intermediate holding o
Tiso Group Limited United Kingdom Edinburgh, EH6 6JD company 60%
Topgrade Sportswear . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of sports inspired o
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR footwear and apparel 8o%
UAB Marketing . . .
. . Gvazdiky g. 170, LT-10247 Agency business for luxury o
E}gsj‘t;n ent Group Lithuania Vilnius childrenswear brands 60%
Uggbugg Fashion . . Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Retailer of fashion apparel o
Limited United Kingdom Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR and footwear 51%
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Name glocl:)l:';)rgr(;:ion Registered office Nature of the business In{]e)l;sast
Wellgosh Limited ~ United Kingdom  Holinsbrook Way, Pilsuorth, - Retalerof fashionapparel 10
. . Retail sale of sports goods,
(s akelnd g igaom SO Pt g campgsoods, 704
X4L Gyrns Limited United Kingdom g&gﬂ?;?:gls(h‘:\; :?’hzgsg&‘th’ Operator of fitness centres 94%
XLR8 Sports Limited United Kingdom gsg,nfg;(gghﬁzyhigsggg h, Retail sale of bicycles 100%
JD Sports Fashion plc dormant undertakings

Name ﬁﬁ:l(l)rxl'ggrzti on Registered office Nature of the business m{g: st
24Sevenbikes Ltd United Kingdom gﬁxﬁﬂ;ﬁgg& :’yhigsgvgg h, Dormant company 100%
ActivInstinct Limited United Kingdom ggg?fg;gggh‘:\;:,}’h{gs: ;gg h, Dormant company 100%
Aghoco 1966 Limited United Kingdom gsgﬁfﬁgzgghﬁ:?higsgggh’ Dormant company 100%
ﬁﬁ&%ﬁts'w'u}( United Kingdom gggﬁ;ﬁg;ﬁ:f i;igsgg{{th’ Dormant company 100%
Alpine Bikes Limited United Kingdom ‘Ea&%?ggfcéﬂgtgg’ Leith, Dormant company 60%
Ark Fashion Limited United Kingdom gl?ll_;:’ng;zg:h‘xz’yh};gsggg h, Dormant company 100%
isug ?g g Holdings United Kingdom gsg:lf,:;ggls(h‘g:y higsggg h, Dormant company 100%
?sug ?gg Trading United Kingdom ggg?fg;‘égghﬁz?higsg lggh ’ Dormant company 100%
Blue Retail Limited United Kingdom g&gﬁi:;zgghﬁ:?ii{gsg I({)g h, Dormant company 100%
fgmpgg)?&ﬁited Ireland %giﬁg’é‘é?&?ﬁ’if ofineland  DoTmant company 100%
3 Busingon Roat DUl ormantcompany
Choice 33 Limited United Kingdom gl?g?g;ﬁgh‘x:?’hgsgggh’ Dormant company 88%
Cloggs Online Limited ~ United Kingdom gsgﬂ);(gghﬁz’yhigsgvgg h, Dormant company 100%
Drome Limited United Kingdom gﬁgﬁ’;ﬁgghﬁz’)’b{gﬁ&m’ Dormant company 100%
El.xl;lilizgre Footwear United Kingdom g?ll_;:’nlsg;zggh‘x :’yiaigsgvkogh' Dormant company 90%
First Sport Limited United Kingdom gggﬁ’;ﬁ:gh‘g?higsg&m’ Dormant company. ?oo%
{g;liltsegquipment United Kingdom gggﬁ;ﬁgghﬁghigsgfgg h, Dormant company 100%
flje;icjl;ll:;% [I’gtlzsrrﬁtional United Kingdom gggﬁ;ﬁl‘hﬁé’yﬁ?g lglr{th, Dormant company 100%
gﬁﬁ’:ﬁlm Brands United Kingdom gggﬁ’;ﬁ:ghﬁgyhigsggg h, Dormant company 100%
zgg?itixgtggndon United Kingdom gg}_gﬂ’;ﬁg:&ﬁ%{?&gh’ Dormant company 100%
Eg::;é é{arrison United Kingdom gggﬁ;ﬁggh‘?r’:%{gsggg b, Dormant company 72%
GLii’Ii'tllezl,abel.com United Kingdom gggﬂ;ﬁgshﬁ:,yhigsg&nh’ DO@ant company 80%
Giulio Woman Limited  United Kingdom gggﬂ’;ﬁgghﬁ 3’131;‘%5;12? b, Dormant company 88%
Go Outdoors United Kingdom Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Dormant company 100%

Equestrian Limited

Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR
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JD Sports Fashion plc dormant undertakings (continued)

Name glocl:;l\':)rgrgtt;ion Registered office Nature of the business In{gz st
Eifxlf il:zr:jMiracle 3n United Kingdom gﬁgﬂ;ﬁﬁ‘;ﬁ?hﬂ?ﬁgh' Dormant company 94%
{{i?ilfeyds Clothing United Kingdom ggﬁ’;‘éﬁgﬁ? hl;gsgv;{)gh, Dormant company 100%
ﬁlxg i(tgérmingham) United Kingdom gg g?fg;gggh‘xz’yhigsggg b, Dormant company 100%
i?g?:;?s Retail Group United Kingdom gﬁgﬂ’;ggghﬁz?’higsgﬁgh’ Dormant company 100%
{‘Ii{gi.;\el(t]rincham United Kingdom ;?gﬁgzzghﬁ :’yhll"i;sgvlgfr{th, Dormant company 100%
il'luﬁi?;ékenhead United Kingdom I;Sg?ls.}:);?:ggh‘:\; Z’yhzgsgggh’ Dormant company 100%
Ei{giggd(bum United Kingdom gsg?f‘:;zgl(h‘gg?’hgsggg h, Dormant company 109%
IRG Bradford Limited ~ United Kingdom gggﬂ’;ﬁgg&:ﬁiﬂs&v&m’ Dormant company 100%
IRG Bury Limited United Kingdom gﬂ;}ﬂ’;‘;ﬁgh‘x 2?’%1;:5:{? h, Dormant compa'ny 100%
il;gi&}:iesterﬁeld United Kingdom gﬁgﬁ’;ﬁggx :?’%{gsggg b, Dormant company 100%
IRG Denton Limited United Kingdom gggﬂ’;ﬁgsgx&y ’Blz.gsévlgl;t h, Dormant company 100%
IRG Derby Limited United Kingdom ggg?f;’;%gghﬁi?’hgsgggh ’ Dormant company 100%
IRG Stockport Limited  United Kingdom gsgﬂ;ggghﬁg?/hl;gsggg h, Dormant company 100%
IRG Stoke Limited United Kingdom gsg?ﬁgzgghﬁz?’higsgggh’ Dormant company 100%
g;gi:;’grringt on United Kingdom gl? gﬁ;‘gghﬁz?’higsggg , Dormant company 100%
J D Sports Limited United Kingdom gggﬂ?;ﬁggh‘;\: 2?’%1;‘25;'{;}1' Dormant company 100%
JD Newco 2 Limited United Kingdom g:gﬁ’;‘:ggh‘;\:;yh{gsggg b, Dormant company 100%
'I{.gnsifec:im Active United Kingdom gsg?ig;?;:h‘x ;y,Bl;l;sgv Iggh’ Dormant company 100%
DSpomeOme e o EOUSOR NI, o company
Unit 4, 27th Floor, Global
Kukri (HK) Limited Hong Kong Trade Square, 21 Wong Chuk Dormant company 80%
Hang Road, Hong Kong
Kukri Events Limited United Kingdom gﬁgﬂ;‘éﬁhﬁz,}’h{?xgg h, Dormant company 80%
yifrf ﬁtel:ion Sports Ireland %g:ggg%?rﬁ;ﬁfﬁ’i?&bgglgﬁ d Dormant company - 100%
Millets Limited United Kingdom gﬁgﬁ;ﬁgghﬁ ghll)gs;vggh’ Dormant company 100%
Missy Empire Limited  United Kingdom g/?:nlék?:;::i?}éﬁtgrlze;&, M8 8JF Dormant company 51%
Modern Casuals Ltd United Kingdom gl?xl;:,nls.:;?:g:h‘;\; Z?hl;gsggg h, Dormant company 70%
Nanny State Limited United Kingdom g:gﬂ’;ﬁggh‘x :’}"Bl;gs:lgthh’ Dormant company 100%
8llcc;lt£::;mm$1?tge d United Kingdom g&gﬁ’;‘;’:}n’ thll’_gsgvlg;th, Dormant company 100%
%r:;;[t‘;léeSaxon United Kingdom g:ll_l;’nlsggzzls(hﬁ Z?I’BEsggthh’ Dormant company 100%
Open Fashion Limited ~ United Kingdom gggﬂ’;ﬁh‘x 2,}"13131;;;;}1 > Dormant company 100%
Suite 20, 196 Rose Street,
Peter Werth Limited United Kingdom Edinburgh, Midlothian, EH2 Dormant company - 100%
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

15 Group undertakings (continued)

JD Sports Fashion ple dormant undertakings (continued)

Name gﬁ:‘::-;rgrgiion Registered office Nature of the business In-':ges: st”
I’:Eg;z:jm Fashion . United Kingdom gﬁgﬂ;ﬁggh‘;&?’hiﬂsﬁg b, Dormant company 100%
Projekts NYC Limited  United Kingdom gﬁgﬂ;ﬂgghﬁgkigsggg h, Dormant company 100%
imig Fashions United Kingdom gﬁgﬂ;ﬁghﬁ :?’higsgvgg h, Dormant company 100%
Spikes Holding LLC United States ‘?r?&ig’plrlii:h% f:zggsd Dormant company 80%
Isﬁl:ll:t‘:él Sports United Kingdom gsg’ni:;zg:hﬁ :?’higsggg h, Dormant company 80%
Tessuti Retail Limited ~ United Kingdom gggf’s]z;zg:h‘x:?’hzgs: lglr{th, Dormant company 100%
;I:ce Finish Line Ma, United States ?r?gizrﬁpﬁlliitst,hl?\? Zfzrz:l;g Dormant company 80%
I?:li{:gn David Group United Kingdom gsgf‘g::g:h‘z 2’y ’Bl;‘gsgv](()g h, Dormant company 100%
Toperade SPOr Uit ingdom  HoLSbIook Wy, Skt porman company
Eilrtnhittl:ée Outdoors United Kingdom gl?gﬂ;zg};hﬁ :’y’BigS:lgE h’, Dormant company 100%
Varsity Kit Limited United Kingdom gggﬂ’;ﬁ;’;‘;\; :?'bigsgv}ggh’ Dormant company 100%
{\t’gtch Shop Logistics United Kingdom gt?g?i);zg]s(h‘;\: ;yhll"i;sngogh, Dormant company 100%
Weaver’s Door Ltd United Kingdom Hollinsbrook Way, Pilsworth, Dormant combany 100%

Bury, Lancashire, BLg 8RR

** JD’s indirect holding of <50%. The following are entities owned by Iberian Sports Retail Group SL (‘ISRG’), and ISRG’s
ownership and voting rights interest is presented in brackets: Bodytone International Sport S.L., (50.1%), Deporvillage S.L. (80%),
SDSR - Sports Division SR, S.A (100%), Sprinter Megacentros Del Deporte SLU (94%), Sport Zone Canarias S.L. (60%). JD is
deemed to control ISRG via its shareholding (50.01%) and board of director/chairman appointments, and subsequently deemed
to control these subsidiaries via its control of ISRG.

Associates and joint ventures of JD Sports Fashion plc

Country of . . JD’s
Name incorporation Registered office Nature of the business Interest
Associates
. . 2 Acornfield Road, Knowsley
Applied Nutrition : . . J Manufacture of other food
Limited United Kingdom ;xll;igstnal Park, Liverpool, L33 products 32%
. Tanzaro House, Ardwick
EimSailt';%Mllano United Kingdom Green N, Manchester, M12 Retailer of fashion apparel 30%
6HD
) 40—-42 Matthews Street,
The Couture Club Ltd ~ United Kingdom Higher Ardwick, Manchester, Retailer of fashion apparel 40%
England, M12 5BB
Joint Ventures
. . Atlan{ic House, 65 Jeddo Online own label women’s o
Brand Stable Ltd United Kingdom Road, London, W12 9gED fashion retailer 49%
. . Spring Court, Spring Road, . .
S;;.Gm Brands United Kingdom Hale, Cheshire, England, Retailer of fashion apparel 50%
ited WA14 2UQ and footwear
s . Spring Court, Spring Road, . .
G_lo 'G01 Trading United Kingdom Hale, Cheshire, England, Retailer of fashion apparel 50%
Limited WA14 20Q and footwear
‘IIsDraSell)(()lz‘tgzlESII.lilr(r)lrilte d Israel HaMelacha 8 Holon, Israel, Retailer of sports inspired 60%
Partnership Zip code: 5881504 footwear and apparel °
Marshall Artist . . 97 Alderley Road, Wilmslow, Intermediate holding
Holdings Limited United Kingdom England, SKg 1PT compan 25%
4 pany
Erajaya Plaza, Jalan
Bandengan Selatan Number
PT JD Sports Fashion  Indonesia 19-20, Kel. Pekojan, Kec. Retailer of sports inspired 51%

Tambora, Adm. City of West
Jakarta, DKI Jakarta Province,
11240
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

15 Group undertakings (continued)

Associates and joint ventures of JD Sports

Fashion plc (continued)

Country of . . JD’s
Name incorporation Registered office Nature of the business Interest
Joint Ventures
Erajaya Plaza, Jalan
Bandengan Selatan Number
PT JD Sports Fashion Indonesia 19-20, Kel. Pekojan, Kec. Retailer of sports inspired o
Distribution Tambora, Adm. City of West footwear and apparel 497
: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta Province,
11240
Unit 6 Temple Point
The Gym King . . Bullerthorpe Lane, Colton, Intermediate holding o
(Holdings) Limited United Kingdom Leeds, West Yorkshire, LS15 company 40%
: 9JL
- . Adlerstrafe 34, 90403 Online retailer and wholesaler o
The Gym King GmbH Germany Niirnberg of sports inspired apparel 40%
Unit 6 Temple Point
. - . . Bullerthorpe Lane, Colton, ‘Online retailer and wholesaler o,
The Gym King lelted United Kingdom Leeds, West Yorks’hire, LS15 of sports inspired apparel 40%
. 9JL
) Unit 6 Temple Point
The Gym King IE . . Bullerthorpe Lane, Colton, o
Limited United Kingdom Leeds, West Yorkshire, LS15 Dormant company 40%
9JL
Unit 6 Temple Point
The Gym King . . Bullerthorpe Lane, Colton, o
Wholesale Limited United Kingdom Leeds, West Yorkshire, LS15 Dormant company 40%
9JL
16 Inventories
2021 2020
: £m EFm
Group
Finished goods and goods for resale . 1,114.7 - 922,0
1,114.7 922.0
There is no significant difference between the replacement cost of inventory and its carrying amount.
Finished goods and goods for resale recognised as cost of sales in the year amounted to £4,564.0m (2020: £3,399.5m).
Inventories are stated after provisions for impairment of £102.6m (2020: £108.1m).
The Company had no inventories as at 31 December 2021 (2020: £nil).
17 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£m £m E£m £m
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 0.1 -
Trade debtors 115.8 88.6 -
Other debtors 60.8 60.0 - -
Social security and other taxes 0.9 0.5 - -
Derivative financial instruments (note 24) 18.5 0.2 - -
Corporation tax recoverable : 5.7 9.4 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 236.9 128.3 - -
438.6 287.0 0.1 -

Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured short-term liquidity balances with no fixed date of repayment and are

repayable on demand.

Trade debtors are stated after impairments of £13.5m (2020: £13.0m)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

18 Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 " 2020
£m Fm £m £m
Derivative financial instruments (note 24) 6.3 0.2 - -
Other debtors - 0.4 - -
Loan notes receivable - 8.8 - -
6.3 9.4 - -
19 Current investments
Listed Unlisted
investments investments
at fair value  at fair value Total current
£m £m investments
[a] [b] £m
Group
As at 1 January 2021 512.5 36.5. 549.0
Additions 35.2 = 35.2
Reclassification 13.7 (13.7) -
Fair value loss (22.4 2.5 (19.9)
Currency adjustments 4.8 - 4.8
Demerger of the Investment Group (note 5) (543.8 (25.3) (569.1)

As at 31 December 2021

[a] Fair value was determined with reference to the quoted market prices at the reporting date.

[b] Fair value is estimated with reference to valuation statements provided by the relevant private equity houses and fund

managers.
20 Cash and cash equivalents

, Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£m £m £m Em
Cash at bank and in hand 1,187.2 1,045.1 0.2 -
Short term deposits 418.6 261.4 - -
1,605.8 1,306.5 0.2 -
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Penﬂand Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

21 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 " 2020

£m £m £m £m

Trade creditors 671.3 609.4 : - -

Amounts owed to group undertakings 10.8 0.1
Corporation tax ’ ; 76.8 '83.5 - : -
Other taxation and social security 193.8 165.9 - -
Other creditors 51.1 16.5 - -
Accruals and deferred income © 767.9 623.1 . 0.2 0.2
Finance Leases ' 10.1 15.9 - -
Put options held by non-controlling interests (note 24) - 8.3 - -
Derivative financial instruments (note 24) 4.8 20.0 - . -
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 80.5 131.7 - -

1,856.3 1,674.3 11.0 0.3

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured short-term liquidity balances with no fixed date of repayment and are
repayable on demand.

22 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
£m Em £m £m
Other long-term creditors 80.0 99.7 - -
Derivative financial instruments (note 24) 2.8 20.8 - -
Put options held by non-controlling interests (note 24) 761.0 365.9 - -

Finance leases 9.7 -
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 59. 56.7 - -
912.9 5431 - -

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Following initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised
in the Consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Em Em £m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdrafts 80.5 131.7 - -
Amounts falling due after more than one year

Bank loans and overdrafts 59.4 56.7 - -

139.9 188.4 - -
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

22 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

Barik loans and overdrafts

Certain wholly owned UK subsidiaries have arrangements with individual banks whereby sterling, US dollar and euro cleared
credit balances are set-off against the respective debit balances on their current accounts with interest paid on any aggregate net
overdrafts. The net aggregate cash balances are reported for these arrangements. The Group has various short-term borrowing
facilities at its disposal. :

The bank loans and overdrafts attract interest rates at 0.4% - 8.2%. The overdrafts are repayable on demand and the bank loans
are repayable over periods between 2 and 70 months. The maturity of the bank loans and overdrafts is as follows:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£m £m £m Em
Within one year 80.5 131.7 - -
Between one and five years 57.3 56.7 - -

Due in more than five years 2.1 - - -

139.9 188.4 - -

Syndicated bank facility

As at 31 December 2021, JD and some of its subsidiaries have a syndicated committed £700m bank facility which expires on 6
November 2026. The facility was recently extended for a period of 2 years with no changes to existing terms (previous expiry 6
November 2024). JD is subject to covenants on net worth, net debt leverage and a fixed charge cover. Under this facility, a
maximum of 15 drawdowns can be outstanding at any time, with drawdowns made for a period of one, two, three or six months,
with interest currently payable at a rate of SONIA (Sterling Overnight Index Average) plus a margin of 0.9% (2021: LIBOR plus a
margin of 0.9%). The arrangement and underwriting fee payable on the facility is 1.0%. The commitment fee on the undrawn
element of the facility is 35% of the applicable margin rate.

Following the financial crisis, the reform and replacement of benchmark interest rates such as GBP LIBOR and other interbank
offered rates (‘LIBORs’) became a priority for global regulators. LIBOR fixings relevant to JD were no longer representative after
31 December 2021, creating a requirement for JD’s contracts which referenced LIBOR to use an alternative benchmark rate. JD’s
most significant risk exposure affected by these LIBOR changes relates to its syndicated committed bank facility. The reference
rate for borrowings made under this facility was amended to SONIA from 22 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the facility encompassed cross guarantees between JD, Blacks Outdoor Retail Limited, Tessuti Limited,
Go Outdoors Retail Limited, The Finish Line Inc, The Finish Line USA Inc, Genesis Holdings Inc, Genesis Topco Inc, Shoe Palace
Corporation, Terminus Bidco Inc, DTLR Villa.LLC, Genesis Finco Limited, Focus Brands Limited and Focus International
Limited.

At 31 December 2021, £nil was drawn down on this JD bank facility (2020: £nil). The Company does not provide any financial
support or guarantees to JD in support of JD’s operations or the facilities and indebtedness of JD to its bankers.

JD’s second principal bank facility is a syndicated Asset Based Lending Facility in the United States, which has a maximum
revolving advance amount of approximately $300m (2020: £nil) and expires on 24 September 2026. At 31 December 2021, $nil
was drawn down on this facility (2020: $nil).

23 Provisions for liabilities
Property provisions Restructuring  Onerous Other
and onerous contracts provision contracts provisions Total
£m £m £m Em £m
Group
At 1 January 2021 5.6 0.9 - 1.7 8.2
:cr‘(:)r\:l;iilgns reclassified from 1.5 . _ 13.9 25.4
Profit and loss account
charge/(credit) 37 0.3 5-2 (62) 3-0
Utilised during the year (0.4) (0.9) - - (1.3)
At 31 December 2021 20.4 0.3 5.2 9.4 35.3
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

23 Provisions for liabilities (continued)
Property provisions and onerous contracts

Property provisions and onerous contracts arise on onerous and vacant property leases and comprise rent and rates payable on
lowest cost of exit from the lease.

Restructuring provision

Restructuring provisions comprise operational reorganisation costs arising within the Group’s businesses.

Onerous contracts

Included within the onerous contracts provision is a minimum contractual cost for the remaining term on a non-cancellable
logistics services contract for the Azambuja warehouse in Portugal within the SportZone division of our listed subsidiary JD. The
provision will be unwound over the remaining 8 year period ending 30 September 2030

Other provisions’

The balance of other provisions is made up of various trade provisions and legal costs. The provisions are estimated based on
accumulated experience, supplier communication and management approved forecasts.

24 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value include:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£m £m £m Em
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Financial derivative instruments 24.8 0.4 - -
Fixed asset investments - 465. - -
Current asset investments - 549.0 - -
24.8 1015.0
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Financial derivative instruments (7.6) (40.8) - -
Put options held by non-controlling interests (761.0) (374.2) - -

(768.6) (415.0) -

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into foreign currency contracts to mitigate foreign exchange risk. As at 31 December 2021, outstanding contracts
all mature within 24 months (2020: 24 months) of the year end.

The Group utilises foreign exchange derivative contracts to help reduce exposure to currency volatility during the extended period
from design, costing and purchasing to selling and revenue generation from its products. Under FRS102 we are required to fair
value foreign exchange derivative contracts at the year end and report unrealised gains or losses in the profit and loss account.

Due to the significant volumes of US dollars and euro cash flows across the Group, these exposures are managed centrally by
Group Treasury on a combined rather than individual entity basis for those contracts that are non-JD related and by JD otherwise.
The objectives of this policy are to maximise the efficiency benefits of group hedging and to provide a level of exchange rate
certainty to individual entities to assist them in the forecasting, planning and budgeting processes.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group was committed to buy US$374.9m and sell €348.8m against a fixed sterling amount (2020:
buy US$539.8 and sell €388.3m). .

Fair value is determined using valuation techniques that utilise observable inputs. The key inputs used in valuing the derivatives
are the forward exchange rates for GBP: USD and GBP: EUR and risk-free interest rates.

The fair value of the foreign exchange derivative contracts owned by the Group was an asset of £24.8m (2020: £0.4m) and a
liability of £2.8m (2020: £40.9m). The unrealised fair value change arising from the foreign exchange derivative contracts
recognised in the Consolidated profit and loss account for the year was a gain of £58.9m (2020: loss £40.0m).

72

- R | Ay v W b - TS a0 R OV ) - - - PR




SR - T

Pentland Group Holdings Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

24 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Put Options held by non-controlling interests

Minority shareholders have a number of put options to sell remaining shares in partly owned subsidiaries. The present value of these
options has been estimated as at 31 December 2021, and is included within amounts falling due after more than one year in the

Consolidated balance sheet.

The present value of the estimated exercise price is calculated using the option price formula agreed on acquisition. All existing -
option price formulas are based on a profit measure, which is estimated by applying an approved growth assumption to the current
budget profit for the upcoming financial year, if appropriate for the individual business the put or call option directly relates to. A
discount rate is also applied to the option price, which is pre-tax, and reflects the current market assessment of the time value of
money and any specific risk premiums relevant to the individual businesses involved. These discount rates are considered to be

equivalent to the rates a market participant would use.

A breakdown of the movement in put options held by non-controlling interests is as follows:

2021 2020
£m £m
Group
Opening balance 374.2 77.9
Acquisitions 106.2 275.1
Disposals/lapse _ - (3.1)
Reclassified to other creditors 8.3 -
Change in fair value recognised in the Consolidated profit and loss account 288 5
(within operating exceptionals) -9 4-3
As at 31 December 761.0 374.2
Put options acquired of £50.2m relate to Marketing Investment Group S.A. (‘MIG').
25 Deferred taxation
The net deferred tax asset in 2021 (and 2020) is as follows:
2021 2020
£m £m
Group
Deferred tax asset 63.2 .23.2
Deferred tax liability (123.7) (176.5)
Net deferred liability (60.5) (153.3)
Accelerated capital allowances (21.7) -
Other timing differences* (52.4) (172.0)
Pension deficit (0.2) 13.2
Unrelieved tax losses 13.8 5.5
(60.5) (153.3)

*Other timing differences mainly attributable to deferred tax impact of fascia names acquired by JD (2020: fair values of non-

current and current investments).

The future potential deferred taxation asset in 2021 (and 2020), which has not been recognised on the basis that there was

insufficient evidence of suitable taxable profits, is as follows:

2021 2020
£m £m

Group
Unrecognised deferred tax asset 21.1 39.8
21.1 39.8
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (contmued)

26 Called up share capital and share premium
Share capital

No. £
Group and Company
At 31 December 2020
Authorised
Ordinary shares of £o 10001 each 10,000,000 1,000,100
Allotted, issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £0.10001 each 9,736,402 973,737.6
Re-designation and reclassification of ordinary shares into
a new class of A ordinary shares
Ordinary shares of £0.10001 each (1,345,682) (134,581.66)
A ordinary shares of £0.10001 each 1,345,682 134,581.66
At 31 December 2021
Authorised
Ordinary shares of £0.10001 each . 8,654,318 865,518,34
A ordinary shares of £0.10001 each 1,345,682 134,581.66
Allotted, issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £0.10001 each 8,390,720 839,155.91
A ordinary shares of £0.10001 each 1,345,682 134,581.66

To assist the demerger of the Investment Group, as further discussed in note 5 ‘Discontinued operations’, the Company re-
designated and reclassified, on a one-for-one basis, 1,345,682 ordinary shares of £0.10001 each into 1,345,682 A ordinary shares

of £0.10001 each.

The special rights attached to the ordinary shares and A ordinary shares are as follows:

Ordinary Shares

- Voting: entitle the holders to receive notice of, and to attend and vote at, general meetings of the Company pari passu

with all other holders of ordinary shares; and

; Income and capital: shall entitle the holders to participate in all income or capital of the Company to the exclusion of
the A ordinary shareholders other than on a return of capital on the winding up of the Company, where the repayment
of the capital paid up on the ordinary shares shall rank pari passu with the rights of the A ordinary shareholders to the

repayment of the capital paid up on the A ordinary shares.

A Ordinary Shares

- Voting: shall not entitle the holders to receive notice of, and to attend and vote at, general meetings of the Company;

and

- Income and capital: shall not entitle the holders to participate in any income or capital of the Company other than on a
return of capital on the winding up of the Company, where the repayment of the capital paid up on the A ordinary shares
shall rank pari passu with the rights of the ordinary shareholders to the repayment of the capital paid up on the ordinary

shares.

The Company is owned and controlled by R S Rubin, members of his immediate family and trusts whose beneficiaries include the

Rubin family.

Share premium

2021
£m

Group and Company
As at 1 January 5,129.0
Return by way of demerger of the Investment Group to the shareholders of the Company (709.0)
Dividend paid to the shareholders (10.0)
4,410.0

As at 31 December

In October 2021, the Investment Group was demerged into a newly established group. The demerger was ultimately affected by

the Company undertaking a capital reduction of its existing share premium (note 5 and 14).
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Pentland Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (contmued)

27 Commitments and contingencies
Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had authorlsed capital commitments of £18.3m (2020: £11.3m) of which £18. 3m (2020:
£11.3m) had been contracted.

Other commitments

In December 2021 the Group’s subsidiary, JD, signed a contract with ABG Reebok LLC to licence the Reebok brand in various
territories. The agreement is subject to terms and conditions and was not effective until after the 31 December 2021 financial year-
end. As a result, the Group has not recognised an intangible asset for the use of the brand in the Consolidated balance sheet at 31
December 2021, nor a liability for the discounted contractual minimum royalty payments under the initial 10 year term of £73.1m.

Defined benefit obligation

As set out in note 7, the net defined benefit obligation in respect of the Pentland Group Retirement Benefits Scheme has been split
between the Group, which retained a 60% net pension liability, and the demerged Investment Group headed by Pentland Capital
Holdings Limited, which assumed retained a 40% net pension liability. Certain companies within the Group, together with certain
companies within the demerged Investment Group, are jointly and severally liable for any obligations in respect of the Pentland
Group Retirement Benefits Scheme. No provision has been recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the Group as
the risk of liability arising is remote as at 31 December 2021.

Contingent liabilities

The activities of the listed subsidiary, JD, are overseen by a number of regulators around the world and, whilst the Group strives
to ensure full compliance with all its regulatory obligations, periodic reviéws are inevitable which may result in a financial penalty.
If the risk of a financial penaity arising from one of these reviews is more than remote but not probable or cannot be measured
reliably then the Group will disclose this matter as a contingent liability. If the risk of a financial penalty is considered probable
and can be measured reliably then the Group would make a provision for this matter.

On 23 September 2021, the CMA launched an investigation under section 25 of the Competition Act 1998 (‘CA98’) into suspected
breaches of competition law by Leicester City Football Club Limited and JD, together with their affiliates. JD continues to co-
operate fully with the CMA.

The CMA has not reached a view as to whether there is sufficient evidence of an infringement of competition law for it to issue a
statement of objections or, ultimately, an infringement decision, to any party under investigation. Therefore, at this stage, it is not
possible to determine with sufficient certainty that a liability will ultimately arise. Indeed, not all cases result in the CMA issuing
a statement of objections or an infringement decision.

Lease commitments

The Group had the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following
years:

Land and buildings Other
2021 2020 2021 2020
£m Em £m Em
Payments
Leases expiring
- Within one year i 429.7 372.6 3.5 3.1
- Within two to five years 1,030.9 914.6 3.4 3.9
- Over five years _ 453.2 } 382.1 - ~
1,913.8 1,669.3 6.9 7.0
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28 Net cash from operating activities
- 2021 2020
£m Em
Profit for the financial year 379.8 613.7
Adjustments for
Tax on profit 232.0 244.5
Net interest expense - 6.5 S |
Income from other fixed asset investments (0.5) (0.6)
Other finance charges 0.8 1.1
Net gain on fair value of investment property (0.7) -
Net (gain)/loss on financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss account (68.0) (526.3)
Income from interests in associated undertakings and joint ventures (15.7) (5.9)
Profit from sale of business - (0.6)
Realised (gain)/loss on disposal of associates and joint ventures - (1.2)
Unrealised losses on derivative financial instruments (57.8) 40.0
Operating profit 476.4 369.8
Depreciation and amortisation 322.0 216.0
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 63.2 103.1
Impairment of associates - 5.7
Loss on settlement of pre-existing relationship - 6.0
Loss/(profit) on disposal of tangible and intangible assets -6.5 2.0
Profit on disposal of fixed asset and current asset investments - (29.1)
Fair value loss on put options held by non-controlling interests 288.9 24.3
Net movement in provisions for liabilities and charges 1.7 (1.9)
Contribution to the pension scheme (1.4) (1.4)
Decrease/(increase) in inventory (28.0) 88.4
Decrease in debtors (130.4) 48.1
Increase in creditors 119.5 190.6
Foreign exchange movement 2.4 (0.2)
Net cash from operating activities 1,120.8 1,021.3
29 Analysis and reconciliation of net funds
At1 At 31
January Cash Exchange December
Note 2021 flow Acquisitions Demerger movement 2021
£m £m £m £m Em £m
Cash at bank and in hand 20 1,045.1 23.7 151.8 (28.3) (5.1) 1,187.2
Short term deposits 20 261.4 157.2 - - - 418.6
Bank overdrafts 21 - (12.6) (23.2) - - (35.8)
Cash and cash
equivalents 1,306.5 168.3 128.6 (28.3) (5.1) 1,570.0
Finance leases 21,22 (15.9) 5.8 (10.5) - 0.8 (19.8)
Other loans due within
one year 21 (131.7) 237.2 (156.2) - 6.0 (44.7)
ft
Other loans due after one 20 (56.7) (7.5) ) _ 4.8 (59.4)
year .
Net Funds 1,102.2 403.8 (38.1) (28.3) 6.5 1,446.1
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30 Cash flow relating to exceptional items

Included in operating cash flow is an outflow of £nil (2020: £nil) relating to provisions made in prior years.
31 Related party transactions and ultimate controlling party

Disclosure of control

R S Rubin and his close family are considered the ultimate controlling party by virtue of their control of the Company as at 31
December 2021.

Subsidiary undertakings

Details of investments in principal undertakings are included in note 15. In accordance with FRS-102 Section 8 “Related Party

Disclosures”, disclosure is not required of transactions and balances between Group companies where such transactions are -

eliminated on consolidation.

Pentland Capital Holdings Limited and its subsidiary undertakings

2021
£m
Transactions pdst de-merger
Sale of services and management recharges . 1.6
Administrative expenses incurred ’ (0.5)
Year end balances
Amounts owed by related parties ' 5.9
Amounts owed to related parties : (2.0)

Pentland Capital Holdings Limited and its undertakings became a related party of the Group upon demerger of the Investment
Group in October 2021 (note 5).

Associate undert;akings and joint ventures

2021 . 2020
£m Em

Transactions
Sale of services to Pentland Chaussures Limited . 6.0 4.1
Purchases from Pentland Chaussures Limited (18.8) (251
Purchases from Linea Aqua (Pvt) Ltd (2.3) (3.6)
Year end balances
Amounts owed by related parties . 0.3 : 17
Amounts owed to related parties . 3.5 5.9

Pension funds

Information relating to pension fund arrangements is disclosed in note 7. Other than the payment of normal pension contributions
there have been no transactions between the Group, nor its related parties, and any employee pension funds. There are no balances
outstanding at the year end between Group companies and employee pension funds, except those relating to the payment of
pension contributions. :

The following directors are Trustees of the RSH Executive Pension Scheme:

A J Mosheim

B A Mosheim

A S Rubin

C L Rubin

R S Rubin (Chairman)

A K Rubin

The following director was a Trustee of the Pentland Group Retirement Benefits Scheme during the year:

AM Long
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31 Related party transactions and ultimate controlling party (continued)
Charitable donations
As at 31 December 2021, R S Rubin and his close family exercised a trustee role in the Rubin Foundation Charitable Trust.

During the year payments of £1.0m were made as a charitable donation to the Rubin Foundation Chantable Trust and at year end
there was a total accrual of £0.5m (2020: £nil).

Directors

During the year there were no transactions with directors, or directors’ close family members, outside of items already disclosed
in note 4.

Key management compensation
Key management includes the directors whose compensation is disclosed in note 4.

32 Profit attributable to the Company

The loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 of the Company was £0.4m (16-month period ended 31 December 2020: £0.3m). .
As permitted by section 105(11) of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, no separate profit and loss account or statement of
comprehensive income is presented in respect of the Company.

33 Events after the reporting period
Acquisition of Total Swimming Group

On 27 May 2022, JD completed, via its existing subsidiary JD Sports Gyms Limited, the acquisition of a 60% share in Total
Swimming Group. Initial cash consideration paid was £11.1m with a maximum of £4.0m of deferred consideration that is
contingent upon future performance criteria and certain closing conditions. Total Swimming Group was founded by former
Olympic swimmers Steve Parry, Rebecca Adlington and Adrian Turner to make swimming more accessible and includes Swim!,
the first multi-site operator of dedicated children’s learn to swim centres in the UK. The acquisition provides a broadening of JD’s
leisure interests, which now includes gyms and pools. In its 2021 financial year, Total Swimming Group generated revenues of
£8.6m. The Group is in the process of preparing the purchase price allocation, including a provisional goodwill calculation.

Disposal of Footasylum Limited

On 5 August 2022, JD completed on the sale of Footasylum Limited and its associated subsidiaries to AURELIUS Group for
£37.5m. The sale was agreed in accordance with the final undertakings issued by the Competition and Markets Authority on 14
January 2022, following the decision to prohibit JD's acquisition of Footasylum last year.

JD Sports Fashion Korea Inc

On 6 September 2022, JD acquired 50% of the shares in its existing subsidiary, JD Sports Fashion Korea Inc (‘JD Korea’) for cash
consideration of 26.1 billion KRW (£16.4m). JD now owns 100% of the share capital of JD Korea. In accordance with FRS 102,
JD had previously assessed and concluded that it controlled JD Korea. As the acquisition of the 50% on 6 September 2022 does
not result in a change of control, this will be accounted for as an equity transaction.

Acquisition of additional holding in Deporvillage

On 14 October 2022, Iberian Sports Retail Group SL ('ISRG'), JD's existing 50.02% intermediate holding company in Spain,
acquired an additional 18% holding in the issued shares in Deporvillage SL from Xavier Pladellorens and Angel Corcuera, (the
'Co-Founders') for cash consideration of €19.8 million. Following the transaction, ISRG own 98% of Deporvillage with the Co-
Founders retaining a 2% interest. ISRG and the Co-Founders have also entered into put and call options over the Co-Founders'
remaining 2% interest in Deporvillage. The consideration payable for this remaining 2% holding has been capped.

Revolving credit facility with Pentland Group Limited
In June 2022, the Group entered into a credit agreement with Pentland Group Limited, a related party, for a revolving credit
facility. The aggregate principal amount available under that facility has been increased to £9om. The credit facility carries an

interest charge of SONIA + 3.75% per annum and the final repayment date is 31 December 2023. The credit facility does not
impose any financial covenants on the Group.
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